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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited is a leading jeweller in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau. Its principal products are mass luxury and high-end luxury jewellery
products including gem-set jewellery, gold products, platinum/karat gold products and
watches. The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2011.

The Group’s iconic brand “Chow Tai Fook” and long-standing history of over 80 years
of operations represent key competitive advantages of its business. The Chow Tai Fook
brand is recognised for its trustworthiness and authenticity, and its products are known
for their design, quality and value.

Chow Tai Fook has an extensive retail network, with over 1,600 points of sale in
Greater China, Singapore and Malaysia. The Group has a vertically integrated business
model that gives it effective and tight control over its processes from raw material
procurement to design, production, marketing and sales through its extensive retail
network.
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Financial Highlights
EmE

Revenue

HK$ million
BEAT

56,571.1

35,042.5

22,933.6

18,4109 '

2009 2010 20m

$56,571.1m BEET

Profit attributable to
owners of the Company

ZAN/NCIL PN il

HK$ million
BEAT
1896.7 2138.6

2009 2010

6,340.6

SISEVL6

201

$6,340.6m BEST

The following table summarises the results of the Group for FY2009 to FY2012.
TR M AERE 2009 M FEE 2012 B FE RS -

Earnings per share

SREF

HK cent
Al

68.5

BII5)
239
21.2

2009 2010

20m

68.5 cents &1l

For the year ended 31 March B2 3 A 31 A L EE 2012 20M 2010 2009
HKS$ million BI&/ET HK$ million BEETT  HKS million B&#TT — HKS million B E#7T
Revenue & %% 56,571.1 35,042.5 22,933.6 18,410.9
Gross profit 7 16,447.9 9,927.6 6,555.0 5,326.0
Profit for the year FE )& 7 6,570.9 36725 2,206.8 1914.4
Profit attributable to: LA T A E(EF :
Owners of the Company A2 Bl#A A 6,340.6 35376 21386 1,896.7
Non-controlling interests FEi2 Ak 230.3 134.9 68.2 17.7
Earnings per share (HK cent) &% 2% (7&11) 68.5 39.5 239 212
Dividend per share (HK cent) S8R & (#(L) 10.0 n/a NE A n/a NEA n/a NEA
Asat 31March #E£3 A 31H 2012 20M 2010 2009

HK$ million B #%7T

HK$ million B&&T

HK$ million B &

HK$ million B &%

Current assets i 8 & & 45,258.3 27,5032 15,961.6 13,504.3
Current liabilities F#) & & 14,218.0 17,213.2 8,510.9 7,783.8
Net current assets it Eh & & $ 58 31,040.3 10,290.0 7,450.7 57205
Net assets & 2548 29,573.0 16729 8,335.4 6,4419
Total assets &E4EF 47,414.3 29,0487 17,010.3 14,409.5
e e erch 2012 201 2010 2009

(%) %) (%) %)
Gross margin EF|& 29.1 283 286 289
Operating margin® 48 Fl i & O 14.9 13.3 1.8 12.4
Net margin /575 F % 1.6 10.5 9.6 10.4
Net gearing® FEAGEL X 16.2 65.2 345 46.7
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Revenue by geography FY2012 Revenue by product FY2012 Revenue by operation model FY2012
2020 M B iRt R &) D H L R 202 B FEEIREREI DR EERE 2020 FEiREEEAE DR EERE

M Mainland China #E A, B Gem-set jewellery ¥k 8 &

I HK, Macau and other Asian markets &% + 8P &% E 515 B Gold products # & E
B Platinum/karat gold products % /K& EH
W watches stk

W Retail 2%
B Wholesale #t%

Note: The percentages calculated could include minor rounding differences.
M - BT BRI ER -

Key operating data as at 31 March

MNIAINBZEEREEE 2012 20M 2010 2009
Jewellery POS AEZ &S 1,541 1,287 1ms 965
Mainland China # Bl At 1,448 1,206 1,034 895
e ot s . : o
Watch POS & Z &5 86 71 64 -
Total POS &2 425T 1,627 1,358 1179 965
%) %) %) %)

Same Store Sales Growth /5 #5& 18K

Mainland China F Bl it 320 352 15.2 n/a TiEm

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan e

N ] 484 324 16.0 n/a TiEA
Overall B 40.3 338 15.6 n/a NEA

@ Earnings before net interest and taxation, divided by revenue

@ Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net amounts due to related companies, net of pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash, and then divided
by total equity

O BRATAFIGRIA LR

@ SRITER - EREE BB A RRUEFEE 2 258 IR EERIRTTERRIRTT AR RIR ) W AR e
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

“Chow Tal Fook jewellery represents
the best that money can buy.”

ARXEREEEEBERNRE -




“We excel at providing Chinese customers exactly what they are

looking for”

[P RE ABREREEONER  ° |

Dear shareholders,

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited is a leading jewellery company with
the origins tracing back to 1929. After over 80 years in business as a private
company, Chow Tai Fook was successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 15 December 2011, in what was one of the largest IPOs in
Hong Kong and globally last year. Chow Tai Fook became the largest listed
pure play jeweller in the world by market capitalisation, and since listing we
have actually gained market share in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau, where we were already market leaders.

Chow Tai Fook is a homegrown iconic Chinese luxury brand that is widely
known and sought after, not to mention highly trusted, giving consumers
full confidence that our products are of the highest quality and authenticity.
Chow Tai Fook jewellery represents the best that money can buy. Our
motto of “sincerity « eternity” has guided us all these years and means even
more today as we strive for transparency, best-in-class corporate
governance, and long-term sustainable growth that will serve us well for our
next 80 years and beyond. Our listing was the logical next step forward for
the Company. With our strong professional management, a committed
board setting strategic direction, and ample funds raised from global
investors who share our confidence in the untapped potential of the Chinese
jewellery market, we are well poised to deliver on these goals.

I am pleased to report a total revenue of HK$56,571.1 million for FY2012,
which represents a robust growth of 61.4% over the same period last year.
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company increased by 79.2% to
HK$6,340.6 million with an earnings per share of HK68.5 cents. The Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK10.0 cents per share to
reward our shareholders.

We regard the main drivers for our sustainable growth to be POS expansion
and Same Store Sales Growth, or in other words, acquiring new customers
and encouraging repeat purchases.

At the end of March 2012, the number of our POS totalled 1,627, an increase
of 19.8% or 269 POS over the total number of jewellery and watch POS a
year earlier. Of the 1,627 POS, 1,532 or 94.2% are located in Mainland China.
Our overall Same Store Sales Growth was 40.3% in FY2012 compared to
33.8% in FY2011. Growth in market share has also been a key to our success.
According to the Frost & Sullivan Report, our market share grew from 12.6%
in 2010 to 14.4% in 2011 in Mainland China and from 20.1% to 21.4% in Hong
Kong and Macau in that same period.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

Looking ahead, expansion of our retail network inland and into lower tier
cities in Mainland China, where there is still huge potential and we are far
ahead of our peers, is the key to our continued sustainable growth. With our
POS opening experience and track record, we have well exceeded previous
targets and we expect to reach a total of 2,000 POS by the end of FY2014,
which is earlier than planned. Our even stronger financial position post-IPO
enables us to adjust inventory levels in these POS to meet demand and also
to open more outlets in Tier Il to IV cities such as Chengdu, Chongging,
Xi'an, Nanning, Urumai and Guiyang, where we see growth opportunities.
Domestic consumption is still rising in inland and lower tier cities and we
believe their economies are particularly resilient to slowdown.

In addition, we plan to expand the gross floor area in certain carefully
selected existing POS to increase our Same Store Sales Growth by
optimising our product and collection offerings, such as the “Bao Bao Family
Collection” and the “The Perfect One Wedding Collection”. Going forward,
we have plans to introduce our designer collections, through innovative
marketing campaigns and events, including the roll out of an enhanced
tiered customer loyalty programme across Hong Kong and Mainland China.

We are also committed to building shareholder value and returns. With a
focus on effective and tight control, our sophisticated vertically integrated
business model sets us apart from our peers, and enables us to further
improve our profitability.

Our model gives us direct preferential access to source the most sought
after raw materials, such as diamonds. Coupled with our own production
facilities, in-house design team and an extensive retail network, we are in full
control of all critical steps in the supply chain, which underscores our
fundamental resilience in the current uncertain macroeconomic
environment. We are on track to complete construction of our new Mainland
headquarters office in Shenzhen by the end of 2013. We have also identified
a site in the city of Wuhan, for an integrated production and logistics centre
to not only support future growth and demand but also further shorten
production lead-time.

From the mass luxury products that make up the bulk of our sales, to the
high-end luxury jewellery that shows our excellent craftsmanship capability,
to our lines for youth and weddings and other occasions, we excel at
providing Chinese customers with exactly what they are looking for. We do
this by means of our scale and reach, our retail management information
system, our deep understanding of Chinese jewellery-giving culture, and our
unrivalled ability to procure, design, and make products to meet market
needs in all segments and age groups. The speed at which we can adjust
our product mix is a great competitive advantage. Our extensive
geographical presence across Mainland China, a balanced product portfolio
with a growing focus on higher-margin gem-set jewellery, and our almost
fully hedged position on gold result in stable long-term returns for our
shareholders.
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In fact, | am also chairing a "Reform and Development Committee” of senior
executives, founded in 2011, which has been reviewing operations and has
already made a number of recommendations to the Board with a view to
enhancing overall operating efficiencies of the Group. These initiatives
include refining our management information system and increasing
production capability, starting with the facilities in Shenzhen and Wuhan
that I mentioned above.

Our management team, led by loyal and talented professionals, is well
poised to make progress on all these strategic initiatives. As a newly listed
company, we are continuing to build a best-in-class organisation, including a
recently augmented investor relations and corporate communications team
to help us engage with our esteemed shareholders and other stakeholders.
We aim to give you operational updates on a quarterly basis going forward.
At this time, | would also like to acknowledge the hard work of all our
colleagues across the Group, who have embraced the transition we have
gone through in becoming a listed company. Our philosophy of aligning our
employees’ compensation with our financial performance is one we are
committed to adhering to going forward.

Looking ahead, we are confident that we can achieve sustainable growth as
we continue to cater to Mainland China’s rapidly growing and urbanising
middle class as well as a growing number of loyal and increasingly affluent
VIPs. With a combination of our core strengths such as our brand name,
highly experienced and loyal team, a sophisticated management information
system, extensive retail network, innovative marketing, strong design and
production capability, great financial strengths as well as our ability to
swiftly adjust our operations under different environments, | am confident
that this model enables us to capture the growth opportunities in
developing regions and make us more resilient in the current volatile
environment.

Our success is inseparable from the success and support of our staff,
shareholders, customers, business partners and the commmunities in which
we operate. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude for
their continual support and encouragement. To my fellow members of the
Board, | would also like to extend appreciation for their active contribution
to our business and their inspiring leadership. Together we can set a new
corporate benchmark for excellence in Greater China.

Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE mEAST

Financial Review

We are pleased to deliver our first set of annual results following our listing
in December 2011 and to report that our performance was in line with our
profit forecast in our Prospectus. During the year under review, we
expanded the geographic reach of our jewellery business in the Greater
China region and achieved excellent results. In FY2012, the Group recorded
revenue of HK$56,571.1 million (FY2011: HK$35,042.5 million), representing a
surge of 61.4% over the same period last year. The profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$6,340.6 million (FY20T11:
HK$3,537.6 million), increased by HK$2,803.0 million or 79.2% over that of
the previous year. Our growth this year was mainly fuelled by the expansion
of our POS network and by strong Same Store Sales Growth. These growth
drivers were in turn fuelled by our successful business strategies, continued
strong expansion of Mainland China’s overall economy and increasing
demand for jewellery especially for event-driven and festive celebrations.

The Mainland China portion of our business recorded revenues of
HK$32,016.4 million (FY2011: HK$19,471.8 million), grew 64.4% from FY20T1],
while Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets recorded revenue of
HK$24,554.7 million (FY2011: HK$15,570.7 million), increased by 57.7% from
last year. The Mainland China market continued to represent our major
source of revenue, accounting for 56.6% (FY2011: 55.6%) of our total
revenue. Given the increasing number of Mainland tourists in Hong Kong
and Macau and the concurrent steady rise in their per capita disposable
income, Mainland tourists constituted the largest single customer group for
our products, as evidenced by the fact that 48.3% (FY201: 43.2%) of our
total revenue in Hong Kong and Macau were settled through China
UnionPay or in RMB (cash). As such, we believe 77.6% (FY2011: 74.8%) of
our total revenue was originated from Mainland Chinese. We achieved
overall Same Store Sales Growth of 40.3% in FY2012 (FY2011: 33.8%), of
which Same Store Sales Growth in Mainland China was 32.0% (FY20T11:
35.2%) and Same Store Sales Growth in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
segment was 48.4% (FY2011: 32.4%).

Sales of our principal products, gem-set jewellery and gold products,
comprised about 27.2% (FY2011: 25.6%) and 52.6% (FY2011: 53.4%) of the
total revenue respectively. Sales in gem-set jewellery rose by 71.6% to
HK$15,378.1 million (FY2011: HK$8,962.9 million), while sales of gold products
increased by 58.8% to HK$29,742.1 million (FY2011: HK$18,724.7 million). We
are gradually increasing the proportion of revenues from gem-set jewellery,
sales of which are inherently higher-margin than sales of gold jewellery.

Our gross profit increased by 65.7%, from HK$9,927.6 million for FY2011 to
HK$16,447.9 million for FY2012, while the gross profit margin slightly
increased to 29.1% (FY2011: 28.3%). We believe that we owe these margin
improvements and overall margin stability to a combination of factors
including our extensive geographical presence across Mainland China, our
balanced product portfolio with a growing focus on higher-margin gem-set
jewellery, and our almost fully hedged position on gold.
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Financial Review (continued)

In line with our revenue growth, the Group’s selling and distribution costs,
which include advertising and promotional expenses of HK$448.3 million
(FY2011: HK$400.5 million), increased to HK$6,319.9 million (FY20T11:
HK$4,401.9 million) in FY2012. Nevertheless, our profit for the year increased
by 78.9%, from HK$3,672.5 million in FY2011 to HK$6,570.9 million in FY2012.
Our net profit margin improved from 10.5% in FY2011 to 11.6% in FY2012. This
improvement is mainly attributable to the efficiencies gained from
economies of scale, which resulted in lower selling and distribution costs
and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue. In particular, while
rental expenses increased to HK$672.8 million in FY2012 (FY201: HK$502.4
million) due to an increased number of self-operated POS, our rental as a
percentage of total revenue has decreased from 1.4% in FY2011 to 1.2% in
FY2012.

For FY2012, basic earnings per share were HK68.5 cents (FY2011: HK39.5
cents). The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK10.0 cents per share (FY2011: N/A).

Business Review
Overview

Our strong performance in FY2012 validated the effectiveness of our
business strategies but was also due to favourable economic conditions in
the retail jewellery market in the Greater China region. According to the
Frost & Sullivan Report, we continued to maintain a leading position in
Mainland China as well as in the Hong Kong and Macau jewellery markets.
Our market share grew from 12.6% in 2010 to 14.4% in 2011 in Mainland China
and from 20.1% to 21.4% in Hong Kong and Macau in that same period.

Our reputation for delivering high quality and authentic jewellery for over 80
years is a key factor to our continued success and widespread brand
recognition. We offer a full range of products, ranging from mass luxury
products that make up the bulk of our sales, to the high-end luxury jewellery,
to our lines for youth. The mass luxury segment is absolutely core to the
Group and accounts for most of Mainland China’s jewellery market, while the
high-end luxury segment is created specifically for affluent and discerning
customers, and our designs strive not only to incorporate what is most
appealing to Chinese buyers but also to rival global luxury jewellery brands
in sophistication. In addition, we have also created products for the younger
generation to capture their growing consumption power and demand for
jewellery products. The variety of products available through these three
product lines means we are able to reach a wide range of consumers across
different age groups.

We expanded our retail network in the Greater China region to further
penetrate more inland and lower tier cities. As of 31 March 2012, we had a
total of 1,627 POS (31 March 2011: 1,358). Among these, 1,541 were jewellery
POS and 86 were watch POS, with a net of 269 new POS opened in FY2012.
Our Same Store Sales Growth reached 40.3% in FY2012 (FY2011: 33.8%).
Our success is due to a combination of factors including our retail
management information system, our deep understanding of Chinese
jewellery-giving culture, and our unrivalled ability to procure, design, and
make products to meet market needs in all segments and age groups. The
speed at which we can adjust our product mix is a great competitive
advantage.
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Business Review (Continued)
POS network

E G175
ZERRE

Number of POS as at 31 March

BZ3A31HZEHEE
Net Net Net Net
2008 change 2009 change 2010 change 2011 change 2012
2008%F  F#E 2009F FEEH 20106 FEEH 20NF FEH 2012F
Jewellery POS KETES 821 144 965 150 115 172 1,287 254 1,541
Mainland China' o B Ay 3 752 143 895 139 1,034 172 1,206 242 1,448
Tier | cities —fm 146 20 166 8 174 14 188 19 207
Tier Il cities ZEET 405 65 470 66 536 75 611 115 726
Tier Il and other cities =R EM T 201 58 259 65 324 83 407 108 515
Hong Kong, Macau and 8 BPIR
other Asian markets?? Hibas M3 69 1 70 1 81 — 81 12 93
Watch POS* EHRTER — — — 64 64 7 71 15 86
Total Bt 821 144 965 214 1179 179 1,358 269 1,627
Notes: Hiat -
[©) Included 5, 7,10, 14 and 15 POS that retailed both jewellery and watch products ©) 2 Bl B 1 B 220084 « 20094 + 20104 + 2011 F &

as at 31 March 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

) Included 26, 28, 33, 33 and 32 POS that retailed both jewellery and watch
products as at 31 March 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

3 Included a total of 7, 7,10, 9 and 8 POS in Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia as at
31 March 2008, 2009, 2010, 201 and 2012, respectively.

) Included 60, 68 and 84 POS in Mainland China and 4, 3 and 2 in Hong Kong,

Macau and other Asian markets as at 31 March 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively.

Asat31March H#EEZ3 A 31H

Retail Network
ZERK
(2012 Total: 1,627 POS)
(202 F#85t 11,627 AT EE)
(201 Total: 1,358 POS)
(20N F 45T 1 1358 AT EE)

Operation Model
EEEN

32%£31%

2012 2011 2012 2011
| ] Tier | —#% H N Self-operated & &
W W Tern=# [ ] Franchised in%
B [ Tierlll & others = J: 54t
[ | HK, Macau & other Asian markets
FBS ORFIREAMTMS
Note:  The percentages calculated could include minor rounding differences.

(2012 Total: 1,627 POS)
(2012 FF 45T - 1,627 A E2)
(201 Total: 1,358 POS)
(20N 4485t - 1,358 AT E L)

20124 3 A3 B RAR#ITHRE RBREMTEXLHHSHE -
74& 101 14 ERISESER -

2 Bl & 3% B E20084F « 20094 + 20104 « 20114 &
202F3A3HRAKETHREREBRERTEEBN26
&~ 2818 ~ 331[ -« 33ERI2ETE2 -

@

2 B B & B 20084 - 20094 ~ 20104 - 20114}
20123 AZNERAE « FIKEREREEES H7E - 718 -
1018 - 9O SAZTER -

3

BIEEE 20104 + 2014F k201263 A31B I AFRERA
#5560 1 - 681E & 84 ETERIARMNES - BFI R
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(€D}

Sales Channel
HERE
(2012 among 1,159 self-operated POS only)
(2012 F{EFF ALSOEH T )
(201 among 965 self-operated POS only)
(2ONF{ZFT A 965 HHEATEZ)

2012 201
Il [ Concessionaire Counters i
| ] Others A
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Business Review (Continued)
The Mainland China market

Since the opening of our first Mainland China store in Beijing in 1998, we
have been a pioneer in our industry in growing an extensive nationwide
footprint in Mainland China spanning Tier | to |V cities in Mainland China. We
were market leaders prior to our Initial Public Offering in December 2011 and
since listing we have gained further market share in Mainland China through
POS expansion and strong Same Store Sales Growth. The Mainland China
geographical segment contributed 56.6% of the Group’s total revenue
(FY20T11: 55.6%), amounting to HK$32,016.4 million in FY2012 (FY20T11:
HK$19,471.8 million). This proportion is expected to continue to increase due
to a number of drivers, including rapid urbanisation, growing affluence of
the Mainland Chinese, substantial growth in per capita disposable income
and increasing demand for luxury goods. The potential of future tax-cuts or
tax-free policies in Mainland China would also have a beneficial stimulating
effect if implemented. In recent years, we focused on a new store roll-out
planin inland Tier Il to IV cities to achieve a faster and broader coverage as
these cities experienced higher economic growth and saw an expansion in
their jewellery markets. At the same time, we upgraded the positioning and
branding of our POS in Tier | and Il cities. As of 31 March 2012, our total
number of POS in Mainland China reached 1,532 (31 March 2011:1,274),
representing 94.2% of our total POS. In FY2012, we opened a net of 258 new
POS and 57.0% of the new POS were located in Tier | and |l cities, while the
remaining 43.0% were in Tier Il and other cities.

Our POS network comprises both retail and wholesale channels through
which we distribute our products. As of 31 March 2012, we had 1,066 self-
operated POS in Mainland China. We aim to maintain a well-balanced ratio
of self-operated to franchised stores of around 70:30, but we also plan on
expanding our self-operated retail network in more inland Tier Il to IV cities.
In FY2012, revenue from self-operated stores amounted to HK$23,266.3
million (FY2011: HK$14,595.1 million). Their strong performance on a Same
Store Sales basis has also been an important driver for our revenue growth.
In FY2012, our Same Store Sales Growth in Mainland China was 32.0%
(FY2011: 35.2%).

Our Mainland China Concessionaire Counters within department stores
accounted for 81.5% of total self-operated POS. Most of these department
store locations are in prime shopping districts with a lot of shopper and
pedestrian traffic. Concessionaire Counters within department stores offer
the added advantage of allowing us to leverage on the department stores’
broader marketing activities to acquire new customers.
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Business Review (continued)
Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets

Although only 5.8% of our POS are outside Mainland China, those stores in
Hong Kong and Macau are some of our earliest established and most
valuable retail locations and are important to our business from a revenue
contribution and branding point of view. Given that our Company which
originated in Hong Kong has established its brand name for several decades,
we do value the strong relationships with our customers built over such long
period of time, and we cherish our heritage and our leading position there,
which has been hard-earned over decades. The remarkable revenue growth
in FY2012 revenues reflected Chow Tai Fook’s prominent position in the
Hong Kong and Macau jewellery retail market where we were number one
in terms of market share. In FY2012, revenue contribution from Hong Kong,
Macau and other Asian markets accounted for 43.4% (FY2011: 44.4%) of our
total revenue, amounting to HK$24,554.7 million (FY2011: HK$15,570.7
million), and enjoyed the synergy with our extensive presence in Mainland
China. Accordingly, we will continue to improve the shopping experience in
Hong Kong and Macau and to promote our brand image in creative ways
including promotion of high-end luxury jewellery.

As of 31 March 2012, we had a well-established retail network of 95 POS (31
March 2011: 84) with a net of 11 POS opened in Hong Kong, Macau and other
Asian markets. Our business in Hong Kong and Macau has significantly
benefited from the rising number of visitors in recent years, in particular the
tourists from Mainland China. According to the Commerce and Economic
Development Bureau of Hong Kong and the Macau Statistics and Census
Service, the number of visitors to Hong Kong and Macau increased by 16.4%
and 12.2% to 41.9 million and 28.0 million in 2011 respectively.

Mainland China, one of the world’s fastest growing major economies,
contributes hugely to tourism-related revenues in Hong Kong and Macau.
This growth is due to the rising number of high net worth individuals and a
burgeoning middle class, as well as a relaxation in visa requirements for
tourist entry from the Mainland China into Hong Kong and Macau. Although
Mainland Chinese shoppers also have the option of shopping in our
extensive retail network in Mainland China, they enjoy shopping in Hong
Kong and Macau when they get the opportunity because stores in these
cities may provide a more diverse and complete product selection
compared to stores in their home cities, and prices are lower due to the
absence of consumer taxes and because of recent appreciation of the
Renminbi against the Hong Kong dollar.

As of 31 March 2012, we had a total of 8 POS (31 March 2011: 9) in Taiwan,
Singapore and Malaysia. We take a flexible approach to our distribution
strategy and may consider opening further POS in these territories
depending on local market conditions.
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Business Review (Continued)
Product offering

We offer a wide range of jewellery products, from mass luxury to high-end
luxury, to fulfil different market niches. Our product designs range from
classic designs, such as gold dowry for weddings, to contemporary designs,
such as jewellery that incorporates diamonds and gemstones in platinum or
18-Karat gold setting. Such a broad product range fits the needs of our
customers at all stages of their life cycle including birth, marriage and
anniversary.

We orient our product lines around both occasions and by designer
collection for important life events such as weddings. Our “The Perfect One
Wedding Collection” is a top choice. Other collections are design-oriented
and inspired, such as the high-end “Danseuse de Ballet Coloured Diamond
Collection” exclusively for VIPs and the “Bao Bao Family Collection”.

We also have youth collections targeting the younger generation to help us
to expand our customer base and cultivate our relationship with tomorrow’s
most valuable customers.

Our diverse product offerings are conceived by our strong Research and
Development ("“R&D”) Department with over 100 professionals in Hong
Kong, Shenzhen and Shunde. The R&D Department comprises jewellery
designers and goldsmiths who work closely with our production
management and sales management departments to ensure that product
design direction is well aligned with market needs. Our professional design
team has won numerous awards over the years.

We also place importance on quality control to ensure that our jewellery
products meet all quality testing requirements, which are carried out in our
precious metal testing laboratory in Shenzhen. This Shenzhen laboratory is
one of the first in the jewellery industry to be certified by China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS), and its quality
control system has been accredited with ISO17025 certification. The
precision of the equipment in this laboratory is nationally recognised,
enabling the Group to test both the physical integrity and chemical
composition of our jewellery products. The laboratory is staffed with
professional inspectors who excel at using advanced machinery and
specialise in testing precious metals, including gold and platinum.
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Business Review continued)
Strong branding and marketing drives growth

At Chow Tai Fook, we understand the importance of branding and strategic
marketing in catering to increasingly sophisticated sub-segments of
customers. Our innovative marketing strategies are geared towards gem-
set jewellery.

We offer a series of jewellery collections for customers of our three product
categories: mass luxury, high-end luxury and youth line. For instance:

Mass luxury segment

“The Perfect One Wedding Collection”

According to the Frost & Sullivan Report, 80% of soon-to-be-wed couples in
Hong Kong and 65% of their counterparts in Mainland China favour diamond
rings as a mark for their matrimonial vows.

We recently launched “The Perfect One Wedding Collection”, a new product
line featuring a rich selection of wedding tiaras and jewellery setpieces in
European style that is inspired by the fairy tale-like royal wedding, arguably
the dream wedding for every woman. This new collection stands as a fine
testament to the unique designs of our brand and is expected to drive the
overall sales of our wedding-related products.

“The Perfect Mark Collection”

“The Perfect Mark Collection” represents Chow Tai Fook’s flagship product
line for diamond jewellery, made out of premium original diamonds with the
benefit of “triple excellence,” namely excellent craftsmanship in cuts,
excellent polish and excellent symmetry. The uniqueness of each piece, set
in platinum frames to give dazzling radiance, is highlighted by an exclusive
imprint enabled by laser-engraving. “The Perfect Mark” embodies our
passionate commitment to quality diamonds and our genuine pledge to our
customers.

The “Achievement Collection”

We also offer the "Achievement Collection” in the mass luxury segment for
female executives and high-net-worth individuals with strong purchasing
power. This collection comprised gem-set jewellery that goes perfectly with
both day-time work attire and evening gowns. We recently launched an
advertising and public relations campaign to promote this collection.

High-end luxury segment

The “Danseuse de Ballet Coloured Diamond Collection”

The “Danseuse de Ballet Coloured Diamond Collection” was unveiled at a
private jewellery appreciation party for our VIPs in Hong Kong in November
201 Inspired by the elegant movements of ballet dancers and made
primarily out of the rare pink diamond, each piece in the collection
represents a unique artistic gem.
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Business Review (Continued)
Youth line

Disney-licensed products

Our youth line includes designs based on licensed cartoon characters,
including the most popular Disney-licensed products. Last year, we found
our way into the Guinness World Records by making a 999 gold figurine of
Winnie the Pooh to highlight the launch of our Winnie the Pooh collection.
The roadshow exhibition of the 999 gold Winnie the Pooh in Greater China
received extensive media coverage and provided a strong boost to our
sales.

Ceremonial & festive jewellery products and the “Baoc Bao Family
Collection”

Event-driven purchases represent an important source of jewellery retail
sales in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau due to the traditional
Chinese practice of gifting jewellery. Often diamond jewellery and gold
ornaments are given at ceremonial and festive events such as weddings,
Chinese New Year, birthday celebrations and new born arrivals. To meet our
customers’ gifting needs, we have designed the “Bao Bao Family” cartoon
figurine collection featuring a blend of angelic appearances with traditional
Chinese well-wishing elements. Well-suited for personal adornment or
gifting purposes, this collection has been well-received by Chinese
customers. Over two million pieces have been sold since its launch 10 years
ago.

We also conduct promotions at our outlets in association with our partner
department stores on festive occasions such as Chinese New Year,
Valentine’s Day and Mother’s Day, to encourage recurrent purchases and
increase overall sales.

Customer loyalty programme

In order to nurture and build up customer loyalty and encourage repeat
purchases, we launched a customer loyalty programme in 2002 in Mainland
China and in 2010 in Hong Kong. The loyalty programme enhances our
ability to understand consumers’ spending behaviour and preferences and
gauge market trends. As of 31 March 2012, our VIP members in Mainland
China amounted to approximately 700,000 members, surging over 90%
from around 355,200 members in 31 March 2011.

The customer loyalty programme is crucial in maintaining our Same Store
Sales Growth by encouraging repeat purchases and attracting new
customers. In FY2012, sales contribution from Mainland VIP members
accounted for around 32% of the retail revenue in Mainland China.

To enhance membership benefits and upgrade our customer relationship
management database to analyse customer preferences, we will launch a
new customer loyalty programme in Hong Kong by the end of 2012 and we
will extend the programme and tailor it to Mainland China in the near future.
Customers are entitled to join the membership programme upon making
any purchase qualifying in a particular tier of membership. VIPs can enjoy
benefits such as cash coupons. Our highest-tier VIPs are invited to special
events such as jewellery auctions. The related marketing and public relations
campaign placed Chow Tai Fook in a whole new league within the high-end
luxury jewellery market in China.
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Business Review (continued)
Customer loyalty programme (Continued)

To ensure our VIPs have an unforgettable shopping and lifestyle experience,
we offer them a personal shopper programme where a designated personal
shopper will advise each VIP on jewellery selection. Our personal shoppers
also support VIPs with concierge services such as arranging luxury
excursions, fine dining recommendations and reservations. For instance, our
personal shoppers took our highest-tier VIPs to Paris to attend an haute
couture and jewellery appreciation event called “Lightness of Being”, which
was organised by Chow Tai Fook and K11 Art Mall in Paris in March this year.

E-commerce

Given the increasing use of the Internet in Mainland China, we seek to
extend our customer reach by diversifying our sales channels, from
traditional physical stores to e-commerce channels.

We see e-commerce as a powerful tool to extend our customer reach,
especially targeting the group of younger customers aged 18 to 25, who are
much keener than older age groups to shop online. According to the 2011
report conducted by the China National Commercial Information Centre of
All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce, transaction value of online
purchase in Mainland China grew tremendously by 67.8% to nearly RMB80O
billion in 201, accounting for 4.3% of the total retail sales of social consumer
goods.

In 2010, we launched our e-commerce operations on Tmall.com (formerly
known as Taobao Mall), one of the largest business-to-consumer (B2C)
platforms in Mainland China. We also enhanced our brand awareness among
Internet users by expanding our online presence through popular social
media sites such as Sina Weibo, a Chinese micro blogging website, aiming
to leverage on the strong scalability of the social media platforms. Our
e-commerce channels will also enable us to collect customer consumption
data and feedback.

Vertically integrated business model

Over 80 years, we have gradually built a sophisticated vertically integrated
business model that equipped the Group with an effective and tight control
over the entire value chain, from raw material procurement, design,
production and marketing to sales through our extensive retail network.

This model enables us to monitor and control the quality of our products
effectively, and to respond quickly to our customers’ needs and preferences.
Our sophisticated vertically integrated business model sets us apart from
our peers, and enables us further improve our profitability. The benefits we
obtain from operational efficiencies as well as our distinguished branding
strategy are often translated into more competitive pricing for products and
higher customer satisfaction.
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Business Review (Continued)
Procurement

Our procurement is handled by two major procurement departments, the
Diamond Department and the Procurement (Gemstones) Department. We
have experts with substantial industry and gemmology experience.

We buy rough diamonds directly from our preferred long-term business
partners such as DTC and Rio Tinto.

We have been designated as a DTC sightholder since 1973. Recently,
we have successfully renewed our contract as one of the limited DTC
sightholders worldwide for a further three-year term from 2012 to 2015.
We have also been designated as a Rio Tinto Select Diamantaire since
2009. Our well-established relationship with both DTC and Rio Tinto
ensures us with a secure supply of quality products. It also allows us to
make our selection from the stock available of a number of suppliers
ahead of other peers. These advantages are significant competitive
differentiators. In FY2012, approximately 46% of the polished diamonds
were produced from rough diamonds polished at our three diamond
cutting and polishing factories. Two of such factories are located in
South Africa and the third in Shunde, PRC.

In addition, as a reputable jeweller in the industry, we are often invited to
participate in auctions to bid for rare and unique diamonds from time to
time. For example, we successfully bid for the 507 carat Cullinan Heritage
rough diamond in 2010 for US$35.3 million, which was a record high price
for a rough diamond. The Cullinan Heritage rough diamond has been
divided into 24 polished stones, the largest of which is named Cullinan
Heritage I. It is @ Round Brilliant Cut and D colour polished diamond
weighing over 100 carats, and it is set to be unveiled in the second half of
2012.

Production

As at 31 March 2012, we had a total of approximately 4,800 employees in
our jewellery factories, which occupy a total area of over 42,000 sg.m.. Our
factory in Hong Kong produces gem-set jewellery products, Shenzhen
factories produce gem-set jewellery, gold and karat gold products, and
Shunde factories produce gem-set jewellery, gold and platinum/karat gold
products.

As we expand our business, in order to keep up with the rapid increase in
demand for our products, we are partnering with the Hong Kong
Productivity Council to develop an automated “weighting and packaging”
robot which can efficiently shorten the “stock in” process of a jewellery
piece to just 10 seconds. Overall, we have raised the accuracy and efficiency
of “stock in” process and saved significantly our manpower by nearly half.
Efficient use of our labour has allowed us to save costs as well. The
automated robot has been rolled out in one of our production lines in a
Shenzhen factory, coupling with the radio-frequency identification (RFID)
technology which has been on trial. Once successful, we intend to expand
the usage of robot and RFID technology to other jewellery products such as
mass luxury jewellery products.
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Business Review (Continued)
Production (Continued)

We also keep a well-balanced portfolio of in-house production and
outsource production especially for mass luxury jewellery products. Since
gem-set products require more professional skillset and technique, they are
mainly produced by our in-house craft masters.

To better facilitate our future growth, we have identified a site for an
integrated production and logistic centre in Wuhan located in Central China
to facilitate order-to-POS delivery nationwide.

Human Resources Management

As at 31 March 2012, we had a total of approximately 29,600 employees
(excluding staff of franchisees) (31 March 2011: approximately 22,900) in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan, and South Africa.

Human resources are our greatest asset and we highly regard people’s
personal development and well-being. As such, we aim to create a strong
sense of community and a motivating environment for our employees, and
to enhance staff development, employee loyalty and dedication. We strive
to motivate our employees with a clear career path which provides them
with opportunities for advancement and upgrading their skills.

Tailored training programmes are provided to our employees. For example,
fresh graduates we recruit are offered management training, sales staff are
required to attend training programmes on customer service and product
knowledge; our technicians and craftsmen are provided with on-going
technical training to ensure excellence in the quality of our products; and
our management personnel are invited to attend management courses to
refine their business management skills. Currently we have eight specialised
jewellery training centres in Beijing, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Suzhou,
Chongqging, Wuhan, Hong Kong and Macau.

Use of Proceeds from the Company’s Initial Public
Offering

The net proceeds from the Initial Public Offering in December 2011, after
deduction of related issuance expenses, amounted to HK$15,387.3 million.
After the listing, we repaid HK$3,400.0 million for the remaining portion of
the related party’s loans outstanding prior to the Initial Public Offering. We
also repaid the pre-IPO bank loan facility of HK$3,300.0 million in full. In
addition, we have also used HK$2,755.8 million for the procurement of raw
materials and inventory, and HK$146.6 million to finance the capital
expenditures for the expansion and refurbishment of our POS network, the
purchase of production and research and development equipment, and the
construction of our new office building in Shenzhen.

As at 31 March 2012, unutilised funds of HK$4,084.6 million will be used for
the sourcing and procurement of raw materials and inventory, while
HK$1,221.5 million will be used for the aforesaid capital expenditures. The
remaining portion will be used for general corporate purposes.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

Liquidity and financial resources

Our Group is a leading jeweller by market share in Mainland China as well as
in the Hong Kong and Macau jewellery markets with over 80 years of
heritage, and has been financially sound throughout FY2012. The Group
principally meets its working capital and other liquidity requirements
through a combination of capital contributions, cash flow from operations,
bank borrowings and gold loans.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$10,004.8 million (31 March 2011: HK$5,761.1 million), denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, and United States dollars. The Group had total
borrowings of HK$15,207.5 million (31 March 2011; HK$14,810.6 million).
Current portion of long-term borrowings, short-term borrowings, gold loans,
amounts due to related companies and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries amounted to HK$11,781.1 million (31 March 2011
HK$14,810.6 million).

During FY2012, the Group has fully settled the amounts due to related
companies (31 March 2011: HK$7,833.3 million). As at 31 March 2012, the
Group’s amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries were
HK$400.3 million (31 March 2011: HK$164.7 million). As at 31 March 2012, all
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries were interest
free, while HK$9.1 million of the aforesaid amounts carried a fixed interest
rate of 6.1% per annum as at 31 March 2011. The above amounts are all
repayable on demand.

The Group’s bank borrowings and gold loans amounted to HK$9,000.6
million (31 March 2011 HK$2,881.0 million) and HK$5,806.6 million (31 March
2011: HK$3,931.6 million), respectively. The bank borrowings carried variable
interest rates ranging from 1.0% to 1.6% per annum over Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR”) or 98% to 110% of the People’s Bank of
China Standard Loan Interest Rate (“PBOC Rate”) per annum (31 March 2011
0.3% to 1.3% over HIBOR per annum, or 90% to 110% of PBOC Rate per
annum). As at 31 March 2012, interest rates on our bank borrowings ranged
from 1.4% to 7.2% (31 March 2011: 0.8% to 5.6%) per annum, while the gold
loans carried fixed interest rates of 1.3% to 5.5% (31 March 2011: 1.3% to 3.5%)
per annum. The gold loans are also used to hedge against the financial
impact of the price fluctuations in our gold inventory.

The Group’s debts were primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi, and United States dollars. In respect of the Group’s operations in
Mainland China, the Group maintains an appropriate level of external
borrowings in Renminbi for natural hedging of Renminbi contributed to its
business in Mainland China. Apart from this, the Group does not have any
material foreign exchange exposure. While we rely on short-term
borrowings to finance our inventories and expand our POS and product
selection, we have maintained good relationships with our banks that
provide us with such financing and have not experienced any difficulties in
repaying our borrowings.
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Liguidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

The net gearing ratio, defined as the aggregate of bank borrowings, gold
loans, net amounts due to related companies, net of pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash, and then divided by total equity, was 16.2%, a
significant decrease of 49.0% as compared with that of FY2011. The
decrease was mainly due to the net proceeds of HK$15,387.3 million to the
Company from the Initial Public Offering.

As at 31 March 2012, total equity of the Group increased to HK$29,573.0
million, against HK$11,672.9 million as at 31 March 2011. The Group’s working
capital, being net current assets, was HK$31,040.3 million as at 31 March
2012 (31 March 2011 HK$10,290.0 million).

Change in share capital

As at 20 July 2011, being the date of incorporation of the Company, the
Company had an authorised share capital of US$50,000 divided into
50,000 shares of US$1 each.

On 17 November 2011 and 29 November 2011, (1) the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased by HK$50,000,000,000 by the creation of
an additional 50,000,000,000 shares of HK$1 each; (2) the Company
allotted and issued 780 shares fully paid to CTF Holding, the sole
shareholder of the Company at that time; (3) the Company repurchased
and cancelled the one issued share with a nominal value of US$1in the
capital of the Company in issue immediately prior to the issue of the new
shares; and (4) authorised but unissued share capital of the Company was
diminished by the cancellation of all the 50,000 unissued shares with a
nominal value US$1 each in the capital of the Company.

On 29 November 2011, CTF Holding resolved that, conditional on the share
premium account of the Company being credited as a result of the
allotment and issue of the offer shares pursuant to our Initial Public Offering,
the Directors were authorised to capitalise an amount of HK$8,949,999,220
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company by
applying such sum in paying up in full at par 8,949,999,220 shares for
allotment and issue to CTF Holding whose name appeared in the register of
members of the Company at close of business on 15 November 2011 (or as it
may direct).

On 15 December 2011, we completed our Initial Public Offering, raising net
proceeds of HK$15,387.3 million. We used such net proceeds in accordance
with the proposed applications in the Prospectus, which are set out on
page 22 of this annual report.

As at 31 March 2012, our Company had an authorised share capital of
HK$50,000,000,000, divided into 50,000,000,000 shares of HK$1 each,
and an issued share capital of HK$10,000,000,000, divided into
10,000,000,000 shares, all fully paid or credited as fully paid and
40,000,000,000 shares remain unissued.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure continued)

Capital expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure incurred during FY2012 amounted to
HK$749.2 million (FY2011: HK$540.6 million), and was primarily used for
expansion of our POS network and improvements at existing POS.

Charge on group assets

As at 31 March 2011, bank deposit amounted to HK$156.3 million was
pledged to secure banking facility and gold loans granted to the Group. As
at 31 March 2012, bank deposit amounted to HK$17.0 million was pledged
mainly to secure the payment of construction in progress that is expected
to be completed in 2013.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2012 and 31 March 2011.

Capital commitments

Details of the Group’s capital commitments as at 31 March 2012 and 31
March 2011 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Major Events and Awards
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Yi — Chow Tai Fook Auction Dinner (Beijing,
China)

“Yi” Auction Dinner was held in Beijing in April 2011 to showcase the Yun Yi
Royal Collection. The Collection is a perfect blend of modern fashion and
traditional Chinese jewellery. It returns after being displayed in Paris to great
acclaim.

Launch of “Dazzle and Shine” — Nationwide
Roadshow on the Culture of Diamond (Shanghai,
China)

In July 2011, a ceremony entitled “Dazzle and Shine” was held to mark the
launch of a nationwide roadshow celebrating the culture of the diamond. It
was held at Jiu-Guang Department Store in Shanghai, where the
management of Chow Tai Fook Group and their guests of honour witnessed
how a diamond with breathtaking radiance was made exemplifying

Chow Tai Fook’s image as an unparalleled expert in diamonds.
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Chow Tai Fook Scholarship (Shenzhen, China)

In November 2011, Chow Tai Fook joined forces with secondary schools in
China to set up the “Chow Tai Fook Scholarship” . The first scholarship has
been granted. The scholarship is aimed at helping underprivileged university
students who excel in their academic pursuits to finish their studies, and to
provide them with economic support and job opportunities. At the moment,
its main focus is on jewellery schools and business colleges. The foundation
will gradually extend its reach to other professional sectors to cultivate
talents of various specialisations for the jewellery industry. Over 270
students have benefited from the Chow Tai Fook Scholarship since its
establishment.

“The World’s Largest Pure Gold Winnie the Pooh”
Unveiling Ceremony (Hong Kong)

Chow Tai Fook was awarded a product license from Disney to exclusively
release a collection of Winnie the Pooh accessories and decorations. To
remark the partnership, Chow Tai Fook exquisitely presented “The World's
Largest Pure Gold Winnie the Pooh” with the approximate height of 113cm
and approximate weight of 448 taels (approximate weight of 529 taels
including the pure gold flower decorations) which was publicly showcased
at K11 Art Mall, Tsim Sha Tsui on 25 August 2011. This Winnie the Pooh
figurine showcases our formidable strengths in top notch jewellery making
skills and technologies.
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CTE X DTC "DIAMONDS IN THE SKY: HONG
KONG” Charity Auction Dinner (Hong Kong)

The charity auction, held on 20 September 2011, was aimed at helping the
needy in China and Africa through the China Charity Federation and the
Diamond Empowerment Fund. The dinner was attended by influential
community leaders from around the world, including Dr. Cheng Kar-shun
Henry, Chairman and Executive Director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group
Limited, Miss Varda Shine, CEO of Diamond Trading Company (DTC) and
Mr. Li Bengong, Vice President, China Charity Federation and Mr. Russell
Simmons, Chairman of the Advisory Board of Diamond Empowerment Fund
(DEF).
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Marketing Activities for “Danseuse de Ballet
Coloured Diamond Collection” (Hong Kong)

In November 2011, Chow Tai Fook arranged the premiere of “Danseuse de
Ballet Coloured Diamond Collection” in a private display for selected
customers. VIPs enjoyed a ballet repertoire and a catwalk show featuring
the new product line. On 25-26 February 2012, the selected VIPs were
invited to a private sale session for the “Danseuse de Ballet Coloured
Diamond Collection” and a pre-sale display of certain auction items.
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Major Events and Awards

BEAH A

Chow Tai Fook Paris Excursion for VIPs 2012
(Paris)

For the second year in a row, Chow Tai Fook offered emerging designers a
platform for international exchange during Paris Fashion Week by
supporting “Lightness of Being”, a show organised by Hong Kong's K11 Art
Mall in March 2012. Chow Tai Fook selected six jewellery masterpieces to
make their public debut and invited VIP members from Mainland China and
Hong Kong to travel to Paris to attend the show and exhibition. This
exclusive and luxurious tour demonstrated the brand’s customer-centric
service approach.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Auction 2012 — Stars in
the Starlight (Hong Kong)

“Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Auction 2012 — Stars in the Starlight” was held in
April 2012 at the Grand Ballroom of Grand Hyatt Hong Kong. 180 selected
VIPs from Mainland China and Hong Kong were invited to attend. 12 sets of
jewellery masterpieces were put on display between 27 to 29 April to
promote the auction. The auction was an important part of an initiative to
enhance Chow Tai Fook’s overall image. The auction featured innovative
ideas and artistic elements conceived by Mr. Cheng Chi-kong, Adrian,
executive Director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited, with the aim
of offering a discerning experience for our customers.
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Awards
China

Ranked 47th in “Top 500 Most Valuable Brands in China” (June
201

World Brand Lab announced that Chow Tai Fook ranked 47th in the “Top
500 Most Valuable Brands in China 201" with a brand value of RMB19.757
billion. For the past 8 years, Chow Tai Fook was ranked 1st in the jewellery
industry and the only jewellery company ranked within the top 100 brands.

Ranked 1st in Consolidated Market Share for Products of the Same
Category 2010 (March 2011)

At the prize giving ceremony for the “2010 (19th) Media Conference for the
Release of Statistics on Merchandise Sales in the PRC Market” and “New
Age of China’s Consumer-oriented Economic Development”, the

Chow Tai Fook brand was ranked 1st in consolidated market share for
products of the same category in 2010, marking the 7th consecutive year in
which Chow Tai Fook was ranked 1st in consolidated market share in the
PRC jewellery market. Chow Tai Fook was also awarded the honorary title
of “Star of the Champion”.

Hong Kong

Chow Tai Fook Bagged 4 Leading Awards in the “Hong Kong
Prestige Corporate Brand 2011” (Jewellery Retail Category)
(December 2011)

Chow Tai Fook was winner of 4 leading awards in the “Hong Kong Prestige
Corporate Brand 2011”, co-hosted by Ming Pao Daily and the Master of
Science Programme in Marketing of Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Chow Tai Fook was awarded the Enterprise Brand Award, Adjudicators’
Class Award, Hong Kong Consumers’ Award and Enterprise Brand Award —
Most Popular Hong Kong Brand for Mainland Chinese Consumers.

Chow Tai Fook was the only Hong Kong jewellery company that received
the Enterprise Brand Award.

Unionpay Top 10 Most Popular Hong Kong Merchants Voted by
Mainland Tourists 2011 (2011)

Chow Tai Fook’s jewellery shops in Hong Kong were voted among the “Most
Popular Hong Kong Unionpay Merchants for Mainland Tourists”, based on
the volume of Unionpay card payments and online voting.

Chow Tai Fook Garnered 3 Major Awards from Quality Tourism
Services Association (June 2011)

Chow Tai Fook received the 10-year Long-term Outstanding QTS Merchant
Certificate, Outstanding QTS Merchant Silver Award and Top 10 Most
Popular QTS Merchant Award (Online Voting in Mainland China) 2011 from
Quality Tourism Services Association.
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Prospects and Strategies
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Looking ahead, we are confident that in FY2013 we can achieve sustainable
growth for our business in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau where we
have spent decades building up our reputation. During the past five years,
Mainland China has seen amazing macroeconomic growth, and recently it
has enjoyed a relatively more favourable macro-economic environment
compared to the uncertain and complex macroeconomic conditions
globally. Mainland China’s twelfth five-year plan, unveiled in 2011, will
continue to reinforce domestic consumption as a strategic focus. Expanding
domestic demand is expected to be a pillar of economic growth for the next
five years as it is playing an increasingly important role in economic growth
in Mainland China. Rising income levels and improving living standards
amidst rapid urbanisation of the middle class, as well as favourable policies
including tax reforms, all contribute to stimulation of domestic consumption.
Continuous growth in the retail revenue of jewellery in Mainland China is the
realisation of a trend in which Mainland China may surpass other large
jewellery consuming countries. However, its consumption per capita is less
than that of the world average and less than one tenth of that in the United
States, which implies huge potential. Against the current macro environment
backdrop in Mainland China and a successful implementation of our
strategies as outlined below, we aim to double our revenue in three years’
time.

Strategies

As the leading jeweller by market share in Mainland China as well as in the
Hong Kong and Macau, we are well-positioned to capture the potential
growth in these markets through the following strategies.

Continue to recruit, develop and retain talent

We actively pursue a strategy to recruit, develop and retain talented
employees across all aspects of our integrated operations, which we believe
is central to our business success and reputation.

We have recently advanced our compensation structure to incentivise our
employees to perform well by aligning a portion of their compensation to
their individual performance as well as the overall business performance. As
a commitment to continuously improve our staff’'s well-being, we also
strengthened our staff benefits through more holidays, shortened working
hours and enhanced medical benefits, which are being implemented in
phases beginning in April 2012.

In light of our corporate values of “sincerity ¢ eternity”, we will continue to
provide tailored training programmes to our employees, align their
compensation and incentives with their performance, and offer them a clear
career path with opportunities for additional responsibilities and promotions,
aiming to strengthen their sense of belonging. We plan to add around 10
specialised jewellery training centres within the next five years.
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Strategies continuea)
Expand and upgrade retail network in high potential cities

As at 31 March 2012, we had 1,627 POS with the majority are located in
Mainland China, in particular, in Tier Il to IV cities (over 85% of our POS in
Mainland China). These cities enjoy higher growth rate and are more resilient
to economic downturns given Mainland China’s policies to upgrade the
lower income group to middle class, to stimulate domestic consumption
through favourable tax reform and to promote urbanisation.

With our POS opening experience and track record, we have well exceeded
our previous target and we currently expect to reach our target of 2,000
POS by the end of FY2014, earlier than planned. We aim to open a net
average of approximately 200 POS per year, by opening wholly-owned
POS and collaborating with joint venture partners and franchisees to
leverage on their local knowledge with a well-balanced portfolio at a ratio of
around 70:30 between self-operated stores and franchised stores but will
expand self-operated retail network in more inland and lower tier cities.

In addition, we have identified and carefully selected certain POS to expand
the gross floor area and provide more products for our customers’ selection
based on the analysis of Same Store Sales Growth, customer purchasing
powers and buying behaviour. These stores are primarily located in Tier |
and Tier |l cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen,
Chongging, Chengdu and Wuhan. The selected stores will be reformed to
equip with larger gross floor area, more gem-set jewellery products and
staffed with our top sales personnel to enhance shopping experience and
increase Same Store Sales Growth.

Drive innovative marketing concepts among loyal
customers

We will continue to organise innovative customer relationship activities for
members of our customer loyalty programme, such as well-organised visits
to renowned overseas events, prestigious private tours and private viewing
of new and distinguished collections. The exclusive designer jewellery
auction dinner held in Hong Kong in April 2012 attracted 180 VIPs by
showcasing and selling twelve one-of-a-kind collector pieces or sets and
generating auction proceeds of over HK$20 million, and we will continue to
organise similar events to promote our ultra-high-end collections and
enhance brand awareness. To attract new members and further solidify the
loyalty of existing members, we are refining our customer loyalty
programme with a view to offering a more satisfying shopping experience
for VIPs and a more attractive bonus point system to stimulate repeat
purchases.
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Strategies continuea)

Leverage vertical integration to introduce new collections
and more gem-set jewellery

The jewellery gift-giving tradition at ceremonial and festive events is deeply
rooted in the Chinese culture, especially for the Year of the Dragon, a
Chinese zodiac sign that symbolises fortune and power. We are introducing
more designer collections that target wedding and birth celebrations.
Designer collections enjoy pricing premium through marketing and
promotion campaigns and targeted advertising catering to customers’
sentimental preferences. In addition, we will promote cross-selling efforts to
enhance sales of gem-set jewellery products.

Relying on the vertically integrated business model and infrastructure we
have built over the years, we can closely monitor customer behaviour
through our advanced management information system so we can adjust
our product mix to capture changing market trends and replenish the top
selling items in a timely manner.

Strengthen value chain and further improve profitability

We will continue to strengthen our status as a preferred business partner
with key suppliers such as DTC and Rio Tinto, and explore additional
opportunities in procuring high quality raw materials to stabilise the prices
of jewellery components.

We will also continue to implement our gold hedging policy to significantly
reduce commodity price fluctuation risk through gold loan arrangements
and bullion forward contracts, so as to minimise the price risk and to
stabilise our gross margin effectively.

In addition, as a joint effort with department stores to cope with the
economic fluctuations and as appreciation of the Company’s long-term
cooperation and growing market share within department stores, several
department stores will lower the concessionaire rates for FY2013 for certain
product categories including high-end luxury jewellery items. In Hong Kong,
the management has negotiated longer term contracts (3-5 years) for
certain POS in prime locations to smoothen out rental rate hikes in a
particular year.

We have also launched a “Reform and Development Committee” in 2011 as
a long-term objective to further improve profitability through greater
efficiencies in manufacturing, selling, general and administrative expenses
and IT infrastructure. The construction of our new Mainland headquarters
office in Shenzhen commenced in early 2011 and is expected to be
completed by the end of 2013. We have also identified a site in Wuhan,
strategically located in Central China and expected to commence
production in 2016, for an integrated production and logistics centre with
extensive production, R&D and logistics facilities to shorten the production
lead-time and support future growth and demand.

With an aim to achieve long-term sustainable growth and solidify our brand
image of authenticity and the best products that money can buy, we will
continue to pursue our existing strategies of actively expanding our POS
network, introducing well-designed products, enhancing the shopping
experience, strengthening customer relationships and further improving
profitability, while balancing all of those efforts with careful risk management
and sound corporate governance.
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Honorary Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, GBM

aged 86, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as the Company’s
Honorary Chairman and non-executive Director in July 2011. Dr. Cheng is
responsible for advising on overall strategic planning and management of
the Group. He is a director of CTF HK. Dr. Cheng is also a non-executive
director of Shun Tak Holdings Limited and SJM Holdings Limited, chairman
and executive director of Melbourne Enterprises Limited, and chairman and
non-executive director of Lifestyle International, all of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He was the chairman and executive director of NWD until
his retirement on 1 March 2012. Dr. Cheng is a director of CTFE, CYT Family
Holdings, CYT Family Holdings II, CTF Capital and CTF Holding. Dr. Cheng is
the father of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the grandfather of Mr. Cheng
Chi-Kong, Adrian and Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, an uncle of Mr. Cheng
Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and the elder brother of
Mr. Cheng Yu Wai.

Chairman and Executive Director

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBS

aged 65, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as the Chairman and
executive Director in July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng is
responsible for the strategic direction and overall performance of the Group.
He is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Dr. Cheng is also the
chairman and executive director of NWD (re-designated from managing
director to chairman with effect from 1 March 2012), chairman and managing
director of New World China Land Limited, chairman and executive director
of NWS Holdings Limited and International Entertainment Corporation,
chairman and non-executive director of NWDS and Newton Resources Ltd
(appointed on 23 May 2012), non-executive director of Lifestyle International
and independent non-executive director of HKR International Limited. In
addition, Dr. Cheng is also a director of CYT Family Holdings, CYT Family
Holdings Il, CTF Capital and CTF Holding and CTFE. Dr. Cheng is the
chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong Kong Foundation,
chairman of the Advisory Panel of the Asian Management Institute and The
University of Western Ontario and a Standing Committee Member of the
Eleventh Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Dr. Cheng is
the eldest son of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, the father of Mr. Cheng Chi-
Kong, Adrian, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, a cousin of Mr.
Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and a nephew of
Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

aged 56, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as the Managing Director
in July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is responsible for the
overall management of the Group. Mr. Wong has diverse experience in both
operations and management. He was responsible for developing the
Group’s market in Mainland China and in 2008 he was promoted to
managing director of CTF HK. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group and a director of CTFE. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council Watches and Clocks Advisory Committee,
director of welfare of the Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association,
the chairman of the supervising committee of the Hong Kong & Kowloon
Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Employees’ Association Ltd, vice chairman of the
Gems and Jewellery Trade Association of China and vice-chairman of the
Yantian District General Chamber of Commerce.

Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian

aged 32, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 201. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the marketing activities of the
Group as well as customer relationship management and branding and
e-commerce operations. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng worked at
UBS AG from September 2003 to April 2006. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group, a director of CTF Holding and CTFE. Mr. Cheng is
an executive director of NWD (took up additional position as joint general
manager with effect from 1 March 2012), New World China Land Limited,
NWDS and International Entertainment Corporation and a non-executive
director of Giordano International Limited (appointed on 22 May 2012), all of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheng is the vice-chairman of
the All-China Youth Federation, a member of the Tianjin Municipal
Committee of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
vice-chairman of the Youth Federation of State-owned Enterprises, a
consultant of the Beijing Municipal Committee of The Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, chairman of the China Young Leaders
Foundation and the honorary chairman of Fundraising Committee, Wu Zhi
Qiao (Bridge to China) Charitable Foundation. Mr. Cheng obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree (cum laude) from Harvard University in March
2003. Mr. Cheng is a grandson of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a son of Dr.
Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, a nephew
of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and a
grand nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

aged 34, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for procurement of diamonds and
gemstones as well as production management. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Cheng had worked at Yu Ming Investment Management Limited from
1999 to 2000 as a corporate finance executive. Mr. Cheng is currently an
executive director of NWD. Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group and a director of CTFE and CTF Holding. He
obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from The University of
Western Ontario in June 1999. Mr. Cheng is a grandson of Dato’ Dr. Cheng
Yu-Tung, a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu,
Wilson and Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong,
Adrian and a grand nephew of Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.
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Executive Directors (continued)
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

aged 49, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 201. Mr. Chan is responsible for the Group’s Mainland China and
overseas operations. Mr. Chan has been in the jewellery industry for 31 years.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan is a
non-executive director of Giordano International Limited (appointed on 22
May 2012), which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan is a member of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council’s Jewellery Advisory
Committee, a director of the Gems and Jewellery Trade Association of
China, a vice-president of the Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery
Chamber of Commerce, a council member of the Shenzhen Gold Jewellery
Association, a vice-president of the Guangdong Jade Jewellery
Manufacturers Association, a director of the Gemological Association of
China and a director of the Gemmological Institute, China University of
Geosciences (Wuhan).

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert

aged 61, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as an executive Director in
July 2011. Mr. Chan is responsible for diamond procurement and operations
of the Group’s Diamond Department. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business
from Western lllinois University in August 1977. Mr. Chan is a Graduate
Gemologist of the Gemological Institute of America, a Fellow of The
Gemmological Association of Great Britain and a Lifetime Member of the
Gemological Institute of America, Alumni Association.

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

aged 37, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive Director
in July 2071, Mr. Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of
the Group and is responsible for the Group’s financial management and
company secretarial functions. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree in Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in December 1998. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

aged 47, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive Director in
July 2011. Mr. Suen is a general manager who is responsible for the Group’s
Hong Kong and Macau operations. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.
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Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

aged 53, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Cheng is responsible for the Group’s bank and
landlord relationship management. Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group and a director of CTFE. Mr. Cheng is currently an
executive director of International Entertainment Corporation, which is listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheng is vice-president of The Chinese Gold
and Silver Exchange Society. Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Economics from the University of Hawaii, Honolulu in December 1978. Mr.
Cheng is a nephew of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a cousin of Dr. Cheng
Kar-Shun, Henry, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, Mr. Cheng Chi-
Heng, Conroy, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy and a nephew of
Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Mr. Koo Tong-Fat

aged 61, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2011. He is responsible for the procurement of raw materials
— coloured stones, jadeite and pearls of the Group. Mr. Koo has been in the
jewellery industry for 36 years. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Group. Mr. Koo received a continuing education certificate in operations
management from the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong
Productivity Council in November 1994 and is also a full member of The
Hong Kong Management Association.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, GBM, GBS, CBE

aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Fung is the
founding chairman of the Fung Global Institute, an independent and non-
profit think-tank that generates and disseminates innovative thinking and
business-relevant research on global issues from Asian perspectives. He is
the honorary chairman and non-executive director of Li & Fung Limited
(relinquished from group chairman on 14 May 2012), chairman and non-
executive director of Convenience Retail Asia Limited and Trinity Limited, all
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, Dr. Fung is an
independent non-executive director of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange), Koc Holding A.S. (a company
listed on the Istanbul Stock Exchange), Baosteel Group Corporation and
China Petrochemical Corporation in the PRC. The Government of Hong
Kong awarded Dr. Fung the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2003 and the Grand
Bauhinia Medal in 2010 for his distinguished service to the community in
Hong Kong. In public service, Dr. Fung is honorary chairman of the
International Chamber of Commerce, a member of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a vice chairman of China Centre for International
Economic Exchanges, chairman of the Greater Pear| River Delta Business
Council, a member of the Commission on Strategic Development of the
Hong Kong Government.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors continued)

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Kwong is an
independent supervisor of the supervisory committee of Beijing Capital
International Airport Company Limited, an independent non-executive
director of Agile Property Holdings Limited, China Chengtong Development
Group Limited, China COSCO Holdings Company Limited, China Power
International Development Limited, CITIC Telecom International Holdings
Limited, Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited, Henderson Investment
Limited, Henderson Land Development Company Limited, NWS Holdings
Limited, OP Financial Investments Limited and Quam Limited, all of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Kwong was a Partner of Price
Waterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an independent member of the Council of
the Stock Exchange from 1992 to 1997, during which, he had acted as
convener of both the Compliance Committee and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBS, JP

aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam is also an independent non-executive
director of C C Land Holdings Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans Group
Limited, Hsin Chong Construction Group Limited, Sateri Holdings Limited
and Wynn Macau, Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lam is a member of the National Committee of the PRC People’s Political
Consultative Conference. He also holds a number of other public and
community service positions including being a member of the Legislative
Council in Hong Kong, the chairman of the Assessment Committee of Mega
Events Fund, a member of the board of Airport Authority Hong Kong, a
member of the board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority, a
member of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of Independent
Commission Against Corruption, a member of the Steering Committee on
the Community Care Fund, a council member of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council, a general committee member of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce and a member of the Fight Crime
Committee.

Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP

aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Or is also the chairman, chief executive officer and executive
director of China Strategic Holdings Limited (re-designated from vice-
chairman to chairman on 2 March 2012), vice-chairman and independent
non-executive director of G-Resources Group Limited, chairman and
independent non-executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited (appointed
as chairman on 13 June 2012) and independent non-executive director of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (appointed on 31 May
2012), all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Or was the former
vice-chairman of Hang Seng Bank Limited until his retirement in May 2009.
Mr. Or is currently the deputy chairman of the Council of City University of
Hong Kong.
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Honorary Advisers to the Board of Directors
Mr. Ho Pak-Tao

aged 81, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as an Honorary Adviser to
the Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising on
research and development. Mr. Ho is also a director of CTF Holding and
CTFE.

Mr. Wong Kwok-Ting

aged 81, joined the Group in 1947, was appointed as an Honorary Adviser to
the Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising on
procurement. Mr. Wong is also a director of CTF Holding and CTFE.

Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai

aged 79, joined the Group in 1949, was appointed as an Honorary Adviser to
the Board with effect from August 2011 and is responsible for advising on
procurement. Mr. Cheng is also a director of CTF Holding and CTFE. Mr.
Cheng is the younger brother of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, uncle of Dr.
Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, grand uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong Adrian and Mr.
Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, and the uncle of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, and
Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy.

Mr. Cheng Sek-Hung, Timothy

aged 61, joined the Group in 1994, was appointed as an Honorary Adviser to
the Board with effect from August 2011. Mr. Cheng is a director of certain
subsidiaries. Mr. Cheng is also a director of CTF Holding and CTFE. Mr.
Cheng is a nephew of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung, a cousin of Dr. Cheng
Kar-Shun, Henry, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong Adrian and Mr. Cheng
Chi-Heng, Conroy, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson and a nephew of
Mr. Cheng Yu-Wai.

Senior Management

Dr. Tan Guet-Lan, Lauren

aged 45, joined the Group in 2011, is the General Counsel of the Group. She
is responsible for overseeing the legal department of the Group. Dr. Tan is a
lawyer with over 18 years of international legal experience in regional and
global roles in Asia, North America and Europe providing legal advice and
support to multinational and start-up companies at both operational and
management level.

Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

aged 40, joined the Group as the director of Branding Department in 2010.
Mr. Chan is responsible for the branding and marketing activities of the
Group. Mr. Chan has over 17 years of experience in luxury branding and
marketing.

Mr. Wong Kim-Pun, Barry

aged 48, joined the Group in 1998, is the Group’s assistant financial
controller. Mr. Wong is responsible for the financing and treasury
management of the Group. He has over 18 years of experience in banking
and finance.
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Senior Management (continued)
Mr. Li Kit-Sang

aged 54, joined the Group in 1978, is the financial controller of the Production
Management Centre. Mr. Li is responsible for the financial and system
control of the Production Management Centre of the Group. Mr. Li has over
20 years of experience in accounting and information system and over 10
years of experience in gold inventory and gold hedging management.

Mr. Tsang Siu-Kwong

aged 41, joined the Group in 1993, is the senior manager of the Management
Information System Department. Mr. Tsang is responsible for the information
system of the Group. Mr. Tsang has over 19 years of experience in
information technology.

Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark

aged 51, joined the Group in 1986, is the senior manager of the Diamond
Department and is responsible for the operation of the Diamond
Department of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 25 years of experience in the
jewellery industry.

Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi

aged 40, joined the Group in 1994, is the senior manager in the Procurement
(Gemstones) Department. Mr. Cheng is responsible for managing and
purchasing the Group’s gemstones such as jadeite, colour stones and pearls.
Mr. Cheng has over 17 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Tam Chun-Wah, Daniel

aged 49, joined as the Head of Production Management Centre of the
Group in 2011. Mr. Tam is responsible for the Group’s production
management. He has over five years of experience in gold inventory
management.

Mr. Chan Dick-On, Collan

aged 40, joined the Group in 2010 as a manager. Mr. Chan is responsible for
the Group’s research and development. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in the jewellery design industry.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

aged 38, joined the Group in 1999, is the general manager responsible for
managing the Mainland China Management Centre. Mr. Liu has over 10 years
of experience in retail and administrative management.

Mr. Lee Kwok-Keung

aged 62, joined the Group in 1972, is the regional general manager
responsible for the Group’s businesses in southern China. Mr. Lee has over
30 years of experience in factory management and retail industry.
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Senior Management (continued)
Mr. Hon Kin-Sang

aged 55, joined the Group in 1973, is the regional general manager
responsible for the Group’s businesses in northern China. Mr. Hon has over
38 years of experience in production and retail industry.

Mr. So Kim-Shing

aged 52, joined the Group in 1989, is the regional general manager
responsible for the Group’s businesses in eastern China. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. So had over 10 years of experience in the retail industry.

Ms. Lau Pok

aged 62, joined the Group in 1999, is the regional general manager
responsible for the Group’s businesses in central China. Ms. Lau has over 10
years of experience in the investment in Mainland China and retail industry.

Mr. Kwok Hon-Cheung, Willis

aged 40, joined the Group in 1995, is the regional general manager
responsible for the Group’s businesses in western China. Mr. Kwok has over
17 years of experience in production and retail industry.

Mr. Chan Chee-Shing

aged 65, joined the Group in 1970, is the regional manager responsible for
the Group’s businesses in Kowloon and New Territories West District. Mr.
Chan has over 40 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Chan Wah-Ho

aged 52, joined the Group in 1977, is the regional manager responsible for
the Group’s businesses in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan has over 35 years of
experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Lui Yick-Keung

aged 55, joined the Group in 1978, is the regional manager responsible for
the Group’s businesses in Kowloon and Hong Kong. Mr. Lui has over 37
years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Chow Hung-Fai

aged 63, joined the Group in 1985, is the regional manager responsible for
the Group’s businesses in Kowloon and New Territories East District. Mr.
Chow has over 48 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Chau Hin-Fai

aged 68, joined the Group in 1962, is the regional manager responsible for
the Group’s businesses in Macau. Mr. Chau has over 49 years of experience
in the jewellery industry.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures. Throughout the period from the
Listing Date to 31 March 2012, the Company has complied with all the
applicable principles and code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, except for the deviation disclosed under the section headed
“Non-Executive Directors” in this report.

This report describes the Group’s corporate governance practices and
explains the applications of the principles of the CG Code. The Board will
review and improve the corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure that the Group is under the leadership of an effective board to
optimise return for shareholders.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors. Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2012.

As required under the CG Code, the Board has established written
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant employees in
respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company.

Board of Directors

The Board oversees the management, businesses, strategic directions and
financial performance of the Group. The Board currently comprises a total
of 15 Directors, with eight executive Directors, three non-executive Directors
and four independent non-executive Directors. The biographies of the
Directors are set out on pages 38 to 42 of this annual report.

The Board has delegated an Executive Committee comprising all executive
Directors namely Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, Mr.

Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong,

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert, Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton and Mr. Suen
Chi-Keung, Peter, with authority and responsibility for handling the
managerial and administrative functions and day-to-day operations of the
Group. The Executive Committee meets on a regular basis and as when
necessary.

The Articles of the Company provides that at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors (including non-executive Directors) for the time
being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) will retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years.
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Chairman and Managing Director

The Board has appointed a Chairman who provides leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Board works effectively and that all important issues
are discussed in a timely manner. The Managing Director takes the lead in
the Group’s operations and business development. The positions of the
Chairman and the Managing Director are held by separate individuals so as
to maintain an effective segregation of duties.

Non-Executive Directors

Non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on
the development, performance and risk management of the Group. The
non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term as is stipulated
in code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, but are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all
the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise in
accordance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Remuneration of Directors

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 17 November
2011 with specific written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management of the Group and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy for approval by
the Board.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year to review
and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management and making recommendations to the
Board about the remuneration of non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors and two executive Directors. Current members of
the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, Dr. Cheng
Kar-Shun, Henry, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor and
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon. It is currently chaired by Mr. Or Ching-Fai,
Raymond, an independent non-executive Director.
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Nomination of Directors

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 17 November 2011
with specific written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
re-appointment of Directors. The Nomination Committee had not held any
meeting during the year.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors and two executive Directors. Current members of the
Nomination Committee are Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, Dr. Cheng Kar-
Shun, Henry, Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent, Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey and Mr. Or
Ching-Fai, Raymond. It is currently chaired by Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor,
an independent non-executive Director.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 17 November 2011 with
specific written terms of reference. The Audit Committee is responsible for
the engagement of external auditor, review of the Group’s financial
information and oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management system.

The Audit Committee held one meeting during the year to review reports
on internal control system of the Group, and to discuss with the
management and the external auditors the accounting policies and practices
which may affect the Group and financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee reviewed the system of internal control and the financial
statements for FY2012 with recommendation to the Board for approval. The
audit plans from external auditors were also reviewed by the Audit
Committee and recommendation was made on the re-appointment of the
external auditors.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors. Current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Kwong Che-
Keung, Gordon, Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey and Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond.
It is currently chaired by Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon, an independent
non-executive Director.
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Attendance at Meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee

EXg BENZEg ¥HZEENRZZEENES

T AL SR

Number of Meetings Attended/

Eligible to attend for FY2012

202 MRFELE, AERLFEEHRE

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Meeting Committee Committee Committee
EEHR EEggR EREEY FHEEE REZEY
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRAE LT a4/4 — 1/1 0/0
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent EARELAE 4/4 — 1/1 0/0
Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian BRI ST A 4/4 — — -
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BB 4/4 — — —
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong E3eR=Ftes 4/4 — — -
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert FREEAE ST 3/4 — — -
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ERRER S A 4/4 — — -
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter FERTE 4/4 - - -
Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung 2EERTEL 4/4 — — —
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu Wilson EERIZ ST AE 4/4 — — -
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat HEBTAE 4/4 - - -
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor BEEIEL 2/2 — 1/1 0/0
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon AR E 2/2 /1 /1 —
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey VUNESZ e 2/2 1/1 — 0/0
Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond BRI 2/2 /1 1/1 0/0

There were four meetings of the Board held during FY2012.

Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in proposed transactions or contemplated issues are required to
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During FY2012, the total fee paid/payable in relation to statutory audit work
of the Group amounted to HK$5.1 million, of which a sum of HK$3.5 million
was paid/payable to the principal auditor Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and
the remaining was mainly paid/payable to other auditors performing audit
work for the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China which were subject
to local statutory requirements. The remuneration paid to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu and its affiliated firms for services rendered is listed as follows:

EETER 202 FHRFEERITHAERE -

FEENRETRIREBRTFENETRIHEEE
Rigs - REARBARERBERSR

ZERDEV BN &

AEBR 202 M BEFER L EZEERTIEEN, &N
el ASIABET  HREN BN EZ2ZEMm
Ry - WEROEAMITISBRET  SRAURE
A E B A P B R AR T AR R TT Y AR AR
BN D o ptERHREE 1R - B
BRT GETANT R EEE ARSI MT

2012
2012 F
HK$’000
FHT

Types of services JiEy % ki)
Statutory audit JETEBIZ
Non-audit services (Note) SEEAZPRTE (AYEE)

3,500
390

3,890

Note: Non-audit services comprise primarily tax advisory services provided to the
Group.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Board, supported by the finance department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. The
Board has prepared the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by International
Accounting Standard Board. Appropriate accounting policies have also
been used and applied consistently. The Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company and the Group regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company
and the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 69
to 70 of this annual report.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is Mr. Cheng Ping Hei, Hamilton. He is also an
executive Director and is employed by the Company on a full-time basis.
Please refer to his biographical details which are set out on page 40 of this
annual report.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Board and senior management maintain a continuing dialogue with the
Company’s shareholders and investors through various channels including
the Company’s annual general meeting. The Chairman, Managing Director,
chairmen of board committees (or respective designated member) and
external auditors will attend the annual general meeting. The Directors will
answer guestions raised by the shareholders on the performance of the
Group. Our corporate website which contains corporate information,
announcements as well as the recent developments of the Group enables
shareholders to have timely and updated information of the Group.

Any one or more shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the Company’s
paid-up capital may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the related requisition
deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s headquarters at
38/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.
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Investor Relations

The Company is committed to promoting open and constructive
conversations with shareholders, analysts, media and potential investors.
Key information on the Company and the business development of the
Company are available on our corporate website (www.chowtaifook.com).

The investor relations team which comprises the executive Directors and
senior management, hosts active dialogues with analysts, investors and
public through investors’ conferences, regular meetings and updates with
institutional investors, as well as media interviews and press releases etc.
Following the listing on 15 December 2011, the Company participated in
three investor conferences and over 70 one-on-one meetings.

The Company intends to hold press and analysts conferences at least twice
a year following the release of interim and full year results announcements
at which the executive Directors and senior management of the Group are
available to answer questions regarding the performance of the Group.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for safeguarding
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable
laws, rules and regulations. The procedures provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

In the year under review, the Board has reviewed, through the Audit
Committee, the Group’s internal control system and is not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the internal control system.

Corporate Social Responsibility

We believe our corporate social responsibility efforts reflect our corporate
values of “sincerity ¢ eternity”, which guide us to give back to our local
communities by supporting many charitable causes. With an aim to aid
education initiatives in developing economically disadvantaged people in
African nations that produce diamonds, we support the Diamond
Empowerment Fund. We are also a keen supporter of the China Charity
Federation, a nationwide non-governmental charitable organisation
supporting relief efforts in Mainland China.

Our subsidiary, CTF Diamond Trading Company Limited, is a member of the
Responsible Jewellery Council which is an international not-for-profit
organisation that advances responsible business practices throughout the
diamond and gold jewellery supply chain. Our subsidiary, CTF HK, which is a
DTC sightholder, complies with DTC's best practice principles covering
business, social and environmental responsibilities as well as mining
standards. In order to ensure the rough diamonds for our jewellery come
from sources that are free of conflict, all of them are imported through the
Kimberley Process Certification Scheme.
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Report of the Directors
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for FY2012.

Group Reorganisation and Initial Public Offering

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
on 20 July 2011. Pursuant to the group reorganisation to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the Initial Public Offering and listing
of the Company’s shares, the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group. The shares of the Company were
subsequently listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 15
December 2011. Details of the group reorganisation during the year are set
out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is one of the
largest jewellers in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China by market share
with an extensive retail network. Our principal products are mass luxury and
high-end luxury jewellery products, including gem-set jewellery, gold
products, platinum/karat gold products and watches. The activities of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for FY2012 are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 71.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK10.0
cents per share amounting to approximately HK$1,000.0 million. Such
payment of dividends will be subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday,
7 August 2012 and are payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on 24 August
2012.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the year
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group is set out
on page 143.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital during the year are set out in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements.

56

BEEEMIREEAAT 20 MEEERARAEE
KEIZIF AR ©

SESHNERAFEE

ARRB—FKR20NEF7 A20 HRFHS S ML
ZERAE - REABEASEREUNEES XA
BERADNRRM EMmET 2 EEEMR - AQEK
AEREKRAEERSARMZER AR - AARRGHHE
BR20NF12 AISHBEBRZFER LT - FRZEE
BHAFBHINREEMBEREM T 2R -

FEER

ARBB—FEEERAE - REBMEES B
FEAMETISEE RRAKER 2 —  HMAEKR
MEERE - RPN ETBERATRKRERZEHKE
Em BREXRESEHEH Z2EM AL KEE
mA KB - T KB AR MEEHIINGE M KR
F<P1E%38 -

ES Y &
ARER 2012 REEOEEBIIRENEFAR
s -

EEEEBRMNERI0.0BIAE EL10000EEE
TTHRIIRE o IRBEZEREAFREEAR A BR
202F8A7H(EH )BTV EERRBFRE
B WRNR2012F8 A24 HE £ MERE LT
KRARRERAM 2 REEAEZERE

WK R Mt
FAME - BB RREOEE RS BB RA N
17

M E
AEENEERAERBEBERIINE4IE -

(RN

FRBRANES IR AR BRERME 3 -



Reserves

Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 74. Distributable reserves of the
Company at 31 March 2012 amounted to approximately HK$6,527.9 million.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

The Company had not redeemed any of its listed securities during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2012. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2012.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Non-Executive Directors

Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat

(appointed on 26 July 2011)
(appointed on 26 July 201)
(appointed on 26 July 201)
(appointed on 26 July 201)
(appointed on 26 July 2011)
(appointed on 26 July 2011)
(appointed on 26 July 2011)
(appointed on 26 July 201)

(appointed on 26 July 201)
(appointed on 26 July 201
(appointed on 26 July 2011)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

(appointed on

17 November 2011)
(appointed on

17 November 2011)
(appointed on

17 November 2011)
(appointed on

17 November 2011)

In accordance with articles 83 and 84 of the Articles, Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong,
Adrian, Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong, Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, Mr. Cheng Ping-
Hei, Hamilton, Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon,
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey and Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.
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Directors (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company
and any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
financial year or at any time during the reporting year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and

Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares

and Debentures of the Company or Associated

Corporation

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors and

the chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out

in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares

é%&ﬁﬂlwﬁEAK GIEREL:P
lZHx C EBAR D R EREE R

&/KF’

MR202F3A31H  ARREERFETHRAERE
E2HMBARADAREEB ZE(EERESF LS
EIEPIEXVER) B D - ARG MEEES - EE
mﬁ A RHIEEMEXVPE7RESHIEMNS A
RNEI R R Tz s KRB SRR S KB E 55
FEIS2EMTE  BHERATHFENECLMAZERS L
HAE - BAREEYI R TR R e+ iR e A - 8
MEARNB) LIRS AR E T

RBRBz2HE
Number of shares
ROEE
Approximate
Personal Spouse Corporate % of
interests interests interests Total shareholding
BEREL
BARER Bz EEER a5t ERrilsd
The Company (ordinary shares AATF(BER
of HK$1 each) SREE1ET)
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry BRAE L 1,900,000 1,900,000 0.02
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent =IRELE 12,000 12,000 0.00
Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian AR ST AE 20,000? 20,000 0.00
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong =t 12,000 12,000 0.00
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert R A L4 12,000 12,000 0.00
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton EPRER LA 4,800 4,800 0.00
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BEmEE 3,600 3,600 0.00
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat HEBLE 12,000 12,000 0.00
International Entertainment B REERAE (&
Corporation (ordinary shares BEREE1ET)
of HK$1 each)
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter bt e 4,000 4,000 8,000 0.00
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat mERLE 100,000 6,000 106,000 0.01
Note: HtaE -
m These shares are beneficially-owned by a company which is wholly-owned by m ZERDBEEERLEZEHEN— RIERHES -
Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 March 2012, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in shares

EERRR

BHHLE

N Rz

RES RAEIGOIE 336 RATFENE ML

TERR(EER TR AR202F3I A3NBEFHENR
AEIRMD RAER DR SABR T ¢

RRGOZHE
Number of shares
BB E
Approximate

Beneficial Corporate % of
Name interests interests Total shareholding
=18 BERER EE R aFt ER#HEAL
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited @ 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.34
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited @ 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.34
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited @ 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.34
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited @ 8,933,937,400 8,933,937,400 89.34
Note: Mt -
(M CYT Family Holdings and CYT Family Holdings Il each holds approximately (I CYT Family Holdings % CYT Family Holdings I1%

49.0% and 46.7% interest in CTF Capital, respectively, which in turn holds an
approximately 74.1% interest in CTF Holding and accordingly each of CYT
Family Holdings, CYT Family Holdings Il and CTF Capital is respectively deemed
to have an interest in the shares of the Company. CTF Holding directly holds the
shares of the Company.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a written Y .
A 3 2
resolution of all the then shareholders of the Company passed on 17 DEBERE

November 2011,

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced personnel,
to incentivise them to remain with the Group and to motivate them to strive
for the future development and expansion of the Group by providing them
with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company. The Board
may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Scheme to the Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors), the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries and

W CTF Capital 9 BliFH 449.0% [ 46.7% 7 + M
CTF Capital Bl A CTF Holding # B #)74.1% # 25
E Itk CYT Family Holdings * CYT Family Holdings
I| X CTF Capital &#RARERRBIRG R EE LR -

il CTF Holding RIE#ZEFA AR QGRS ©

REA T E
RIB20NEN A7 BARRER /R E—BERBEN
AR T —IERE AR AT B ([ 52 A

&) e

employees of the Group and any other persons (including consultants or
advisers) whom the Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have

contributed or will contribute to the Group.

60

ZETEE A RBREERNARBRENKR SRS AR
BEMEROAR  BBRELZEAEE  SBERK
SEMREREREBERMB D - EFFARBEREZ
AEMEENERASYAREEL LB IELERA
EF(ORUTES FUTEFRBUFNTE
%) ARFMBRARMNES  ARENESIAREMR
Hih A+ (BEBAARER) X LBRE -



Share Option Scheme (continued)

Total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the Listing Date,
being 1,000,000,000 shares (“Scheme Mandate Limit”), which represented
10% of the shares as at the date of annual report. The Company may renew
the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval provided that each
such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the Company in issue as
at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding options which
have been granted and have yet to be exercised pursuant to the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the manner as set out
in the Scheme, the maximum number of shares underlying the options
granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1.0% of the
shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by a grantee (the
“Option Period”) shall be the period to be determined and notified by the
Board to the grantee at the time of making an offer, which shall not expire
later than 10 years from the offer date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an option may
be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any time during the
Option Period in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and the terms
on which the option was granted.

No amount is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an offer of an
option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any event shall
not be less than the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the offer date,
which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date; or (¢) the nominal
value of the shares.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the date of
conditional adoption, i.e. 17 November 2011.

During the year, no options have been granted, exercised or cancelled.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or Associated Corporation” and “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the year was the Company, any subsidiary or its
holding company or any fellow subsidiary, a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$17.6 million.

Remuneration Policy and Pension Scheme

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making reference
to legal framework, market condition and performance of the Group and
individual staff (including the Directors). The remuneration policy and
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and member of the senior
management of the Group are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee.

Particulars of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions of the Group constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions (“Continuing Connected Transactions”) for the
Company during FY2012 under the Listing Rules:

€))

(b)

NWDS Master Concessionaire Counter Agreement

On 22 March 2012, the Company entered into a master concessionaire
counter agreement (the “NWDS Master Concessionaire Counter
Agreement”) with NWDS from the relevant effective date up to 30
June 2014 (both days inclusive), pursuant to which NWDS agreed to,
and to procure its subsidiaries to, provide floor space in the NWDS
stores to members of the Group from time to time for exhibiting and
selling jewellery during the term of the NWDS Master Concessionaire
Counter Agreement.

It has been expected that the aggregate fees payable by the Group
under the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
NWDS Master Concessionaire Counter Agreement for FY2012, FY2013
and FY2014 will not exceed the annual caps of approximately
HK$139.0 million, HK$245.0 million and HK$370.0 million, respectively.

The aggregate fees payable under the NWDS Master Concessionaire
Counter Agreement were approximately HK$121.0 million for FY2012.

Lifestyle International Framework Agreement

On 29 November 2011, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Lifestyle International (the “Lifestyle International
Framework Agreement”) with effect from the Listing Date to 31 March
2014, pursuant to which the Group has entered into various
transactions with members of Lifestyle International in relation to
concessionaire arrangements in respect of retailing counters for the
sale of jewellery and watches at Lifestyle International’s properties in
Hong Kong and Mainland China by the Group; and leasing of premises
at Lifestyle International group’s property in Tianjin.

It has been expected that the aggregate amount payable by the
Group under the continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the Lifestyle International Framework Agreement for each of
FY2012, FY2013 and FY2014 will not exceed the annual caps of
approximately HK$42.0 million, HK$68.0 million and HK$117.0 million,
respectively.

The aggregate fees payable under the Lifestyle International
Framework Agreement were approximately HK$37.8 million for
FY2012.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
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NWD Tenancy Framework Agreement

On 28 November 2011, the Company entered into a tenancy
framework agreement (the “NWD Tenancy Framework Agreement”)
with NWD with effect from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014,
pursuant to which the Group has entered into various tenancy
arrangements with members of the NWD group to lease certain
premises for the use of offices and retail shops.

It has been expected that the aggregate rental amount payable by
the Group under the continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the NWD Tenancy Framework Agreement for each of FY2012,
FY2013 and FY2014 will not exceed the annual caps of approximately
HK$70.0 million, HK$125.0 million and HK$136.0 million, respectively.

The aggregate rental amount payable under the NWD Tenancy
Framework Agreement was approximately HK$58.5 million for
FY2012.

CTFE Tenancy Framework Agreement

On 28 November 2011, the Company entered into a tenancy
framework agreement (the “CTFE Tenancy Framework Agreement”)
with CTFE with effect from the Listing Date to 31 March 2014,
pursuant to which the Group has entered into various tenancy
arrangements with members of the CTFE group to lease certain
premises for the retail shops, residential, industrial and office use.

It has been expected that the aggregate rental amount payable by
the Group under the continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the CTFE Tenancy Framework Agreement for each of FY2012,
FY2013 and FY2014 will not exceed the annual caps of approximately
HK$49.0 million, HK$97.0 million and HK$97.0 million, respectively.

The aggregate rental amount payable under the CTFE Tenancy
Framework Agreement was approximately HK$42.0 million for
FY2012.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
(e) NWDS Master Sales Agreement

On 22 March 2012, the Company entered into a master sales
agreement (the “NWDS Master Sales Agreement”) with NWDS and
NWD effective from 22 March 2012 to 30 June 2014 (both days
inclusive), pursuant to which NWDS Group allowed the use of the
shopping vouchers, the prepaid shopping cards, the joint name
vouchers or other means acceptable to the NWDS Group as payment
of purchases of goods at the NWDS stores and the settlement of the
relevant value represented by such shopping vouchers (with the
shopping vouchers commissions and rebates), the prepaid shopping
cards (with the discounts, where applicable), the joint name vouchers
(with the joint name vouchers commissions) or by any other means
acceptable to the NWDS group among relevant members of the
NWDS group, the NWD group or the Group.

It has been expected that the aggregate transaction amounts payable
by the Group under the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the NWDS Master Sales Agreement for each of
FY2012, FY2013 and FY2014 will not exceed the annual caps of
approximately HK$31.0 million, HK$60.0 million and HK$85.0 million,
respectively.

The aggregate transaction amounts payable under the NWDS Master
Sales Agreement were approximately HK$19.2 million for FY2012.

Relationships between connected parties

CTF Holding is the holding company of CTFE and a substantial shareholder
of the Company. CTFE and the Company are subsidiaries of CTF Holding
and therefore CTFE is a connected person of the Company.

CTFE is a substantial shareholder of NWD. NWD is a substantial shareholder
of NWDS and hence a connected person of NWDS. Each of NWD and
NWDS is an associate of CTF Holding and therefore a connected person of
the Company.

CTFE is the holding company of Go Create Limited. Go Create Limited is
directly interested in 50% of the equity interest in Real Reward Limited, the
direct controlling shareholder of Lifestyle International. By virtual of CTF
Holding'’s indirect shareholding in Lifestyle International, Lifestyle
International is an associate of CTF Holding under the Listing Rules. As CTF
Holding is a connected person of the Company, Lifestyle International is
therefore a connected person of the Company.

Therefore, transactions under (a) to (e) above constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

Annual review of the continuing connected transactions
All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been reviewed by
the independent non-executive Directors who have confirmed that for
FY2012 the Continuing Connected Transactions have been entered into (i)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to (or from) independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain review procedures in respect of
the Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has reported the review procedures to the Board and confirmed
that for FY2012 the Continuing Connected Transactions (i) have received
approval of the Board; (ii) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group, where applicable; (iii) have been entered into in accordance with the
terms of the agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) have not
exceeded the respective cap amounts for FY2012 as set out above in
respect of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related party transactions that did
not constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules made during
the year were disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group’s revenue were attributed by
the Group’s five largest customers and 58.0% of the Group’s total purchases
were attributed by the Group’s five largest suppliers and 34.2% of the
Group’s total purchases were attributed by the Group’s largest supplier. To
the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or any shareholders
who owned 5.0% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 March 2012 or any of their respective associates held any interest in any
of the five largest suppliers of the Group.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the Directors
confirm that the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of
10%, which is a lower prescribed percentage of public float requirement
accepted at the discretion of the Stock Exchange.

Auditor

The financial statements of the Company have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 71to 142, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2012 and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

retmiER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 & ZE 2012 F 3 A 31 BIFFE

2012 201
20125 20114
NOTES HK$ million HK$ million
Kzt BEAT BEET
Revenue EEE 8 56,571.1 35,0425
Cost of goods sold SHERA (40,123.2) (25,114.9)
Gross profit EF 16,447.9 9,927.6
Other income EH A 9 227.2 194.6
Other gains and losses E b e K& E 10 17.4 399
Selling and distribution costs $HE MDA (6,319.9) (4,401.9)
Administrative expenses ITHRX (1,714.6) 9N.4)
Other expenses HEMfx (129.0) a22.n
Finance costs BhE KA 7 (363.1) (102.2)
Share of results of an associate DME—REE R R 2 A = 4.7
Profit before taxation B A% F 2 8,165.9 4,619.8
Taxation g 4 (1,595.0) (947.3)
Profit for the year FEERA 6,570.9 36725
Other comprehensive income 2 mkas
— exchange differences arising on translation —BEEAMERZE 352.7 360.0
— share of translation reserve of an associate — DME—REERAZ
BE 15 21
354.2 362.1
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHWEHAE 6,925.1 4,034.6
Profit for the year attributable to: DT &FEMEEERF :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ YN 6,340.6 35376
Non-controlling interests IR 230.3 134.9
6,570.9 36725
Total comprehensive income attributable to: ATE&FEMEEKRFHEEE
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE PN 6,678.4 3,886.5
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR I 246.7 1481
6,925.1 4,034.6
Earnings per share — Basic BREF — &EXK 15 HK68.5 centsiE{ll HK39.5 centsi# Il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BILE

At 31 March 2012 7 2012 F 3 A 31 H

2012 201
20124 20114
NOTES HK$ million HK$ million
Bt BHEBT BEET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - B KA 17 1,687.5 1165.3
Prepaid lease payments TEfFRERIE 18 95.7 873
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, IR ~ R AR
plant and equipment Bfttas 349.7 2317
Interest in an associate R—REE QR 2 e 9 10.1 452
Loan receivables FEUETR 20 13.0 16.0
2,156.0 15455
Current assets RENERE
Inventories FE 21 29,694.2 17,100.8
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E M ESEIE 22 5,323.4 32277
Amounts due from related companies UL AR A B F0E 23 - 1,278.3
Loan receivables FEUER 20 163.8 1353
Convertible bonds A RRES 24 24.8 —
Derivative financial instruments PTHEESRTA 25 47.3 —
Pledged bank deposits BIIFIRI T 26 17.0 156.3
Bank balances and cash RITEREES 26 9,987.8 5604.8
45,258.3 27,503.2
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K HAhE H?KIE 27 1,838.4 20496
Amounts due to related companies NG 23 - 78333
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders EAWBA T%HIHX
of subsidiaries [EEE 28 400.3 164.7
Taxation payable FETIE 598.5 353.0
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITER — —FREIH 29 5,574.2 2,881.0
Gold loans =2BE 30 5,806.6 39316
14,218.0 17,2132
Net current assets RENEEFE 31,040.3 10,290.0
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARE 33,196.3 17,8355
Non-current liabilities FEREBE
Retirement benefit obligations %JNE%‘ I 35 196.9 162.6
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITER — —F&REH 29 3,426.4 —
3,623.3 162.6
Net assets BEZH 29,573.0 1,672.9
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BILE

At 31 March 2012 7 2012 F 3 A 31 A

2012 201

20124 20114

NOTE HK$ million HK$ million

Bt BHEBT BEET

Share capital/paid-in capital B BEEAR 37 10,000.0 700.1
Reserves & 18,978.3 10,606.8
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RATHEE AEGER 28,978.3 11,306.9
Non-controlling interests IR ES 594.7 366.0
29,573.0 11,6729

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71to 142 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2012 and
signed on- its behalf by:

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
BRMAELT
DIRECTOR

EFE
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ZIREIBWER - YHATRERES

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

BRERE
DIRECTOR
2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AEREDE

/\\/ \

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z 2012 4 3 A 31 HILFE

Share Attributable
capital/ Statutory to owners Non-
paid-in Share Special surplus  Translation Retained ofthe  controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Company interests Total
BA/ B EERG LG 2PN
- RDEE KBl -1 53 BERE REEF FElE FERED it
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEAT BEBT BEAT BEBT BEAT BEBT BEAT BEAT BEAT
(note 31) (note a) (note b)
(Hii31) (Hiita) (Hitp)
At 1 April 2010 20105418 6981 - 1005.3 369.7 4509 56328 8156.8 1786 83354
Exchange differences arising BEESNERESE
from translation - - - - 3468 - 3468 132 360.0
Share of reserve of an associate ~ AME— KL RG] FHE - - - - 21 - 21 - 21
Profit for the year Bt - - — - - 35376 35376 1349 36725
Total comprehensive income FEEAREEER
for the year — - — - 3489 35376 3,886.5 1481 40346
Acquisition of subsidiaries LW%MTE
(Note 32) (it ) - - - - - - - 229 229
Acquisition of additional interest H?Eﬁhl&?l&ﬂé
in a subsidiary from Pﬁ% NIEPIN
non-controlling shareholders - - — - — 03 03 19 16)
Issue of shares “T“??ﬁ 20 - - - - - 20 - 20
Capital contributions from PR A R JEHERR
non-controlling shareholders BEEE
of subsidiaries — — — — - — - 209 209
Net contributions from Macau ~ BPFIRE L2
jewellery business BENFR - - 4460 - - (4280) 180 — 180
Transfers 43 - - - 273 - (273) - - -
Dividends (458 - - — - — (756.7) (756.7) 26) (759.3)
At 31 March 2011 201138318 7001 - 14513 3970 7998 79587 13069 %60 16729
Exchange differences arising BEELMELZES
from translation - - - - 336.3 - 336.3 16.4 352.7
Share of reserve of an associate  AME—FEE AT 2 - - - - 15 - 15 - 15
Profit for the year ¢ Epauil = = = = = 6,340.6 6,340.6 230.3 6,570.9
Total comprehensive income FEZENGEE
for the year - - - - 337.8 6,340.6 6,678.4 246.7 6,925.1
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHIB AR
(Note 32) (Hi32) = - - - - - - 23 23
Arising from a group REEEEA
reorganisation (700.1) - 700.1 - - - - - -
Capitalisation issue BERBT 8,950.0 (8,950.0) - - - - - - -
Issue of shares Bin 817 1,050.0 14,700.0 - - - - 15,750.0 - 15,750.0
Transaction costs attributable B &1TREIER FHA
toissue of shares - (251.3) - - - - (251.3) = (251.3)
Capital contributions from B AR EERBRFEEE
non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 259 259
Acquisition of additional interests  UBs it B 2 F1ESME R
in subsidiaries - - - - - (11 (1.1 (1.0) 20
Net contributions from Macau ~ RPIAE £ 2 E#NFE
jewellery business - - 3481 - - (347.6) 0.5 - 0.5
Transfers [ - - - 44.4 - (44.4) - - -
Dividends [45) = = = = - (4,505.1) (4,505.1) (45.2) (4,550.3)
At 31 March 2012 202%3A[318 10,000.0 5,498.7 2,499.5 4414 1,137.6 9,401.1 28,9783 594.7 29,573.0

Notes: Bt

(a)  Special reserve as at 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011 represents the accumulated (@) M2010%F4A18 OH FIA3NH - FRIFEEIERM
contribution from the Macau jewellery business. BEBEKZRTE
Special reserve as at 31 March 2012 represents (i) the accumulated contribution R2012%F 3 A31H - FhlEHEE () RFIRBE XK 2 25
from the Macau jewellery business and (ii) the difference between the nominal BRE D fﬂ R T &M B A B MR (D (E
value of the shares of various subsidiaries under common control, and cash RiEE @iﬁﬁﬁf WEHRESI THEARES N2 RE
consideration payable arising from acquisition of these subsidiaries under KFZE%’E FERABBARRZBROREBHERS
common control pursuant to the group reorganisation as more fully explained in R A A IT&%/XJ: M BEA20MFE12A5B8 21
the section headed “History and Corporate Structure” of the prospectus of the RER [FELRAEIERE] —anRd -

Company dated 5 December 2011 in connection with the initial listing of the
shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited .

(b)  As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment (o) ZEEBTENMIMECZORMERZRER  AAFH
enterprises in Mainland China, the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are FEAKBARBAFEELATERHEEES - BHEHE
required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund. Appropriation to such Z%fm—ﬂ? B B AT B A R AYSE TE B A Rk (IRIE
reserve is made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in the statutory B A4 1 2 i A A9 FiiBE

AR AR RE) ﬁiﬁzi’]
WAIABENMEETZ I NBREER -

W$
=
iy

FF5E - ErBBREEZSTANBERR
(A) -

financial statements of the subsidiaries in Mainland China in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to enterprises in Mainland China. The
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any,
and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meEBRTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z 2012 £ 3 A 31 HILFE

2012 201
20124 20114
NOTE HK$ million HK$ million
Bt BHEBT BEET
Operating activities R TEED
Profit before taxation FRE AR F 8,165.9 4619.8
Adjustments for: TS EELAE
Interest income FEWA (88.9) (70.3)
Interest expenses FERX 363.1 102.2
Share of results of an associate DME—KEEE AR 2 A - 4.7
Fair value change of gold loans H5EEENATERZS 345.8 7257
Fair value change of derivative financial PTESBMTANATE
instruments by (47.3) —
Depreciation e 390.5 246.8
Discount on acquisition of a subsidiary W RERT B AR Z TR 32 - a7.2)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B E SIS 1.0 79
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - HENE
and equipment KEE 4.4 56
Goodwill written off Bl E 33 —
Provision for defined benefit obligations B RR KA R SE 41.8 55
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESHER 2 LE
working capital Ben=E 9,189.6 5,630.7
Increase in inventories FEEN (12,071.6) (7,507.8)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E AU GRIEE N (2,147.4) (675.3)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables & 5 [z Eofth < 7038 G2 ) 1€ 0 (284.7) 676.6
Defined benefits paid B ERRR IR (7.5) (6.9
Cash used in operations LEFTRAIR S (5,321.6) 1,882.7)
Interest received BUFIE 20.4 -
Income tax paid B FTEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax EAERER (436.4) (246.5)
Enterprise Income Tax in Mainland China R A TSR (916.1) (483.1)
Net cash used in operating activities RETBTAZRESFE (6,653.7) (2,612.3)
Investing activities HEEE
Interest received BYFIE 68.5 70.3
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BIRAIRITFERORD 143.0 68.3
Advance to related companies R RHE A RIVEH 2 B3R — 1081
Repayment from related companies REBEB AR ZER 1,278.3 69211
Purchase and deposits paid for acquisition BEWZE  WEMEE
of property, plant and equipment REH 2% e (867.2) (768.9)
Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights W ERES N2 RS — (55.0)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEDE  BENERERN
and equipment Ff5 508 13.5 24
Loan advanced by the Group AEBDBTHER (33.7) (CD)
Repayment of loan to the Group BEETFTAEEZER 8.2 26.1
Investment in convertible bonds AR HRES (24.8) -
Net cash (outflow) inflow from KB AREEZ RS
acquisition of subsidiaries () mAEEE 32 (145.4) 30
Dividends from an associate —KEE N AIE 36.6 —
Net cash from (used in) investing activities RETHEE (TR 2RLFHE 477.0 (75.9)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 & ZE 2012 4 3 A 31 BILFE

2012 201
20124 20114
NOTE HK$ million HK$ million
Bt BEET BEAT
Financing activities BEEEED
Interest paid EAIFIE (363.1) (102.2)
Bank borrowings raised EERITERX 17,156.5 4,278.9
Repayment of bank borrowings BBIRITER (11,125.0) (1,601.5)
Advance from related companies R BN TR 4,654.7 71345
Repayment to related companies BN TR AR (12,487.5) (4,673.0)
Capital contribution from non-controlling WA RISEERRE
shareholders of subsidiaries TE 25.9 20.9
Acquisition of additional interest of subsidiaries UG BB M B A B BRI ME RS (X)) 1.6)
Proceeds on issue of shares BT TS EE 15,750.0 2.0
Transaction costs attributable to issue of shares BTN R B AR (251.3) —
Dividend paid BRRE (4,543.2) (9.3)
Gold loans raised CEEESEER 4,717.1 2,436.4
Repayment of gold loans BEESEER (3,254.5) (1,452.3)
Advance from non-controlling shareholders DEL PN 220
of subsidiaries HQ%E’\E&%{ 223.7 943
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders EETFHER
of subsidiaries FEE Hxﬁx% 4.2) (19.8)
Net cash from financing activities BRETHREENRS TR 10,497.0 6,107.3
Net increase in cash and RERRESEEYIEMFE
cash equivalents 4,320.3 3,419.1
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FYHNRERREEED
of the year 5,604.8 2,106.7
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXRESFNFE 62.7 79.0
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ERNRASRRSZEY -
of the year, representing BERITABRRE S
bank balances and cash 9,987.8 5604.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE TS ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z 2012 £ 3 A 31 HILFE

1. General

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 20
July 20T11. Its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 15
December 2011. Its immediate holding company is Chow Tai Fook
(Holding) Limited (“CTF Holding”), and its ultimate holding company
is Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, both are incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
38. The address of registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of
principal place of business is 38/F, New World Tower, 16-18 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

2.  Group Reorganisation and Basis of Preparation
of Consolidated Financial Statements

Through a group reorganisation to rationalise the structure of the
Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “"Group”) in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange (the “Group Reorganisation”), the Company has
become the holding company of the Group on 30 September 2011.

As part of the Group Reorganisation, companies comprising the
Group were restructured into four principal subsidiaries as below:

(@) Majestic Project Limited ("Majestic”) — all of the subsidiaries
held directly or indirectly by Majestic are mainly involved in the
procurement and manufacturing aspect of the business;

(b)  Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited (“"CTF Jewellery”)
— most of the subsidiaries held directly or indirectly by CTF
Jewellery are involved in jewellery business in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Taiwan;

(c) CTF Watch Limited (“CTF Watch”) — all of the subsidiaries held
directly or indirectly by CTF Watch are involved in watch
business; and

(d)  Sincere Elite Limited (“Sincere Elite”) — most of the subsidiaries
held directly or indirectly by Sincere Elite are involved in
jewellery business in Mainland China and Macau.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE WIS RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z 2012 4 3 A 31 HILFE

2. Group Reorganisation and Basis of Preparation
of Consolidated Financial Statements ccontinuea)

The Group resulting from the Group Reorganisation is regarded as a
continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash flows
which includes the results and cash flows of the companies now
comprising the Group including its Macau jewellery business (the
“Macau Jewellery Business”) (which was held by a fellow subsidiary
that conducted jewellery business for the Group in Macau and other
business in Macau which did not form part of, nor relevant to, the
Group’s jewellery business, and transferred to a subsidiary of the
Company as mentioned below) have been prepared by applying the
principles of merger accounting as if the current group structure had
been in existence throughout each of the two years ended 31 March
2012 or since their respective dates of incorporation/establishment/
acquisition where this is a shorter period. The consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2011 has been
prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the companies now
comprising the Group as if the current group structure had been in
existence as at that date.

On 27 September 2011, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery and Watch Company
(Macau) Limited (formerly known as “Forever Watch Limited”, (“CTF
Macau”)) took up the operations of the Macau Jewellery Business.
Although the Macau Jewellery Business has not yet been formally
transferred to the Group before 27 September 2011, it has been
included in the consolidated financial statements as the directors of
the Company consider that the historical financial statements of the
Group should include all relevant activities that have been a part of
the history of the Group. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements reflect all of the Group’s activities in jewellery business,
including the Macau Jewellery Business for the period before 27
September 2011

The consolidated financial statements were prepared based on
audited financial statements or management accounts of companies
now comprising the Group, including financial information of Macau
Jewellery Business which was prepared based on the items of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, other than certain insignificant central
administrative expenses, that are related to and specifically identified
for the Macau Jewellery Business. Also, the treasury and cash
disbursement functions of the Macau Jewellery Business are centrally
administrated by the above-mentioned fellow subsidiary. The change
of the net assets of the Macau Jewellery Business is shown as
movements in the special reserve. The directors of the Company
believe that the method of segregation and allocation presents a
reasonable basis of estimating what the operating results and financial
position of the Macau Jewellery Business would have been on a stand-
alone basis for the period up to 27 September 2011.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

The Group has applied all the standards, amendments and
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board, which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on

1 April 2011.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRS 1

Amendments to IFRS 1

Amendments to IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 7 and

IFRS 9

IFRS 9
IFRS 10
IFRST
IFRS 12

IFRS 13
Amendments to IAS 1

IAS 12

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

IAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to IAS 32

IFRIC-INT 20

L N N O

Annual improvements to IFRSs
2009-2011 cycle?

Severe hyperinflation and removal of
fixed dates for first-time adopters!
Government loans?

Disclosures — Transfers of financial
assets'

Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities?

Mandatory effective date of IFRS 9
and transition disclosures®

Financial instruments®
Consolidated financial statements?
Joint arrangements?
Disclosure of interests
in other entities?
Fair value measurement?
Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income*
Deferred tax — Recovery of underlying
assets®
Employee benefits?

Separate financial statements?

Investments in associates and
joint ventures?

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities®

Stripping costs in the
production phase of a surface mine?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE WIS RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z 2012 4 3 A 31 HILFE

3. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 amended in
2010 includes the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

¢ |IFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

¢ The most significant effect of IFRS 9 regarding the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities relates to the presentation
of changes in the fair value of a financial liability (designated as at
fair value through profit or loss) attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under IFRS 9, for financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9
in the future may have significant impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. The
directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the impact
on application of IFRS9.
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Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation and
disclosures

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements
and SIC-12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. IFRS 10
includes a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in IFRS 10 to deal with complex
scenarios.

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that have
interests in subsidiaries, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

These standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, Earlier application is permitted provided that IFRS 10,
IFRS 1, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and IAS 28 (as revised in
20M) are applied early at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these standards will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 April 2013 and are in the process of
assessing the impact on application of these standards.

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The
scope of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items
and non-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except in specified circumstances. In general, the
disclosure requirements in IFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by IFRS 13 to cover all
assets and liabilities within its scope.

IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that IFRS 13 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 April 2013 and are in the process of assessing the impact

on application of IFRS 13.
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3. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments to IAS 1retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments
to IAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b)
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of other
comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee benefits

The amendments to IAS 19 change the accounting for defined benefit
plans and termination benefits. The most significant change relates to
the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations and plan
assets. The amendments require the recognition of changes in defined
benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan assets when they
occur, and hence eliminate the “corridor approach” permitted under
the previous version of IAS 19. The amendments require all actuarial
gains and losses to be recognised immediately through other
comprehensive income in order for the net pension asset or liability
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position to
reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.

The amendments to IAS 19 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 and require retrospective application with
certain exceptions. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
amendments to IAS 19 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning 1 April 2013 and
that the application of the amendments to IAS 19 may have impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Groups’ defined benefit plans.
However, the directors have not yet performed a detailed analysis of
the impact of the application of the amendments and hence have not
yet quantified the extent of the impact.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will
have no material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group and the Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, and in accordance with the IFRSs. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements includes applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combination under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statement items of the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling party’s perspective.
No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the controlling
party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income includes the
results of each of the combining entities or businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the combining entities
first came under the commmon control combination, where there is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of the commmon control
combination.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of the associate are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interest that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in that
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business and net of discounts.

Sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and title has
passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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4.

86

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction in
progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For land and buildings where the cost of land cannot be reliably
allocated between the land and buildings elements, the cost of land
and buildings are depreciated and amortised on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms or 20 years, whichever is the shorter.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of other
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress
and land and buildings, less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Plant and machinery 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%-33/:%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term, or 20%,

whichever is the shorter
Motor vehicles 25%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Prepaid lease payments

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land elements and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
financial statements and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Prepaid lease payments which are to be amortised
in the next twelve months or less are classified as current assets.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using specific identification basis for gem-set
jewellery and watches; and weighted average for other inventories.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and receivables and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial assets, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

LLoans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related companies,
loan receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment loss on financial assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

¢ such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

* the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL (including convertible bonds, derivative
financial instruments) are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

«  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the impairment loss is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimate future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due to
related companies, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss including gold
loans and bullion forward contracts are measured at fair value, which
changes in fair value arising on remeasurement are recognised directly
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on the financial
liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes income or expense items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continuea)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term. Contingent rentals and concessionaire fees
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to retirement benefits plans and government-managed
retirement benefits schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of the reporting
period. All actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plans are
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which they
occur. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that
the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the amended benefits
become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, gold
loans and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
raising of bank borrowings and gold loans.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting year, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimation costs to be incurred to completion and disposal. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience in selling goods of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. The Group
will reassess the estimation at the end of each reporting period. As at
31 March 2012, the carrying amount of inventories is HK$29,694.2
million (20M: HK$17,100.8 million).
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty ccontinuea) 0.

Useful lives, residual value and impairment of property,

plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual value and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives and residual value of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives or residual value are
expected to be shorter or lower than estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down obsolete assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Change in these estimations may have a material impact on the
results of the Group, which would be recognised in profit or loss in the
year when such change occurs. As at 31 March 2012, the carrying

EXBE

amount of property, plant and equipment is HK$1,687.5 million (2011

HK$1,165.3 million).

Financial Instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted,
including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and
the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of

7. @I A

each class of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in

ERROEEE PN BN E S e ))
ME BERREOUFERER - B

REBEEBETHEDE  BEERIENHGE
AERAFH RELEBITEERRH - GG
TR EE RINEEAEENME - BB RBHED
BERAFEATHEMEENBECRMET o i
TEEA AT R F HA S R B S R SR A FEKTE -
&R B A58 Hn T E B S S B 8 s R B SRS sk
ELHRELE - ZSBTNEB R ASE
EXFEELTAFE MEBZHNLBREE
HEEAERARE - #E 202438318 ¥
¥ WEMEENEETMEAIG875HEEBT
(2014 : 11653 EEHEIT) °

HXBEREENEBRAGBAMNMRMAER
BRI BELIDENFS (BEBARE S8R
AR MR B i S Y B ) IR R S IR R

note 3.
Categories of financial instruments SR T EER
2012 201
20124 20N4F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEBT BEATL
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables Bk EWRIA
(including cash and cash equivalents) (PIFERE RIRESEEY) 14,386.0 9,084.0
Financial assets at fair value BATER ABZZ
through profit or loss: SREE
— Convertible bonds — A LRES 24.8 —
— Derivative financial instruments —TEEHMIA 47.3 —
14,458.1 9,084.0
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost BHEER AN 9,971.0 11,468.0
Gold loans at fair value through profit or loss AT EFABENESEE 5,806.6 39316
15,777.6 15,399.6




Financial Instruments continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related companies, loan receivables,
convertible bonds, derivative financial instruments, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, amounts
due to related companies, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, bank borrowings and gold loans. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and commodity price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate loan receivables and certain trade receivables, amounts due
to/from related companies and gold loans. The Group currently does
not have any instruments to hedge against the fair value interest rate
risk.

Also, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial assets and
liabilities, mainly interest bearing pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and bank borrowings at variable interest rates. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should
the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the cash flow interest
rate risk is considered insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis
is presented.

Currency risk

Certain group entities have foreign currency sales, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. During the year ended 31 March 2012,
about 0.7% (2011 0.9%) of the Group's sales are denominated in
currency other than the functional currency of the group entities.
During the year ended 31 March 2012, about 4.9% (2011: 6.8%) of the
Group’s purchases, are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities making the purchase. The
carrying amounts of relevant group entities’ foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities other than their functional
currency are disclosed in respective notes. In addition, certain group
entities also have intra-group advances which are denominated in
currencies other than that respective functional currency.

The Group mainly exposes to currency of United States dollars
("US$”) and Renminbi (“RMB”), which are arising from relevant group
entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
for the Group’s operating activities.

Chow Tai Fook Annual Report 2012 FA#@20124F F 5

SR T B

EREMEERBERBE

FEENTIESHMTAREE S R EMBUK
B B A RFUR - BRE SR - A RE
F TESBT R CHEMRITER RITE
#HeRE  BHRHEMENRE  BABBL
BIFUR - BB A R SRR BCR OB - iRAT
EFURESEE - ZE2RIAFBREMW
HRE - ZFeRIAZAMRREETSE
g (F=REk - E¥RRETRERRR)  F
SRR ERBEDRE R o AR Z SRR
BEBENTX - EEEEELREEZTABRINA
HER MRS B R BB E B o

TSk

T 2
REBAGRBYKEEMNEEFRRETEHRK
BIE BRI AR RERE S EBER
EAFENEER - AEERELEERNTE
A TEM XTI -

B ARERFEERMEER BB (ZERF
SEERMRITFR - RITEBRTIRFTH R EG
SHRTEF) N EZEPNFZEMEAHRSRE
AR o AKE B ATBEER REDPEE - A
- EREEREREEBEHEANEER -

HRARREZRRESRENEZARLTE
R LI 2 5 B E AT -

B E

ETEETRBUIINEETHE  SAEEAR
SN o REE2012F 3/ INHIEFER
REBE#0.7% (20114 : 0.9%) K EFEI IF
NEBEREONEERE - REE201243
R3IBIEFERN KEBK49%(2014F :
6.8%) MBI IELETIRBNEEETE 2
REEMEHE - HEEEERIUIINE (HE 2T
EEBRINFHEZ BB EERABHERRERS
PIEEHEE - N BETSEETEBTBEUESE
Ee BB LN ERFHEN SRR A RIFE R -

AEBEMELRMAAEEEERUINES
ENEREERRESARETIEmMBRETLR
ARBZE¥RAR -

97



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

ARE F AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z 2012 4 3 A 31 HILFE

7.

98

Financial Instruments ccontinued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
to eliminate the currency exposures. However, the management
monitors the related foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should the
need arise. No sensitivity analysis has been presented as the Group’s
exposure to currency risk is not significant.

Commodiity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale of jewellery includes gold products.
The gold market is influenced by global as well as regional supply and
demand conditions. A significant decline in prices of gold could
adversely affect the Group’s financial performance. In order to reduce
the commodity price risk, the Group uses gold loans as well as
derivative financial instruments, such as bullion forward contracts to
reduce its exposure to fluctuations in the gold price on gold inventory.
The derivative contracts are settled at maturity which usually in 3
months from date of inception and any fair value change is
immediately recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2012, if the market price of gold had been higher or
lower by 10%, the potential effect on the derivative financial
instruments and gold loans and the resulting impact on profit after
taxation for the year would decrease or increase approximately by
HK$598.5 million (2011: HK$460.6 million).

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end of each
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting periods to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

The Group, however, has concentration of credit risk in relation to loan
receivables from one borrower amounted to HK$130.0 million at 31
March 2012 (2011: HK$130.0 million) which accounted for 74% (2011:
86%) of the Group’s loan receivables. At 31 March 2012 and 31 March
201, such loan receivables are secured over certain properties in Hong
Kong and the directors of the Company consider that the market
values of these properties are in excess of the carrying amount of
respective loan receivables at the end of the reporting period. The
Group has the right to collect the secured properties when default by
the borrower. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
has reviewed the recoverable amounts of the loan receivables
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk on loan receivables is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances is minimal
as such amounts are placed in banks with good reputation.
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7. Financial Instruments continvea) 7.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group’s short
and medium-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and
by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and the
maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up to reflect the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

SR T B
tREMREEEZRBEK ®)

AEEEREERASENEHRTHESE
THEENRDESRREEERAEADES
ERRE -  ARBFEBEFRITBENANLSE
ERBARERRERERESHAGEZIH
BRERRBE SRR -

TERAEEZERABERTENIHA 2
B RERBRRBRBEAKEAIHERLINERAE
ZHRFPAHRYE URRESMEEZ RWURR
EME - ZRBEFFNERASRENE -

Weighted On demand Total
average or less than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1year 1to 2 years cash flows amount
RERKZ RERAS
ISR =@AR =ZEAE-% —EmF mEEE BREE
% HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEHBT BEET BEET BEAT
Financial liabilities LRAME
At 31 March 2012 R2012F3A318
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERTEA - 570.1 - - 570.1 570.1
Amounts due to non-controlling LG EE ST
shareholders of subsidiaries
— Non-interest bearing portion — BB - 400.3 - - 400.3 400.3
Bank borrowings FITER 4.0 1,604.3 4,227.0 3,479.5 9,310.8 9,000.6
Gold loans ERfEE 25 3,480.8 2,385.7 - 5,866.5 5,806.6
6,055.5 6,612.7 3,479.5 16,147.7 15,777.6
At 31 March 2011 FR20NE3A31H
Trade and other payables B9 R EMENTE - 589.0 - - 589.0 589.0
Amounts due to related companies  JEfEFHEA 7R
— Interest bearing portion —feHs 50 3803 - - 3803 3803
— Non-interest bearing portion — BB - 74530 - - 7.453.0 74530
Amounts due to non-controlling LA ST
shareholders of subsidiaries
— Interest bearing portion —KfEHs 6. 93 — — 93 91
— Non-interest bearing portion — Ikt BED — 155.6 — — 155.6 155.6
Bank borrowings RITER 29 1,701.0 11987 - 28997 28810
Gold loans EHEE 18 28845 1,080.0 — 39645 39316
131727 22787 — 15,4514 15,399.6

Notes:

©) The amounts included in above for variable rate bank borrowings are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

(i The amounts of gold loans are determined based on the gold price as at
the end of the reporting period.
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7.

Financial Instruments ccontinued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
as follows:

« the fair value of financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices; and

« the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The following table provides an analysis of convertible bonds, gold
loans and bullion forward contracts that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable.

ST B

ERMITAENEE
CRAERSREEY ATENU TS ES
XTE:

 AABREERRGEHERSRATSER
ZERMABZATENZ2ETSEARE
BE R

- Htte@mBEEREBREEEEITETIA)
ZAVEDREAREERN  RRRRR
ERENITEE °

TREROFRAFEERRAE 2T HLBRE
 BEeEERFEEEMENNT  BRAF
BEESMERENRIEIR -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
A E E21R £33 st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEATT BEATT BEAT BEAT
At 31 March 2012 R2012F3 831H
Convertible bonds Al B iESH — — 24.8 24.8
Derivative financial instruments $7T4 48 T & - 47.3 — 47.3
Gold loans E2EEE 5,806.6 — — 5,806.6
At 31 March 201 R20NEF3 A31H
Gold loans EEEE 3,9316 — - 39316
Notes: Bz -

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value of bullion forward contracts is determined based on
Level 2 measurement, which were insignificant at 31 March 2011.

The fair value of convertible bonds is determined based on Level 3
measurement. No movement of such convertible bonds since the
date of inception.
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KR Lo aER

BEBRCUIBRENBRFEREE R
SITHEFR -

8. Revenue and Segment Information 8.

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for
goods sold less returns and net of trade discounts.

TERERRE((XEZERRE ] ARA
WITER) ERD B R E 0 B R I[AAEER
MERSETRER TERBBEWISMEL -
&t%?%$§%“ﬁ2?ﬁt&¥iﬂﬂﬁgﬁ RiEE
BB REEAFESH  AEENEERAZ
BRI RUNPEAN - BB ORI REMmTE
NS EBRE - B REDHMMELENE
ERTERAHENRTERNEK -

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker (the
“"CODM”) which comprises executive directors of the Company, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on the locations of the operations, retail and
wholesale markets. This is also the basis upon which the Group is
arranged and organised. The Group’s operating and reportable
segments under IFRS 8 are operations located in the Group’s places
of domicile in Mainland China, and Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian
markets. The revenue generated by each of the operating segments is
mainly derived from sales of jewellery products and watches.
(a) (d) *EEEXFEREENTERS
B AT

HZ202F3831HILEE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable segment

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Hong Kong,
Macau and
Mainland other Asian
China Markets Subtotal Elimination Total
&% - B
prasti
FE At NS et 6] st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEERT BERR BEET BEAER
Revenue e
External sales INFIHE
— Retaill — =5 23,266.3 23,976.3 47,242.6 - 47,242.6
— Wholesale# — #hEE 8,750.1 578.4 9,328.5 - 9,328.5
32,016.4 24,554.7 56,571.1 - 56,571.1
Inter-segment sales* DEPEIEE - 240.1 4,398.3 4,638.4 (4,638.4) —
32,256.5 28,953.0 61,209.5 (4,638.4) 56,571.1
Segment profit 2 EBR 4,605.0 3,851.8 8,456.8 (16.7) 8,440.1
Interest income F B A 88.9
Finance costs BhE AR (363.1)
Profit before taxation BRI A 8,165.9
*  Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. D EHEBEERBITTMISERIE -
#  Wholesale mainly represents sales to franchisees. OB FERRAMBEOEE -
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8. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 8. BHERHEELNHIHER W
(@) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by Q) XEEEXEREBNITERS
reportable segment (Continued) B A (42)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 HE20NEIAINBLEFE
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Mainland  other Asian
China Markets Subtotal Elimination Total
B BN
ez
FPEA EEY ik e s st

HKS$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
BEBT AEAET BEET BEBT BEET

Revenue BT
External sales HNFRIHE
— Retail — =€ 14,5951 15,438.0 30,0331 — 30,0331
— Wholesale” — 4,876.7 132.7 5009.4 — 5009.4
19,4718 15,570.7 35,0425 — 35,0425
Inter-segment sales* D EBREISHE * - 23455 23455 (2,345.5) —
19,4718 17,916.2 37,388.0 (2,345.5) 35,0425
Segment profit 220 2,301.6 2,3755 4,677 (20.7) 4,656.4
Interest income FBEUA 70.3
Finance costs A& R A 102.2)
Share of results of DME—KEEE QA
an associate ZEE .7
Profit before taxation FRAE AR R 4619.8
*  Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. D EHEEERBITMISERIE -
#  Wholesale mainly represents sales to franchisees. OB FERRMMBEOEE -
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the A 23D IBA SR B 4 Fril fy AR
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. EESHBORAR - D WHEFIEERSD
Segment profit represents the profit generated from each BRI EWA - BEKRARDIE—RIEGE
segment without allocation of interest income, finance costs NAZEERNZSDEMEENRF © It
and share of results of an associate. This is the measure BRAETEZERARELETERNMEER
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation DERMFHERBOFTEEE -

and performance assessment.



8. Revenue and Segment Information continued)

(b) Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss:

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HZ202F3831HILEE

Hong Kong,
Macau and
Mainland other Asian
China markets Total
BB BMAR
FRE A it Hhmmimis st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET AEET
Operating lease payments A ELCEHENRIE
in respect of rented premises 125.8 547.0 672.8
Concessionaire fees HiEHHK 2,171.3 22.6 2,193.9
Staff costs BT A 1,758.1 1,372.7 3,130.8
For the year ended 31 March 2011 HE20NF3ANHLEFE
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Mainland other Asian
China markets Total
BE BFR
R H e miis st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT AEAT BEAT
Operating lease payments EMAYELERERIE
in respect of rented premises 989 403.5 502.4
Concessionaire fees HIEDHK 1,480.2 13.6 1,493.8
Staff costs BTN 1,024.6 796.4 18210
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8. Revenue and Segment Information continued)

(c) Analysis of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and inventories by geographical
location:

At 31 March 2012

8. BEFNHILER @)

(c) BFHUBEE TN ARKEEYE -
BERRERFEDN

HA2012%F3831H

Hong Kong,
Macau and
Mainland other Asian
China markets Total
BB RMAR
FEIRt HhzsMmig st
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BERT BEET ABEET
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - BE &&RE 1,509.1 178.4 1,687.5
Inventories FE 13,017.7 16,676.5 29,694.2
At 31 March 2011 R20N4F3A31H
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Mainland other Asian
China markets Total
A ORFMR
P EIAHD HAh T mis et
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBTT BEBT BEET
Property, plant and equipment  #9% - & k& 1,095.7 69.6 1165.3
Inventories FE 76032 9,497.6 17,100.8
Segment assets and liabilities AUEERERE
Except for the above, no other assets and liabilities are included MmN A FFruish - T ELEREEE
in the measures of the Group’s segment reporting that are BMAEBE D P2 RS ESF AL

reviewed by the CODM. Accordingly, no segment assets and
liabilities are presented.

EENGE AHXEB2I0AEER

BfE-



8. Revenue and Segment Information continued)

(d) Ananalysis of the Group’s revenue by products is as follows: (d) REREDHAREBRMLEENITOT :
2012 201N
20125 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAERT BEAT

Sales of HE

— Gem-set jewellery — REEREH 15,378.1 8,962.9
— Gold products —E=EEM 29,742.1 18,724.7
— Platinum/karat gold products — A% KEER 7,813.4 4,869.4
— Watches 17 3,637.5 24855
56,571.1 35,042.5

No individual customer contributed over 10% of the total MEEREFPERNEESFREEEIO0%
revenue of the Group in the respective years. PAE ©

BB DN AEEIERBEE (T
BREEBRTARR -—RBE QAR Z#E)

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding financial instruments
and interest in an associate, by geographical areas are as

follows: DHTEAT -
2012 20m
2012 20N
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
Mainland China A [ A 3, 1,954.5 1,414.8
Hong Kong, Macau and other Asian markets &7 » B & EH i Zm M5 178.4 69.5
2,132.9 1,484.3
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9. Other Income 9. HAIkA
2012 201
20125 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT AEET
Interest income from FEIA
— banks — iR77 37.7 13.9
— amounts due from related companies — [EUR AR A RIFUE 24.9 514
— loan receivables — BURER 5.9 50
— trade receivables — B R RIFIE 20.4 —
Franchise income IEEIRA 64.1 36.7
Government grants IEgeR i 13.4 121
Discount on acquisition (hote 32) W BE TR (K12 32) = 17.2
Gain on scrap sales FERMH & e 54.6 415
Others Eith 6.2 16.8
227.2 194.6
10. Other Gains and Losses 10. Bz K E5E
2012 201
20124 20114
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BERERESE
plant and equipment (4.4) (5.6)
Net foreign exchange gain JE U F5E 23.7 418
Others Hith (1.9) 37
17.4 399
1. Finance Costs . BEKAK
2012 201
20124 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ARAFREIEMNHES
within five years
— bank loans — RITER 247.9 374
— gold loans —E2EE 107.3 462
— amounts due to related companies — FERTRERE AR IE 7.9 18.6
363.1 102.2




12. Profit before Taxation 12. BRER A& A
2012 201
20125 20N
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BRI ADEF 2k
after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 13) =P (FF13) 90.2 256
Other staff's retirement benefits HAh B TaRIREH TSI
scheme contributions 31.7 138.4
Other staff costs Hih 8 TR 2,728.9 1,657.0
3,130.8 1,821.0
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FE TR E R IE Y 1.0 79
Auditors’ remuneration TZEEH N 5.1 7.6
Concessionaire fees EviSand
(included in selling and distribution costs) (Bt ABEE RS HEAAR) 2,193.9 1,493.8
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses GFERAERAMY 39,080.3 24,043
Depreciation e 390.5 246.8
Donations (included in other expenses) B (BT AR ) 17.6 12211
Fair value changes of gold loans ESHEENRATEZE
(included in cost of goods sold) (T ASHERAR) 345.8 725.7
Net loss on bullion forward contracts ETE BIRA T ET ABZEN
designated as at fair value through profit or HERPAYEEFE
loss (included in cost of goods sold) (GTASHERAR) 174.8 2246
Operating lease rentals in respect of EAYELEHERS
rented premises 672.8 502.4
Professional expenses attributable to BIRNEGEEXER (Bt AEM
issue of shares (included in other expenses) %) m.4 —
13. Directors and Employees’ Emoluments 13. EENEEME
2012 201
20124 20N4F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BHEBT
Directors’ fees EEEE 15 —
Other emoluments to directors EENEMBES
— salaries and other benefits — e hHMEF 23.8 16.2
— performance-based bonus — RERIEAL 63.2 8.4
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIREFIFTEIHER 1.7 10
90.2 256
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z 2012 4 3 A 31 HILFE

13. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments
(Continued)

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company are as follows:

13. EEFNEE M

T )

AEERAADREENOBHESFENT

2012 201
2012% 201F
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefit Salaries benefit
Director’s and other  Performance- scheme Director’s and other  Performance- scheme
fee benefits  based bonus*  contribution Total fee* benefits  basedbonus  contribution Total
FER BER FeR RRER
£33 HitfER BRIAL SHEHER f-hy BEg Hitrfgr| EuEa HE Ui feas
HK$ million ~ HK$ million HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS million
BEERL BEER BEER BEER BEEL BEEL BEET BEET BEETL BEET
Honorary chairman and ERLERFHTEE -
non-executive dlirector:
Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung SEURYEL 01 27 08 01 37 - 20 11 01 32
Chairman and executive drector:  £/EREi1TE%E :
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry i 0.1 22 29 01 53 - 15 08 01 24
Managing director: EFaam:
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent BREEAE 0.1 3.6 129 0.2 16.8 - 25 15 02 42
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr.Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian &R 01 02 22 01 26 - - - - -
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy ~ #l&fE %4+ 0.1 19 6.0 04 84 - 12 05 01 18
Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong B854 0.1 26 6.5 0.1 9.3 - 18 08 01 27
Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert BB LS 0.1 26 6.6 0.1 94 - 18 10 01 29
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton ~ #}ffEE8s 4 0.1 18 6.0 04 83 - 13 05 01 19
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter FERRE 0.1 17 6.3 0.1 82 - 11 06 01 18
Non-executive directors: FNTEE:
Mr.Cheng Kam-Biu, Wison ~ EBif8 4 01 19 64 - 84 - 12 06 - 18
Mr. Koo Tong-Fat HEREE 0.1 26 6.6 01 94 - 18 10 01 29
Independent non-executive  BUHHTEE
directors:
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor HELEL 0.1 - - - 0.1 - - - - -
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon 53 %4 0.1 - - - 0.1 - - - - -
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffery WRERE 01 - - - 01 - - - - -
Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond EREE 0.1 - - - 0.1 - - - - -
Total &t 15 238 632 17 902 - 162 84 10 256
Notes: Biat -
* The performance-based bonus is discretionary based on the Group’s * BRI AR EEERBIRASBNIMEE

financial results and directors’ performance as may be decided by the
management of the Group.

The performance-based bonus included payments related to a scheme
for directors and certain senior management, which was terminated
during the year ended 31 March 2012.

# No director’s fee was paid for the year ended 31 March 2011 as decided
by the board of directors of the Company.

FLESRARBET

BREAPETHRESRRREEABIL
FTEIB RN MLt EEREE 2012453
A3BIEFELRIE -

HBZE2ONFIAINBLFE RAQRESS
FE O WESNEMESHES -



13. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments
(Continued)

The five highest paid individuals included four directors (2011 four) of
the Company, details of whose emoluments are included above. The

emoluments of the remaining highest paid individual during the year

were as follows:

T )

13. EENIEEM

hEZmmMe AT BEARRMNAEE (20N
FNBER) FEHFMFBEHIR L FR
BT REME ATNEHHNT

2012 201
20124 20N
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT EL- Y0

Employees B8
— salaries and other benefits — ¥ hHMbEF 13.2 10.7
— performance-based bonus — AL 0.6 0.8
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIREFIFEIHER 0.1 01
13.9 1.6

His emoluments were within the following bands:

BEFHM TN FTHIEE -

2012 20M

20124 20114

HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 11,500,001 7T & 12,000,000 7T - 1
HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000 13,500,001 7T £ 14,000,000 87T 1 —

During the year ended 31 March 2012, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and employees) as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors have waived any emoluments during the year
ended 31 March 2012.
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14. Taxation 14, TIA
2012 201
20125 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET
The taxation charge comprises: HRIEAZBE
Current tax: BNEATRIA -
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) R A ZE TS HL
in Mainland China 976.2 5191
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEREH 563.0 366.5
Macau complementary tax SRR FERE m.7 55.9
1,650.9 9415
(Over) under-provision in prior years: BEFE (BRERE) BHTL
EIT in Mainland China FR A 1R ZEFTISEE 10.7 58
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH (87.3) —
Macau complementary tax SRPIR TR 0.7) —
(77.3) 58
Withholding tax on license income from R b AR AE A TR
Mainland China 21.4 —
1,595.0 947.3

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law”) of the People’s
Republic of China ("PRC”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in Mainland China is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards, while Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (“Shenzhen CTF”) is under progressive tax rates
from 18% to 25% over 5 years from 1 January 2008.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China, Lida
Noble Metal Technology and Development (Shenzhen) Limited
(“Shenzhen Lida”) and Foshan Shunde Yuda Jewellery Manufacturing
Limited (“Shunde Yuda”) were entitled to exemption from PRC
income tax for two years commencing from the year ended 31
December 2007 and 31 December 2008, their first profit-making year,
followed by a 50% reduction from the year ended 31 December 2009
and 31 December 2010 for three years respectively.

EEFE B TR M F E 0 S s ERBUS Fi%
16.5% B EETE -

BEREARLMBE([PEDEEMERE(D
EMBEAD REERMA - REABHBA
AW E B 20084118 A25% @ B A=
KE2TCRYDBRAT(DERYIAARE D Bl
R RFERIE - 5 2008F1 A 1HENSE
M 18% FF & 25% ©

RIEFRBE AN EEERER  FlEEcET
SRR ORI AR A8 (DRYIFIE]) R
IWmEEEnERE e s aR AR ([EE
WED DR BEEHE2007F12 A31H %2008
FRANALEFE(FESEEEFNFE) BRF
AEREPBEAMER - 5B AEHZE2009F
2A3NBEE200F12A3NHIEFEREHE
ZERERFBE -



14. Taxation continued) 14. %RI,E\(,%)

Macau complementary tax is calculated at the maximum progressive RPE R IR E NG ERBENIERS
rate of 12% on the estimated assessable profit for the year. BEMERDYEE -
No provision for taxation has been made for the operation in Taiwan BARERNITERZRT N ETEREER
as there was no assessable profit for the year. EIEEL IR -
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the FRHBELTHITHESS2ENEEEZMNSEEMD
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows: T
2012 20Mm
2012%F 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEET
Profit before taxation BrEE AT K 8,165.9 4619.8
Tax at the applicable income tax rate REAMEHETENTIE
(Mainland China: 25%; Hong Kong: 16.5%: (FRERH : 25% : B ©16.5%
Macau: 12%) JBPY 12%) 1,628.3 9535
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AN RS2
tax purposes 26.8 98.2
Tax effect of income not taxable for BEFHBMANR G2
tax purposes (74.4) (22.4)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERIEE BN 2 1.7 13
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised E)f8 5C R AR EMER R B IAE 12 (0.3) asn
Tax effect of tax exemptions granted to ET A B A FRE
certain subsidiaries in Mainland China HRENBGTE (213.9) 141.4)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences  REHRAHIHEK =2
not recognised MRS 2 270.0 79.9
Withholding tax on license income from B A W A TE AN
Mainland China 21.4 —
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFEBRECRE) TR (77.3) 5.8
Others Hit 12.7 (9.5)
Taxation charge for the year FRFEELH 1,595.0 947.3
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14.

15.

16.

Taxation ccontinued) 14

At 31 March 2012, the Group has tax losses of HK$29.7 million (2011
HK$22.9 million) not recognised as deferred tax assets. All of the
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely, except
for HK$11.5 million (2011: HK$7.4 million) which will be expired as
follows:

MIE ()

MR2012F3A3NH  AEBARERBELETIE
BENMEEIE A2978 &% L (2014 :
229 BEBIL) o FTE AR EE B A R
e ENSEBBITQONF : 74HEET)
HEPA T 51 RE P 2 7

2012 201
20124 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET

Tax losses expiring in RIBEERRA T E 5 ER
— 2015 — 20154 — 21
— 2016 — 2016 F 6.8 53
— 2017 — 2017 F 4.7 —
1.5 7.4

Also, at 31 March 2012, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$2,681.3 million (2011 HK$1,430.1 million) not
recognised as deferred tax assets. Tax effect of such deductible
temporary differences as at 31 March 2012 was HK$619.3 million (2011
HK$213.6 million).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by subsidiaries in
Mainland China from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the financial statements in respect of retained
profits of the subsidiaries in Mainland China amounting to HK$10,651.9
million (2011: HK$6,602.4 million), as the Group is able to control the
timing of the distribution of such retained profits and it will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future. Tax effect of such taxable
temporary differences as at 31 March 2012 was HK$532.6 million (2011:
HK$330.1 million).

Earnings per Share 15.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is based
on the consolidated profits attributable to owners of the Company for
the year and on the weighted average number of 9,259,836,066 (2011
8,950,000,000) shares in issue during the year on the assumption
that the Group Reorganisation and the capitalisation issue as detailed
in note 31 have been in effective on 1 April 2010.

No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there were no potential
dilutive shares during both years.

Dividends 16.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group distributed interim
dividends totalling of HK$4,550.3 million, of which HK$7.1 million was
included in amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries (2011: HK$759.3 million, of which HK$750.0 million was
settled by a related company and hence included in amounts due to
related companies as at 31 March 2011), to their shareholders prior to
the Group Reorganisation. Other than the above, no dividend has
been paid or declared by other companies comprising the Group
during the year.

A final dividend of HK10.0 cents per share for the year ended 31 March
2012 has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by shareholders in annual general meeting of the
Company.

AN - 20123 A318 - AEBERBERAIE
ERRIBEEENA RS EZR 52681308
BT (2014 11,4301 A 8B T) o Lt 2012
EIANAAREEEZENNETYEA
GI03EEBIL(201EF : 2136 HEBT) ©

RIEPEMGEMERE  FERBHHEBR R
JATEE 2008491 A1 # A B EUE FI7E &k A%
BEHRBME - AEBEWERTHHREA
B B A B R R B8 a F110,651.9 B B8
JC(2014F : 6,6024 BB E L) B EAIELER
BELEE  RERASEA 2D KAB R
FIMEER - WHR A BRI IRE BRE
A e FAtAA 2012 3 A 31 H ER L b1 =
BN Y E AS5326H 88 (2014 :
33010EEBIT) °

BRARF

FESREAEMNRENARBEE AERGSE
Nieam UEFASETMEFES
9,259,836,066 /% f% 17 & H (2014 :
8,950,000,000 %) + H A R &% Ff 5% 31 Frat it
EEEHERERCEITER2010F4 B1R £ -

el 5 7 (142 3 4 1 S A
BRI RF -

i

f% B

HZE202F3A3HBLFE  AEEREEE
SRR EIRMNA H£45503 588 TLHH
HRRE - P71 EBA T AEMNKB AR
2 B B FOBE (20N 4F - 7593 B BB T 0 B
NAIZMEFRT750.0EEE T BULZ750.0
BEABITARE2ONEIANEENER A
RAIFIE) o BRIAEZAN - EAR A S EMEM
RNEJRFERRMANHEIREMRE ©

RRARERZEMRBE202F3A3IBIEFE
TR R HI S FA10.08 1l - WARR AR K
RRBRBEREG LIER - T EEE -



17. Property, Plant and Equipment

7. W% - WEME&E

Land Plant Furniture
and and fixtures and Leasehold Motor  Construction
buildings machinery equipment  improvements vehicles in progress Total
i #B8
THREF BER#E ET- I - AE HRIR @zt
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
COST A
At 1April 2010 #2004 A18 6268 336 3583 3646 122 03 13958
Currency realignment R 342 18 90 207 06 06 66.9
Acauired on acquisition of RUGERBARMEEA
subsidiaries (note 32) (Hi#32) - - 03 - - - 03
Additions AE 130.8 143 1747 140.7 85 716 5406
Transfer e 514 - - - (514) -
Disposals e - (18) (19.7) - on — (216)
At 31 March 2011 R20NE3A3A 8432 479 5226 526.0 212 211 19820
Currency realignment ERRE 313 1 99 194 07 1 635
Acaquired on acquisition of RUEEHBARMEA
subsidiaries (note 32) (H:#32) 627 249 154 34 12 349 1425
Additions B 86.2 506 3069 2506 18 43] 7492
Transfer i 151 - - - - (150 -
Disposals HE - (10.0) (25.3) (34) (30) - (417)
At 31 March 2012 R202E3A318 10385 145 8295 796.0 319 8511 28955
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2010 #201064A18 753 98 2263 2427 71 — 5612
Currency realignment EBRE 41 04 34 142 02 - 23
Provided for the year FEE 326 4] 1004 1067 30 - 24638
Eliminated on disposals HEH - (10) (125) - (on - (136)
At 31 March 2011 R20NE3A31H 120 13.3 3176 3636 102 — 816.7
Currency realignment EHER 43 05 44 151 03 - 246
Provided for the year FEE 428 99 1641 1686 51 - 3905
Eliminated on disposals HEME - (19) (16.1) (34) (24) - (238)
At 31 March 2012 H202F3A318 1591 218 470.0 5439 132 — 1208.0
CARRYING VALUES BHEE
At 31 March 2012 H202F3A318 879.4 92.7 3595 2521 18.7 8511 16875
At 31 March 201 R20NE3A3A 7312 346 2050 1624 10 21 11653
The carrying \/al_ues of the Group’s properties which are situated on (734 R HA T 6 - H B 7N 2 [ ) 2 1 BE TEL(E 4T
land under medium-term leases is analysed as follows: T
2012 20m
2012 201
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
In Hong Kong &% 5.5 59
In Mainland China R Ay, 872.0 7253
In South Africa EES 1.9 —
879.4 7312
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18. Prepaid Lease Payments 18. FENHENIE
2012 201
20124 20114
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAT
Carrying amount BREE
At 1 April #®4 818 97.9 —
Currency realignment Bk 3.4 31
Additions NE = 102.7
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) FEUWEEEBA SImES~ (K13 32) 16.7
Charged to profit or loss during the year RER BB (1.0) (7.9)
At 31 March MW3A31H 107.0 97.9
Comprising land use rights held under BIEM AR BERHRER EIEE
medium-term leases situated in FE ) T R
Mainland China 107.0 97.9
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RS RERMmR TR B
Current assets (included in trade and RBEE(BIEEE S NEMER
other receivables) FIER) 1.3 10.6
Non-current assets IERBEE 95.7 87.3
107.0 979
19. Interest in an Associate 19, R—FKEE N NT 2z
2012 201
20125 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BEATL
Cost of investment AR 7.8 78
Share of post-acquisition profits and DU 8 I R H A 2 e
other comprehensive income, (TETRTIRBRB)
net of dividends received 2.3 37.4
10.1 452
Details of the associate are set out as below: i RN = = (1 N
Place and Issue and Attributable equity interest
date of fully paid PE(LRRRE
Name of company establishment registered capital 2012 201 Principal activities
NGRS AL ZER B HA BITRBZFMESR 20124 20MEF EEEHR
Wuhan Xinfu Jewellery PRC Registered capital 25% 25%  Inactive
Company Limited 13 August 1993 RMB33,004,060 fid—F S
(“Wuhan Xinfu™) FE &R
REMB®RERITARAT 19934 8 A13H AR#E 33,004,060 7T
(IZEHE])

The cost of investment in an associate represents the Group’s
contribution to 25% registered capital of Wuhan Xinfu which is
established in the PRC and became inactive during the year ended 31
March 2011.

R—RBERARMBERTEAEETERMAER
SEITIRI25% M EAR » BUZHEN AP B -
WAEE20MEI AINHILFEEIEEE -



19. Interest in an Associate (continued) 19. R—KEERRI 2R ®
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s EEAEENB S AN BERZE 50
associate is set out below: T
2012 201
20125 20N
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEET
Total assets BEBE 40.3 190.3
Total liabilities BEERE = (9.6)
Net assets BEFE 40.3 180.7
Group’s share of associate’s net assets KEBDHBERREEFE 10.1 452
Revenue B = -
Loss for the year FREE - 18.9)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2w 6.0 86
Group’s share of results of an associate AEEDE—REE QB2 E4E = 47
Group’s share of other comprehensive income — REBDE—KEEE N a2 EiM
of an associate EHEME 1.5 211
1.5 2.6)

20. Loan Receivables

As at 31 March 2012, the balance included loans to certain customers
of HK$30.3 million (2011: nil), which is secured by certain assets of the
customers and bears fixed interest rates ranging from 9.1% to 10.1%
per annum with a maturity period ranging from six to twelve months.
The remaining balances of loan receivables are secured over certain
properties in Hong Kong owned by the debtors with fixed interest
rates ranging from 2.5% to 3.8% per annum. The Group is not
permitted to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence of default

by the debtors.

Loan receivables are classified as current or non-current assets based
on contractual terms or the timing of recovery as expected by the
management. All loan receivables are neither past due nor impaired as

at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011.
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20. Loan Receivables (continved 20. BRI E R @)
For the loan receivables that are secured over certain properties in TAEBE TYEEERNERER - AQF]
Hong Kong, the directors of the Company consider that the market FERE ZEWENTEBHREHRER
values of these properties are in excess of the carrying amount of loan EXMERE - fETEKER Z AW B 1R -
receivables at the end of the reporting period. In determining the AeEBerHERERERNEEL ZTM
recoverability of the loan receivables, the Group regularly monitors BE) o  ARRBEERABAHERIELRE -

the changes in credit quality of the loan receivables. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no impairment is considered
necessary in respect of such loan.

All loan receivables are denominated in functional currency of the FrERKEFIZAEEEE BN EBIIE -
relevant group entity.

21. Inventories 2. &

2012 201N
2012%F 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAER BEAT

Raw materials for: HEUNTERMEREME :
Gem-set jewellery KEEREH 7,387.5 29726
Gold products HEEm 896.9 1,874.0
Platinum/karat gold products S KEER 589.6 103.3
8,874.0 49499

Finished goods: BUpkn

Gem-set jewellery KEEREH 8,537.5 6,327.0
Gold products ELEM 7,909.8 3,336.9
Platinum/karat gold products e KEEM 2,289.6 1,251.4
Watches b7 2,055.0 1223.6
20,791.9 12,138.9
Packing materials BEME 28.3 120
29,694.2 17,100.8




22. Trade and Other Receivables 22. B 5 M EAMERFKIE
2012 201
20125 20N
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET
Trade receivables B S EWNRIE 4,035.8 1632.4
Prepayments to suppliers T EREETE RIB 471.6 881.1
Deposits e 192.9 107.9
Prepaid lease payments charged within one year —H R iHTEN TR ERIE 1n3 10.6
Other tax recoverables HAbr] e U FiIB 4432 334.8
Others Hi 168.6 260.9
5,323.4 3227.7

As at 31 March 2012, trade receivables of HK$121.9 million (2011:
HK$68.6 million) are from entities in which certain directors of the
Company have control.

As at 31 March 2012, no prepayment (2011: HK$485.8 million) was paid
for purchase of raw materials to an entity in which certain directors of
the Company and their close family members have control.

The Group’s sales to retail customers are mainly on cash basis. Sales
to certain customers are on credit with credit period up to 6 months.
For sales through concessionaire counters in department stores, the
Group usually allow 30 days credit period to the department stores.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period based on the invoice date:

R2012E3A318 12198 B % T (201 £ :
686 AEEBLINESRUFEREARES
TE=HEHIENEE

R202F3A318  ARR L ER—HEARQ
ETEERFEOBREXNERET %M‘EE}]E\
BB ERMB X ATEMNKIE (20N : 485.8
BEBT) °

AEBHTEZPNHEENRERET  MAE
TEFPHOHERAREER - FEAKZ RN
BA -RBEERARERENEENS - A5E—
BETEEARIOANEEY - AT RRIEE
SRR IRE RN E S REFIRNRE DT

2012 20M

20125 201

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEET

O to 30 days 0&30H 2,558.8 1376.4
31to 90 days 31E90H 1,439.0 216.8
91t0 180 days 91E180 H 24.8 3.0
Over 180 days 180 HM £ 13.2 36.2
4,035.8 1,632.4

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
monitors change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since
the credit was granted and up to the reporting date. The directors
considered that the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired to be of a good credit quality.

As at 31 March 2012, included in the trade receivable balances are
receivables of HK$2,136.5 million (2011: HK$9.8 million) carrying a fixed
interest ranging from 4.0% to 10.1% (2011: 5.9% to 6.7%) per annum.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z 2012 4 3 A 31 HILFE

22. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Also, as at 31 March 2012, included in the trade receivable balances are
trade receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$39.0 million
(2011: HK$45.6 million) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has
not been a significant change in the credit quality and amounts are
still considered recoverable based on historical experience. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables, based on the invoice

22. B 5 N E AU FKIE (@)

BEoh - 2012463 A 318 » 5t A B 5 EKR R IE
AR HRE AP aMAERmEAS3.08
EBTNEZERFIB(20NE - 4565 &
JL) c BREREERTE LB EREHHIRER

ERBAB/ZFFA/AIM - A B I &
SHEREBREE - NSRBI R Z SRS

B R

REXZAHCARERBRENES

date, which are past due but not impaired FE U R IE BV R iR
2012 201
20125 20N4F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET
610 90 days 61Z90 B 10 6.4
91t0 180 days 9IZ 180 A 24.8 30
Over 180 days 180 B £ 13.2 36.2
39.0 45.6
23. Amounts due from (to) Related Companies 23. rEUR (FEAT) BEB A T Zk 1A
2012 201
20124 20114
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET
Amounts due from related companies: FEUREAE A BISRIBAAT ¢
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited BAAEEEERAR([AXELEE]D
(“CTF Enterprises”) and its fellow subsidiaries MHERZRMB AR (HREA
(collectively referred to as [AXEEESEEDO
the “"CTF Enterprises Group”) (1)
— interest bearing portion (i) —5FEEBD (D — 945.0
— non-interest bearing portion (i) — FEET B BB i) — 2333
Entities in which a director of APR—REEHAETHB AR
certain subsidiaries of TR E R
the Company has control
— interest bearing portion (iv) — 5832 (v) - 100.0
- 12783




23. Amounts due from (to) Related Companies 23. U (FE{ST) BaHS A B F I8 )

(Continued)

Notes: Kt -

©) CTF Enterprises is a subsidiary of CTF Holding, which is an immediate 0) BAREITEARCTF Holdmg BB AT - BE
holding company of the Company. BARRNEEZERAR

(i The amount was unsecured and fully settled during the year ended 31 D) B AEKMEERNEE202E3 43181
March 2012. As at 31 March 2011, balance included HK$45.0 million which FERNGEE - R20N1E3 8318 » 54508
carried variable interest rates at 2.5% over Hong Kong Interbank Offered BTSSR AR BRTREREIN25%Et
Rate (“HIBOR™), while the remaining balance carried fixed interest rate at B REAIRETEFNERS50%ETE -

5.0% per annum.

(i)~ The amount was unsecured, interest-free and fully settled during the year (i) ZPFEAEET - 2EREREZE2012F3 A
ended 31 March 2012. IHIEFEREE -

(iv)  The amount as at 31 March 2011 was secured over the properties owned (iv) MR20NFE3IAINBEZZKIBECHEABARTHEAN
by the related companies and carried fixed interest rates of 4.8% per VR IRIR o ZNIBBMETEFE A 4.8%
annum. Amount was fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2012. REZE202F3AINALFEANLE -

In determining the recoverability of the amounts due from related RETEWEB AT ZREN AT OREER - &

companies, the Group monitors the changes in credit quality of the EEERARYEEREEREREEENE

amounts due from related companies since credit was granted and up RN Tﬁlﬁ{‘—"/"\%%ﬂﬂj{fﬁj%@ cEBERA
to the reporting date. The directors considered that the amounts due FEUR AR N B BB R B EA TR R BB - EEE
from related companies that are neither past due nor impaired to be ERfo

of a good credit quality.

2012 201
20124 20114
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEAT BHEATL
Maximum outstanding amounts during the year: FRKREBEZS S :
CTF Enterprises Group ﬂjv TEEE 1,178.3 1,765.2
Entities in which a director of certain subsidiaries AAT—REZHEE THBEAT
of the Company has control = %l T 100.0 110.0
1,278.3 1,875.2
2012 201
20124 20N4F
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEET BEAT
Amounts due to related companies: FEST RS R B SRR -
CTF Enterprises Group AXRELE %%‘%@
— interest bearing portion — 5T EES — 380.3
— non-interest bearing portion — 3t B E S — 7,453.0
- 7,833.3
The interest bearing portion of amounts due to CTF Enterprises ENARELEEENTEID AEEIR - iR
Group was unsecured, carried fixed interest rate at 5.0% per annum, FRER/SOBMETENETE - A TERAA
while the remaining balances are unsecured and interest free. All I LR B - FTAGESRREZE2012F 3 A 31
balances are fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2012. HEE RN -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z 2012 4 3 A 31 HILFE

24. Convertible Bonds

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group invested in an
unlisted convertible bonds with principal amount of AUS$3,000,000,
bearing interest at 8.0% per annum and a maturity date of 31
December 2014 (the “Maturity Date”), issued by a private entity (the
“Issuer”) which is principally engaged in agriculture and wholesale of
pearls in Australia. The Group is entitled at any time after the date of
issue up to the Maturity Date to redeem the convertible notes in cash
or pearls or combination of both or convert the convertible notes into
ordinary shares of the Issuer. The convertible notes comprised debt
component and embedded derivatives being the conversion option
and the Issuer’s early redemption option. Such convertible bonds are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss and in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the fair value of the convertible notes
on initial recognition and 31 March 2012 is substantially the same as
the carrying amount.

25. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses bullion forward contracts to reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in the gold prices on gold inventory. The Group does not
currently designate any hedging relationship on the bullion forward
contracts for the purpose of hedge accounting.

The bullion forward contracts are measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The fair values are determined based on the
market prices for equivalent instruments from banks at the end of the
reporting period. The total notional value of the outstanding bullion
forward contracts as at 31 March 2012 amounted to HK$1,896.2 million
(2011: HK$674.4 million) which have maturity period up to 3 months
since date of inception. As the fair value of outstanding bullion
forward contracts as at 31 March 2011 was negligible, such amount
was not recognised. As at 31 March 2012, the fair value of outstanding
bullion forward contracts was HK$47.3 million.

26. Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and

Cash

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the bank deposits carry interest
at the prevailing market rate of about 0.01% to 4.3% (2011: 0.01% to
0.4%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2011, pledged bank deposit amounted to HK$156.3
million was pledged to a bank to secure banking facility and gold
loans. As at 31 March 2012, the pledged bank deposits amounted to
HK$17.0 million mainly represent deposits pledged to a bank to secure
the payment of construction in progress that is expected to be
completed in 2013.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB were HK$3,317.7 million (2011: HK$2,058.6
million). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations in
Mainland China and the Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through authorised banks to
conduct business in foreign currency.

24,

25.

206.

A] 5 BRIE S

HE202FIANHLEFE  AEEKE B
JELEMAHES  N&E£ %A 3,000,0008
T FREB0%  FIHR A2014F12 A31H
(TE/HA ) BEZERMNNE B BREE R
BORLEER((BITADET - NEBBER
BITARBREIHAERERAE K HE W

EAMED A AR Z IR E R A R A
TARMEL R - TR EEEE &G ik
ARPTET R IRBERBETAZREED
o ZAHIBESFIETE AR AFETABE
MARREERE  ATHEBREEN & XER
R2012F 3 AN AN A EERmEASHER -

TETmIT A
AEENESERANRAEERFENESE
RRBER - pLEIP G S - AKB B AL
BRAREDERSNIEREMEINEE -

HeRPAONBERRIEAFEFE - AF
ERERFEHRRITERATENTHBERM
TF o R202F3/3H RAHHEERAAY
HEELER862EHEBITL(20114F 1 674.4
BESL) HRHZAAHNESHERIMEA -
HAR20NFI AR BNESRBEON
AFERTRE MHZSESETERNZSH
HIFUARER - R202F3 A318 - X HES
BHANNR T EAL7IBEBT -

EEMIBITERRITEBRK

Re

HE202F3A3BIULEE  BIIEFERRER
MHBEFEN F40.01% = 4.3% (20114 : <
F0.01%ZE0.4%) 5t 8 »

R201F 3 A31H - BERIFIRITFERIS6.3HE
BIEHENRTRHERELAECEEERT
—4R1T - R2012FE3 A31H » BHHRITF
RI7O0BERTEERTEHRR203FLTIHER
TR A — R RITVEIR IR o

R202F 34318  AEEZRARKETENIR
SRR EEYAIINT7TEEBT(20NE :
20586 BEBIT) c ARBYTAIERLBRA
Hap & A1 - ARIBEH R A8 BSNE
ERGOINRGEE SEMMPEEEMETE A%
EEEBBFTRITHETINEEL  BARE
HARBINE o



26. Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and 26. CIRFRITIER SRITHE B M

Cash (continuea) Iﬁ@ (&)
Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts HARTEBER SN TIEBEATIIRERBEE
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the (WIFEHERMEREMNINEER) JIEMFIE

relevant group entities:

2012 20Mm
20124 20N
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET AEAT
Us$ e 530.4 4289
27. Trade and Other Payables 27. B 5 KEMENTKIA
2012 201
20124 201
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET AEAT
Trade payables B S FIE 4449 3841
Deposits received from customers BRFIImMES 871.2 1137.6
Other tax payables HAb IR 39.3 242
Accruals et 104.1 1311
Accrued staff costs JEETE AR 253.7 167.7
Others EAh, 125.2 204.9
1,838.4 2,049.6
The Group normally receives credit terms of 7 to 180 days from its REFE - REEEETRNENEZESANTY
suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the HEISOATRE - LT ABREREZHHAER
end of each reporting period based on the invoice date: EHARHE B EN B ERR ST -
2012 20m
20124 201
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
O to 30 days 0&30H 244.5 1541
31to 90 days 31E290H 167.2 7.0
91t0 180 days 91E180 H 2.4 198.1
Over 180 days 180 HEA E 30.8 24.9
444.9 384.1
As at 31 March 2012, none of the trade payables (2011: HK$187.2 R2012FE3 8318 BSENMNZESIE20N
million) is amount due to an associate. F 187 2BBA L) BN —REE A RIMFIE -
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27. Trade and Other Payables continuea)

28.

As at 31 March 2012, none of the deposits received from customers
(201: HK$28.5 million) is in relation to entities in which certain

directors of the Company have control.

As at 31 March 2012, included in deposits received from customers of
HK$4.0 million (2011: HK$52.8 million) are from non-controlling

shareholders of subsidiaries.

Amounts due to Non-Controlling Shareholders

of Subsidiaries

27. B 5 N E A B FIE (@)

R2012FE3A31H  BREFWEMIEZE R &
(20NF : 285 BEB LI BTARBIETES
BIESIRENERE -

MR2012F3A31A  FABRPUEAIZE 4.0
BEBITQ0NE 528BEBT) REHMER
AIFEIERRAGER o

28. ERIIE A RIFEFEAR AR IR

2012 201

20125 2014

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEBT

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FETI B A B EE AR AR B SR

of subsidiaries:

— Interest bearing portion — st B — 91

— Non-interest bearing portion — IR B S 400.3 155.6

400.3 164.7

At 31 March 2011, the interest bearing portion is unsecured, carries
fixed interest rates of 6.1% per annum, and repayable on demand,
while the remaining balances are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

29. Bank Borrowings

R201F3A31H @ sFEEHD AEIEIF - ZE
EFEMECI%FTE - RIZEKATEE 8T
ERrBBEIET - B RIFERKA FEE -

29. IBITERX

2012 201N
2012%F 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEET
Bank loans HRITER 9,000.6 2,881.0
Secured HEA 4,533.4 700.0
Unsecured IR 4,467.2 21810
9,000.6 2,881.0
Carrying amount repayable FEEEREE

— within one year ——FR 5,574.2 2,881.0
— between one to two years — —FEMFNRN 3,426.4 —
9,000.6 2,881.0

Less: Amount due within one year shown B 2R RBEEE TR —FRN

under current liabilities EIER 2 30E (5,574.2) (2.881.0)

Amount due after one year — 18 EIH 2 508 3,426.4 —




29.

30.

Bank Borrowings ccontinuea)

The bank borrowings carry variable interests rates ranging from 1.0%
to 1.6% over HIBOR per annum or 98% to 110% of The People’s Bank of
China Standard Loan Interest Rate ("PBOC Rate”) (2011: 0.3% to 1.3%
over HIBOR per annum, or 90% to 110% of PBOC Rate) per annum.

As at 31 March 2012, the range of interest rates on the bank
borrowings were 1.4% to 7.2% (2011: 0.8% to 5.6%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2012, certain banking facilities were secured by
personal guarantee from the Company’s executive director, Dr. Cheng
Kar-Shun, Henry, and by certain listed securities owned by CTF
Enterprises. At 31 March 2011, certain banking facilities were supported
by corporate guarantee of and/or secured by certain assets owned
by CTF Enterprises Group which was released upon listing of the
Company on the Stock Exchange in December 2011,

All bank borrowings are denominated in functional currency of
relevant group entities.

Gold Loans

The amounts represent borrowings from banks and the amounts
payable are pegged with gold prices.

At 31 March 2011, certain gold loans are secured by pledged bank
deposits of the Group, corporate guarantee and/or certain listed
securities owned by CTF Enterprises which was released upon listing
of the Company on the Stock Exchange in December 2011. At 31
March 2012, the gold loans carry fixed interests rates of 1.3% to 5.5%
(20M: 1.3% to 3.5%) per annum, with original maturity of 2 to 12 months
from date of inception.

Gold loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuations in
gold prices on gold inventories. However, the criteria for hedge
accounting were not fully met. Gold loans were designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Included in gold loans are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than functional currency of the relevant group
entities:

29.

30.

IRITE R ()

RITERIRZFBFANERAL  FIRABBBRTT
RIZEFEINI0% E1.6% HiLF B A RBITIZLE
ERFEFE(ARBITHE]) 8% EN0%ETE
(2ON4F « HHWITRIZEFEMNO0.3% E1.3% 5K
ARIRITRIE 0% =110%) °

R2012F3A31H  BRRITERWERNEN
T14% 2 72% (20114 : 0.8% E5.6%) °

R2012%F 3 A31H - HFRITREB AR R AR
TEEHRGEIFTITELZBARBULB
BABLERENE T LHEHFER - K201
FIAINA HEFRTBBHAAERIE
k/SHEAAECEERBEENETEE(ER
A B 20M4F12 A TE B 22 B TR AR BR ) 1
A o

i}
313

FARITERIREAEEERNINEERIIE -

A

g =

=EEE

SHENERTER  MENKERES MBS
FMl o

R20NF3A3NH  ETESEEHAEED
EIFRITER - R ERE /KA ELEDN
AT EMEEEER ZSEEFERAQFTR
20M4F12 ATEBE P L IR R BR © IR 20124 3
AZH B¢ EERFFE1I%ZES5% (201N
FEMRIZ%EILSS) WEEFNRTE R
FEHEAREBRE =+ @A -

ERECEEENERREEFTEXESE
BRBHEE  AMARETEMAEIRETHE -
EeEEEERRATENABENERAE -

SAESEERTIIRAEREY (AFEHEE
ERENEER)JIENFA

2012 201
2012%F 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
Us$ e 2,862.1 2,024.0
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31. Share Capital/Paid-in Capital 3. BASEHER
The paid-in capital of the Group at 31 March 2010 represented the AEBR2010F3A3IBNEHE A JTyiE
paid-in capital of CTF Jewellery, Solomon Watch & Jewellery Co., BABRE TRPIESERKERAE LT[R
Limited (“Solomon Watch™), Gold Kind Investments Limited (“Gold PIEk]) @ EREBRAR(EE]D - BB
Kind"), East Concept Investments Limited (“East Concept”), Texon KREBBRAR([RBE]) - EHAREERAR([1E
Investments Limited (“Texon”), CTF Diamond Trading Company W) AREBLESERAR(XEELA]) -
Limited (“CTF Diamond”), Techni Development Investment Limited ERNBEREEAERAR(ERN]) - FEEEE
(“Techni™), Shanghai Fulong Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Limited BAXAEHREAR AT ([ LEEE]  REZRF
(“Shanghai Fulong™), Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery Company Limited KESTERAT (R ZEZE®R]) - BLmIEE
(“Wuhan Hanfu”), Foshan Shunde Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company BRXEHESTEEREAR(IEBZREAE]) -
Limited (“Shunde CTF”), Chow Tai Fook Jewellery (Shenzhen) BABAXBHE2TGEY) BR 28U FY
Company Limited (“Shenzhen CTF”), Fook Kwan Jewellery BRG] EHEEEaHNEFRE AR 1B
Manufacturing Limited (“Fook Kwan”), CTF Macau, Hong leng B BREAFY - BEREZESER AR E
Investment Import and Export Company Limited (“Hong leng”) and EDEEAAEREARAG(TAREEE]®
Chow Tai Fook Investment Company Limited (“CTF Taiwan”). BRENR o
The paid-in capital of the Group at 31 March 2011 represented the KEBR20NMFEIAIEHBE G E K TiE
paid-in capital of CTF Jewellery, Gold Kind, East Concept, Texon, BAEGYE £ BEe -EZH4 WETiExE
Aesthetics Workshop Limited, CTF Diamond, Techni, Shanghai BRAR - K@#EA - =F - E/EEE  RE
Fulong, Wuhan Hanfu, Shunde CTF, Shenzhen CTF, Fook Kwan, CTF ZwEEERKAKE FUNEKE - BE-
Macau, Hong leng and CTF Taiwan. BAXERM BERBAAEESENEHER -
The share capital at 31 March 2012 represented the share capital of the AREER2012F3 A I1TBHRATIEARARIH
Company. N
Movement of share capital of the Company is as follows: AARRAZEWNT -
Authorised Issued and fully paid
EE ERTRER
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
[ &8 [ °8F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEATL BEETL
Ordinary shares of US$1.00 each FAEE1.00 A E @
Upon incorporation A 50,000 0.4 1 -
Repurchase of share fEE R - — m -
Diminished by cancellation LARE 577 =B (50,000) ©.4) — -
Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each BREE100 BT TR
Increase authorised share capital BIEE R A 50,000,000,000 50,000.0 — —
Issue of shares upon Group SEEAERR T
Reorganisation - - 780 -
Capitalisation issue BAR(LELT - - 8,949,999,220 8,950.0
Issue of shares MRinE4T — - 1,050,000,000 1,050.0
50,000,000,000 50,000.0 10,000,000,000 10,000.0




3l

Share Capital/Paid-in Capital ccontinuea

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2011 with an authorised
share capital of US$50,000 divided into 50,000 shares of a nominal
or par value of US$1 each. Upon incorporation of the Company, one
share of US$1 was issued at US$1.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolutions which were passed on 17
November 2011 and 29 November 2011 to approve the matters set out
in the paragraph headed “Resolutions in Writing of Our Shareholders
Passed on 17 November 2011 and 29 November 2011” in Appendix V to
the Company’s prospectus dated 5 December 2011

[©) the authorised share capital of the Company was increased by
HK$50,000,000,000 by the creation of an additional
50,000,000,000 shares with nominal value of HK$1.00 each.
The Company allotted and issued 780 shares to CTF Holding
for aggregate cash consideration of HK$780. The Company
repurchased and cancelled the one issued share of US$1.00 in
the capital of the Company in issue immediately prior to the
issue of the new shares. The authorised but unissued share
capital of the Company was diminished by the cancellation of all
the 50,000 unissued shares with a nominal value US$1.00 each
in the capital of the Company; and

(i) the share premium account was credited as a result of the
allotment and issue of the offer shares pursuant to the global
offering of the Company, the directors of the Company were
authorised to capitalise an amount of HK$8,949,999,220
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company by applying such sum in paying up in full at par
8,949,999,220 shares for allotment and issue to the sole
member of the Company whose name appeared in the register
of members of the Company at close of business on 15
November 2011 (or as it may direct).

On 15 December 2011, 1,050,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each
of the Company were issued at HK$15.0 per share by way of public
offering. On the same date, the Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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TELREERRE AR AERAAE50000%
JT 9 A50,000 R EREAE A1 ETHRD -
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ETTHIRR -

BE20MEN 17 AR 201M4E11 29 RRiBE
RAHLER 201F12 A5 A FIEE R Z 2 M Al &
NEIREARRN B R 20ME11 F17 H E 20114
A20HBBMNEEAZR] —BAHEEMNK

RORME

()  AARFEHREEIN50,000,000,000 8
TR EE1.00 B TR IR0 5 H A E i A
1 1150,000,000,000 7T » AR 7]
CTF Holding it 2 K 8 17 780 Bz fx 17 -
BHERBAHRTS0E L ARAINEE
BTHRMHAER REHEARR D BT
fEANh — R EE1.00E T2 BTG -
RARPEEEREITRADERD &
R AR R A+ 2 2050,000 %
TREE1O0ETLMAREITRG + &

(i HEARARARGDEEENRIEBEAQAZER
BEMBERBETHEERHENGERN
BRT  BEARGEZBARA KRG
% (B B8R 7R 8,949,999,220 7 T K # IR #
TEA LZEcEEREESR
8,949,999,220 X A% 15 + LA £ fic 3% K 3%
TFR201FENA15 B (IR E st E
RBH) L EBRERBEIIARTIRE
AR AR D EIME— R o

R201E12 4150 RABAARBEER AL
FRA 1) 15.0 8L E1T1,050,000,000 & 1%
EE100ETHEBR - AR - AARRMDR
B PTEAR T o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE WIS RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #Z 2012 4 3 A 31 HILFE

32. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

In May 2010, the Group acquired 50% of registered capital of Beijing
Dade Xinfu Jewellery Company Limited (“Beijing Dade Xinfu”) for a
consideration of HK$5.7 million from an associate. After the acquisition
and pursuant to the terms of the supplementary joint venture
agreement, the Group obtained the control over the operating and
financing activities of Beijing Dade Xinfu. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method. The amount of discount
on acquisition is HK$17.2 million. Beijing Dade Xinfu is engaged in sale
of jewellery products and acquired for continuous expansion of the
Group’s business in Mainland China.

In September 2011, for the purpose of enhancing the Group’s vertical
integration, the Group acquired the entire equity interests of the
following three entities, using acquisition method:

(@) American Overseas Investment Inc. (“American Overseas”), a
company incorporated in Delaware, for a consideration of
HK$14.5 million from a close family member of a director of the
Company. American Overseas is an investment holding
company and owns 84% equity interests of Zlotowski’'s
Diamond Cutting Works (Proprietary) Limited, a company
incorporated in South Africa and is engaged in diamond cutting
and polishing;

(b)  Lun Jiao Industrial (Hong Kong) Limited (“Lun Jiao”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong, for a consideration of
HK$150.0 million. Lun Jiao is an investment holding company
and owns entire equity interests of Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery
Company Limited (“Yushunfu”), a company established in the
PRC and is engaged in manufacturing of jewellery products;

(c) Bojuehang Jewellery Manufacturing (Shenzhen) Limited
(“Bojuehang”), a company incorporated in the PRC, for a
consideration of HK$24.4 million, from an entity with commmon
director of the Company and is engaged in manufacturing of
jewellery products.

32.

i i B B 2 7

M2010F5 A « ANEE R — KB & QR UKEELL
RAREFBURESTERAR([IERREFE])
HS0%AMER  REAS7TEEET - WiHE
BRBBH TS ERHEOER - NEBIRSGIE
RAEFBA S M E T b - 2 g
BWEEEYIR - WRITENSEA728ERS
e R REFENEHEKRSTER - AEH
ARBEERERENDOESKmME LT AE
FriRE TR o

R20MFOR  RMBAEENEEES A
SELABER B AT ZHEEN 2R AE

Bl

(a) American Overseas Investment Inc.
([ American Overseas]) & — R fEH
FUNGEMRKZIB AR - REBAKE145
BEBITRARNRR M ESANRE -
American Overseas &— R E LKA
A # A Zlotowski's Diamond
Cutting Works (Proprietary) Limited
([Zlotowski])84% % & # z=+ M
Zlotowski & — R R IEFEMK LA A
Al WHEEAYE RITEER

(b)) WEIXER(FBE)ERAF(HRHED
BRXREBEMRINRF  AEE
IAR(EI50.0 AEBTUE - REA—K
RERBRT - HA G L IERE S B
AERDE([#IERE D2 5B -
m#aIER R — RN BIK IR F - )
EREERLEERET

© HEETRIEEHCRIDAERAR(HE
TR KNP BEEMARIZNRE &
EEAEEFIHRARAEEFNEEMU
RE244B8BTWE  MEBTRE
KEEREERET -



32. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continued)

32. WEEPI B R 7l )

Details of consideration of each acquisition are as follows: SUENREFBHT
2012 201N
20125 2014
American Beijing
Overseas Lun Jiao Bojuehang Dade Xinfu
e BET  ERAETE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEAT
Consideration satisfied by cash ~ LAIR& LRI E 14.5 150.0 24.4 57

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the respective dates of

acquisition are as follows:

REEBARANCUBEERBENT

2012 201
20124 20N4F
American Beijing
Overseas Lun Jiao Bojuehang Dade Xinfu
E BBT  tRAENE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBET BEAET BEART BEAT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE REE 16.4 122.6 3.5 03
Prepaid lease payment AT HEERIE — 16.7 — —
Amount due from a related FEUL RSN B FIR
company - - 16.1 —
Inventories FE 168.7 - - 352
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAEKGRIE 24.2 2.3 0.6 6.7
Bank balances and cash IRITEB RS 7.6 29.8 6.1 87
Trade and other payables E 5 R EAERRIA 3.7) (21.2) 1.7) an
Taxation payable FERTHRIR an (0.4) (0.2) -
Amount due to a group company JEfTEBE A B RIE (197.9) (0.5) — —
Bank borrowings RITER - - - (4.0)
14.2 149.3 24.4 458
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32. WESPI B R 7l

ARFEERS  BUWHEHNRKGIR(E2EH
B 5 N EL A R TR T i S X ) OR) B A
FEELAQOREMRE - RUE B B E B UK
HaHBRREMNREMFIERBIRUER -

32. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value of the
receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade and other
receivables and amount due from a related company) approximates
to the gross contractual amounts, the best estimate at acquisition
date of the contractual cash flows of the receivables are expected to

be collected.
2012 201
20124 2014
American Beijing
Overseas Lun Jiao Bojuehang Dade Xinfu
= BET ItRKEFE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT BHEAT BEATL
Consideration transferred RBEEERE 14.5 150.0 24.4 57
Plus: Non-controlling interests hn s SEIERRAERS (it a)
(Note a) 23 - - 229
Less: Fair values of identified B FTIRB R AT R B E
net assets acquired FEATE 14.2) (149.3) (24.4) (45.8)
Goodwill (discount) arising on WHEEERE (TE)
acquisitions (Note b) (Miztb) 2.6 0.7 - 17.2)
Net cash (outflow) inflow on W EEMNIRS (ORE)
acquisition MAHEE
Cash and cash equivalent IR e MR EEY
balances acquired Fes 7.6 29.8 6.1 87
Less: Cash considerations paid B BEXRRERE (14.5) (150.0) (24.4) B
(6.9) (120.2) (18.3) 3.0
Notes: Bifet -
(@)  The non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share (a)  FEIERRAE A AR IZ LL (I FEAG P U B & R R

of the fair value of net assets acquired.

(b) Discount on acquisition was recognised as other income for the year
ended 31 March 201. Goodwill arising on acquisitions were written off to

other expenses upon recognition.

®)

ATAEE -

WEFEEREE20NFEI AIIB L FEER
BEAA - WHEBE SN ERERR S
FHMAR ©



32. Acquisition of Subsidiaries continuea) 32. WHEKT B~ Al
Profit and revenue attributable to the respective acquisitions during NER » SUBEBFEGREN RSEENT -
the year are as follows:
2012 201
2012%F 20N
American Beijing
Overseas Lun Jiao Bojuehang Dade Xinfu
k= BEBT  dEERAEE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BHEBT BEBT BEAT
(Loss) profit (E518) % A (2.8) (@A) (1.0) 14.6
Revenue B — - — 793
Had the acquisition of Beijing Dade Xinfu been completed on 1 April B WAL R AEFRN 20104 4 A1A K
2010, total group revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 201 REBZE2ONFIRIAEFENEEELERE
would have been HK$35,063.1 million and HK$3,675.3 million, X% R Bl fE & 35,063.18 &% T 23,6753
respectively. Had the acquisition of American Overseas, Lun Jiao and BEAT o MEYEE American ngrseas <
Bojuehang been completed on 1 April 2011, total group revenue and HEAEEBITR20NFE4 1Bk REE
profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 would have been HK$56,580.8 20R2F3A3NBILFE E"U%ﬁi MEEBIORN
million and HK$6,586.7 million, respectively. The pro-forma z} 5 FE 556,580.8 B & BT 6,586.78H &
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an e BEARERZE  RURRMER LR
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group that IBEED RN 2010F 4 18 R 20N1%F 4 A18
actually would have been achieved had the above acquisitions been TEREAEEARISHER S EBREEES -
completed on 1 April 2010 and 1 April 2011, respectively, nor is it ERABZ BRI FERREESTEA -
intended to be a projection of future results.
: : @ AN A T
33. Operating Lease Commitments 33. R HE AR
The Group as lessee AEBERAABEA
At the end of each reporting period, the Group was committed to REREHR - AEEAFGLEE N A HH
make the following future minimum lease payments which represent L2 EER TSR EORRERS N
lease payments of its rented premises and royalty fees of certain RRFABRDENES RETEENENE)
trademarks, under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as =K
follows:
2012 201N
20125 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET
Within one year —FR 620.5 380.0
In the second to fifth year inclusive ECEERF (RIEEEWMF) 663.7 437.4
Over five years HEFLAE 7.8 298
1,292.0 8472
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33. Operating Lease Commitments continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Included in above are commitments to entities in which certain
directors of the Group have control:

33.

BT B R IE )

AEBERAEBA @
HALEXFEARAEBETESHEAILH
BB REAE -

2012 201

20125 20N4F

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEET

Within one year —FR 3.5 26
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFENT (BIEEEMTE) 4.4 6.5
7.9 91

Majority of leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term
ranging from 1year to 4 years. Operating leases in respect of royalty
fees are fixed for lease term ranging from 2 years to 5 years.

There are certain lease arrangements, according to which the Group
are committed to pay either minimum guaranteed amounts or
monthly payments equivalent to a prescribed percentage of monthly
sales as rental, whichever the higher.

XBHBODEREBAEE  BE—FENF
MRS TR - SHEHEEARREMEET
FRTE -

RIEETHERS  AREAGEINREER
CHXERASAEENRETAILNEAES
(ABR=ERE) -

34. Capital Commitments 34, BAREYE
2012 201
20124 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEET
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition  FEULEEYE - BE R ED
of property, plant and equipment authorised BRFTHNERFAZ
but not contracted for 308.3 —
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BT - BB MEEERTL
provided in the financial statements in respect B RREI# @K T
of the acquisition of property, plant BENEARY
and equipment 75.9 30.0




35. Retirement Benefits Scheme

Defined contribution scheme

The Group participates in defined contribution schemes which are
registered under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the
Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents contributions payable to the funds
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where
there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employee. The maximum monthly amount of
contribution is limited to HK$1,000 per employee.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China and Macau are members of pension schemes operated by local
government of Mainland China and the Macau government,
respectively. The subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to
contribute a certain percentage of the relevant cost of the payroll of
these employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The
subsidiary in Macau is required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contribution under the schemes.

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company provide defined pension benefits
to the employees, who joined to these subsidiaries before 1995. The
amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary and years
of services. The Group does not set aside any assets to fund such
obligations.

Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension between
25% and 40% of final salary for each year of pensionable service at an
age of 65. No other post-retirement benefits are provided. The most
recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit
obligations were carried out in March 2012 by Towers Watson Hong
Kong Limited (“Towers Watson”), Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries,
using the projected unit credit method. The principal place of business
of Towers Watson is 27/F and 29/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour
Road, Hong Kong. The assumptions which have the most significant
effect on the results of the valuation are discount rate, retirement rate,
turnover rate, mortality rate and the rate of increase in salaries.
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35.

Retirement Benefits Scheme ccontinued)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued)

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

35. RIKEFETE] )

EEENGE (2
Fris A EERERBMT -

2012 201

20125 2014

Discount rate ARIR = 1.5% 2.9%
Expected rate of salary increase TEHRF & 1IN bL & 3.5% 3.5%
Turnover rate plEEERES 0% 0%

Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the defined benefit
pension scheme are as follows:

FERR A BIPME AR FIANT

2012 201

20125 20N

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEAT

Current service cost REFE RIS AN 2.3 26
Interest on obligation AIEAFE 4.6 4.6
Actuarial loss (gain) BHEEE () 34.9 a7n
41.8 55

The charge for the year ended 31 March 2012 has been included in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial

HZE202F3AIHLEFENEADALS
2HERER °

AEBERpEREERMNAEMT NGRS M

position arising from the Group’s obligations in respect of its defined R R B EIEN T ¢
benefit obligations is as follows:
2012 201
2012 2014
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Present value of defined benefit obligations EREBANEIERE 196.9 162.6

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit contribution
obligations are as follows:

SEREFIHFOREREZBIT

2012 201

20124 20N4F

HK$ million HK$ million

BEEBT BEAT

At 1 April n4 A1H 162.6 164.0
Service costs BRI AN 2.3 26
Interest costs B R AS 4.6 46
Actuarial loss (gain) BEERE (W) 34.9 a7
Benefits paid B X1 (7.5) (6.9
At 31 March R3A3R 196.9 1626




36. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution which were passed on 17 November 2011, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting skilled and experienced
personnel, to incentivise them to remain with the Group and to
motivate them to strive for the future development and expansion of
the Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity
interests in the Company. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors), the directors of the subsidiaries, the employees
of the Group and any other persons (including consultants or
advisers) who the directors of the Company consider, in its absolute
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group (the
“Participants”).

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on 17 November 2011. An offer of the grant of
an option shall be made to a Participant by a notice of grant requiring
the Participant to undertake to hold the option on the terms on which
it is to be granted (which may include a minimum period for which the
option must be held before it can be exercised and a performance
target that must be reached before the option can be exercised in
whole or in part) and to be bound by the terms of the Share Option
Scheme. An offer of the grant of an option is deemed to be accepted
by the Participant (the “Grantee”) when the Company receives from
the Grantee the duplicate notice of grant duly signed by the Grantee.
An offer may be accepted or deemed to have been accepted in
respect of less than the number of shares in respect of which it is
offered, provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot or an
integral multiple thereof. No amount is payable by the Grantee upon
acceptance of an offer of an option. The offer shall remain open for
acceptance for such time to be determined by the directors of the
Company, provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the Share Option Scheme or after the termination
of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with its terms or after the
Participant to whom the offer is made has ceased to be a Participant.
To the extent that the offer is not accepted within the time period and
in the manner specified in the offer, the offer will be deemed to have
been irrevocably declined.

The exercise price shall be determined by the directors of the
Company, and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share
on the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, no share options were granted
nor exercised by the Company.
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37.

Related Party Transactions

37. BB RS

() Other than the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in () BREEMBREANEMBSTEZRENZS
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had entered REEsIN - REBERFERNEIL N5
into the following related party transactions during the year: BT 5

2012 201
20124 20N
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEAT
Continuing related party transactions: BEEEARS
Advertising expenses paid to entities in which EXAARE TEEHE
certain directors of the Company have BN E RN ESFY
control 3.7 7.0
Concessionaire fees paid to entities in which B XNAATETESHES
certain directors of the Company have BN BN EE DK
control 155.1 na.2
Concessionaire fees paid to non-controlling B X T B A I SHEAR MR A
shareholders of subsidiaries HEDK 20.8 13.6
Engineering services fee paid to entities in EXMARARETEEN
which a close family member of certain AHRRBKEHES
directors of the Company has control ZHEN BN TIERGE 12.5 86
Rental expenses paid to entities in which EXARARE TESHERIEHIREN
certain directors of the Company have ERENESHEY
control 109.8 79.6
Sales of goods to non-controlling BlNEYNS B
shareholders of subsidiaries HEEM 122.8 36.8
Purchase of goods and commission paidto  BEERRARATE TESE
entities in which certain directors of BEHENEREMTHAS
the Company have control 19.2 1.6
Discontinued related party transactions: BRILBAEAIRS :
Interest income received from B LA T2 B UER R FI U A
— CTF Enterprises Group —ARELEER 22.6 46.7
— Entity in which a director of certain — RARR—REEHBEART
subsidiaries of the Company has control B ARIEFIENEE 2.3 47
Sub-contracting fee paid to the companies BENARAREEEEAEHS
in which the key management personnel of ~ EBAFEZH AT N BER
the Company has significant influence 126.2 1822
Purchase of raw materials from an entity in MARRETESNIIHRRE
which certain close family members of REHAEHENERES
certain directors of the Company have Bk
control 304.6 482.7
Interest expense paid to CTF Enterprises EXfTARECESENF S
Group e 7.9 186
Consideration paid for acquisition of a PUEE— R B R BRI QA
subsidiary to an associate SRRE = 5.7
Consideration paid for acquisition of a RUEE—RHIBARIMARRESR
subsidiary to a close family member of a REHRRBKE S HRE
director of the Company 14.5 —
Donation paid to charities in which certain MARNTETESHEEGIER
directors of the Company have control RREWBIIRNR 6.5 385




37. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(i) remuneration paid for key management personnel includes the
directors of the Company and key executives as disclosed in
note 13.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

(i)  Save as disclosed in notes 29 and 30, CTF Enterprises Group
provided guarantee and pledged certain of its assets in favour
of the Group as securities to certain banks for the bank
borrowings and gold loans of the Group during the year ended
31 March 2011 As at 31 March 2012, certain banking facilities
were secured by personal guarantee from the Company’s
executive director, Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, and by certain
listed securities owned by CTF Enterprises.

38. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period are set out below:

Issue and fully paid

37. B S m

(i ZFNFEEEBAENMES BIEMEZ
BENARBEERTIEITRAS -

EERTETHRABNMEZEhHH
ZEBGRBENALHRRLTIEBES
METE °

(i)  BME29 X 30FTEEEIN - REZ 201N
FIANALFE  ARECEEEDRIER
HEUAREEBATZEANERLEHES
FEE  EAETRITAAEEIRHIR
TERERECEEMNERE - R201243
A3H - BETRITABAARNRAINITE
EHERMELEH 2 EARZURA
BARBEERENET EWEHFKR -

38 AREI X EMN B AT
THARBERRAR AT EMBA T 254 -

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued
share capital/

Place and date of share capital/ registered capital/
incorporation/ registered capital/ quota capital
Name of subsidiaries establishment quota capital held by the Group Principal activities
BRIRME AEEMECRITRE
Balijs BAEMER, HMEX BHEEAX
ME LR ER R B R B BEER HEZEE TEER
2012 2011
20125 2014
CTF Watch Limited British Virgin Islands Share 100% 100%  Investment holding
(“CTF Watch”) “BVI") US$1 BEER
(formerly known as 13 December 2010 [SENEM
“Pacific Cosmo RBHERARS
International Limited”) ((EBERRESE])
BREEZER AR 2010412 A13H
(TAXEEKR])
(3178 [FREBRAR QR
Highrise Achiever Limited* BVI Share 100% — Investment holding
(“Highrise™) 20 June 2011 US$!1 BEER
(BRBRRE)(EX]) REBHBARES [EENES
20146 A20H
Majestic Project Limited BVI Share 100% 100%  Investment holding
(“Majestic”) 3 March 201 US$1 TEER
(ERBERAR)([EE]) RBHER RS RRAIZETT
2043 A3AH
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38. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued) 38. NARIEEWEB AT @

Name of subsidiaries

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

Issue and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital
held by the Group

Principal activities

BERIRME AEEMECRITRE
HMRL BAEMER, HMEX BEEX
MELRERE R B R B BEER EEZLE TEER
2012 201
20124 20114
Sincere Elite Limited BVI Share 100% 100%  Investment holding
(“Sincere Elite”) 2 March 201 US$1 BEER
(B AR (38 ]) EBHER RS [eNESH
20N¥F3A2A
American Overseas Delaware, the United Shares 100% — Investment holding
Investment Inc. States of America US$10 TEER
(“American Overseas”) (the “USA”) fEA103ETT
26 January 1973
EBER N
1973%F1726H
Bentley Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of diamond
(“Bentley”) 10 January 2008 HIK$10,000 EREE
(FBNBZERRF) BE TR
(Tahn 2008F1A10H 10,0005 7T
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sale of jewellery
Company Limited 6 March 1961 HK$350,000,000 products and
(“CTF Jewellery”) BB LR A watches
AXEKRESTERAR 19613 A6H 350,000,000 IREEMRERIEE
((AXBHED
CTF Watch (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share 100% 100%  Sale of watches
("CTF Watch HK") 7 February 2011 HK$1 ERIHE
(AR EES (BE)BRRF) B TR
([AXEEERES]) 20142/ 7H T
Fook Kwan Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Manufacturing of

Manufacturing Limited 23 February 1979 HK$500,000 jewellery products
(“Fook Kwan”) 5B TR KREEMEE
BHABENEERR AR 19792 A23H 500,000/

(M85 )




Name of subsidiaries

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

38. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued)

Issue and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital

38, KRRIEZEME AT @)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital
held by the Group

Principal activities

BRIRME AEEMECRITRER
Bilijo BAEMER, HMEX BHEEX
MELRERE R B R B BEER HEEZLE TEEE
2012 201
20124 20114

Lun Jiao Industrial Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% —  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited 15 October 1971 HK$200 REER
("Lun Jiao”) B8 LA

(BT EERE(BB)BRAR) 19719108158 20077T
(Ma%kl)

Solomon Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sale of watches and
Co., Limited 24 November 2004 HK$100 investment holding
(“Solomon Watch”) B8 LB ANI00E T BERHE IR EER

FEEFISERIRE AR A A 20044 N A24R
(TFrzErIsEsk )

Techni Development Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sale of jewellery
Investment Limited (“Techni”) 26 May 2005 HK$5,000,000 products and

CEFBREREERDA) &5 LRI investment holding
G2 2005F5H26H 5,000,000/ 7T RBEDEE RRE

PERR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Macau Quota capital 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
and Watch Company 17 March 2009 MOP5,000,000 products and
(Macau) Limited BT [REEREWN watches
(“CTF Macau”) 2009F3A17H 5,000,000/2F9 70 KEEMRERIEE
(formerly known as
“Forever Watch Limited”

AXBHREES CRFI) BRAF
(TRAARERM])

(mii (xBEEAR AR

Zlotowski's Diamond Cutting The Republic of Shares 84% —  Diamond cutting
Works (Proprietary) Limited South Africa ZAR10,020,000 and polishing
(“Zlotowski”) (the “South Africa”) AR EOYE RITE

25 October 1951 10,020,000F JER 55

FIFE A ([R3E D)
19514710 A 25 H
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38. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued) 38. NARIEEWB AT @

Name of subsidiaries

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

Issue and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital
held by the Group

Principal activities

BERIRME AEEMECRITRE
SR BAEMER, HMEX BEEX
MELRERE R B R B BEER HEZLE TEER
2012 201
20124 20114

Beijing Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sale of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 13 November 2006 US$5,000,000 products
("Beijing CTF”) HEg AR KEERHE

I RBAREHRESTTERAT 2006FNA13A 5,000,000%7T
(HERAXED

Bojuehang Jewellery PRC" Registered Capital 100% —  Manufacturing of
Manufacturing (Shenzhen) 16 April 2003 HK$1,000,000 jewellery products
Limited (“Bojuehang”) HE FAfER HEEMEE

BETHREEH ORI 2003F4A16H 1,000,000/ 7T
BRAT (A7)

Chongaqing Chow Tai Fook PRC* Registered capital 100% 100%  Sale of watches
Watch Marketing Limited 25 December 2008 RMB10,000,000 SEIRIHE
(“Chongqging CTF Watch”)  #E~ AfER

EEAARERHEERRAR 200812 A25H AR#10,000,0007T
((EEAXBER]

Chongaing Flamingo PRC* Registered capital 70% 97%  Sale of watches
Watch Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB1,000,000 SEIRIHE
(“Chongaing Flamingo™) RE FAfER

EFEHREERARAR 200812 A25H AR#1,000,0007T
(EEEHE))

Chongqing Kaifu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 51% 50%* Sale of jewellery
Company Limited 25 December 2008 RMB5,000,000 products
(“Chongaing Kaifu”) HRE AfER KREERHEE

EEMHEKRERITTERAR 2008412 A25H AR¥E5,000,00070
== =)

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sale of jewellery
(Chongaging) Company 23 December 2008 US$2,000,000 products
Limited (“CTF Chongaing”) ~ #EI" A A REEMIFE

BREHRESTT(EE)ARADE  2008%F12H23H 2,000,000% T

(TAXBEE]D




38, KRRIEZEME AT @)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital

38. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued)

Issue and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/

Place and date of
incorporation/

Name of subsidiaries

establishment

quota capital

held by the Group

Principal activities

BRIRME AEEMECRITRER
KL BAEMER, HMEX BHEEX
MELRERE R B R B BEER EEZLE TEEE
2012 201
20124 20114

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing and
(Shenzhen) Company 2 April 2002 US$40,000,000 sale of jewellery
Limited (“Shenzhen CTF”) AR SHE R products

AXEHRESTORIDARAT 200264 H2H 40,000,000%7T REEREEREE
(MRINAKRED

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sale of jewellery
(Suzhou) Company Limited 11 January 2006 US$30,000,000 products
(“CTF Suzhou™) i AR KEEMEE

BAREBHRERTTEMN)ARLIF 200651 A1H 30,000,000% 7T
(TRRIAREEM])

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sale of jewellery
(Wuhan) Company Limited 29 January 2008 US$2,500,000 products
(“CTF Wuhan”) HrE & A KEEMEE

EREHRESTT(HUR)BARAR 2008F1829R 2,500,000% T
(TAXERZ]

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery PRC” Registered capital 100% 100%  Sale of jewellery
Zhangjiagang Baoshui 21 April 2010 US$5,000,000 products
Company Limited FEn A KREEMIEE
(“CTF Zhangjiagang”) 201044218 5,000,000%7T

BAREHRESTRRBRTIE
BRAR(EABRRE]

Foshan Shunde Yuda PRC” Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Jewellery Manufacturing 14 March 2007 HK$5,000,000 jewellery products
Limited (“Shunde Yuda”) FEn EEA KBERLEE

BILTIEERREREHMESE 2007938140 5,000,000/ 70
BRAT([EE®E])

Foshan Yushunfu Jewellery PRC" Registered capital 100% —  Manufacturing of
and Diamond Company 9 November 1988 US$14,430,000 jewellery products
Limited (“Yushunfu”) R [EaliE=¥N HEEMEE

L IEE a B A ERAR 1988F11H9H 14,430,000% 70

(T8 E4E 1)
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38. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued) 38. NARIEEWB AT @

Name of subsidiaries

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

Issue and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital
held by the Group

Principal activities

BERIRME AEEMECRITRE
SR BAEMER, HMEX BEEX
MELRERE R B R B BEER HEZLE TEER
2012 201
20124 20114

Guangdong Chow Tai Fook PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Sale of jewellery
Jewellery Company Limited 10 December 2007 US$5,000,000 products
(“Guangdong CTF”) ARE AfER HEEMEE

BRAXERESTTBRAR 2007412 B10A 5,000,0003 T
(TEREXE]

Guangdong Zhaofu Jewellery ~ PRC* Registered capital 50%"* 50%* Sale of jewellery
Company Limited 28 February 2003 RMB10,000,000 products
(“Guangdong Zhaofu”) RE FER KREEMHEE

BERERKESTTARAR 2003F2H28A AE#10,000,0007T
(TER=ERE]D

Kunming Yinfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 70% 70%  Sale of jewellery
Company Limited 20 January 2003 RMB5,000,000 products
(“Kunming Yinfu”) A AfER HEEMEE

RAREBAREEMHERAA 2003%F1H20H AE#5000,0007T
(TRFARE ]

Lida Noble Metal Technology ~ PRC" Registered capital 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
and Development 31 March 2006 HK$10,000,000 jewellery products
(Shenzhen) Limited HE AfER REEREE
("Shenzhen Lida”) 20063 A31H 10,000,000/ 7T

MEEeBITEEMAE R
ARAT(DRYIFZED

Shenzhen CTF Watch Limited  PRC" Registered capital 100% —  Sale of watches
(“Shenzhen CTF Watch”) 27 June 201 HK$100,000,000 BERHE

(M BARBERBRAR]) HE AR
(DRYIAAfRsESR]) 20MF6H27RH 100,000,000/ 7T

Wuhan Hanfu Jewellery PRC* Registered capital 70% 70%  Sale of jewellery
Company Limited 26 November 2003 RMB15,000,000 products
("“Wuhan Hanfu”) HRE AfER KREEMRHEE

(REEERESTERAR)
(TREZERE])

200341 A26H

AE#15,000,0007T



38. Principal Subsidiaries of the Company (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

Issue and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital

38, KRRIEZEME AT @)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued
share capital/
registered capital/
quota capital
held by the Group

Principal activities

BERIRME AEEMEERITRE
FEMRL BAFMELR HMEXBEEX
WEARRRE R B R B EEEER EEZLLE TEER
2012 201
20124 20114
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Dade PRC* Registered capital 50%* 50%* Sale of jewellery
Xinfu Jewellery Company 3 December 2010 RMB3,000,000 products
Limited L FMEAR KEERHE
(“Zhangjiagang Dade Xinfu”) 2010%F12A3H AR#3,000,0007T
REBRTEANENRAKE 1T
BRAR(RRBEAENED
Zhangjiagang Baoshui Qifu PRC* Registered capital 51% 51%  Sale of jewellery
Jewellery Trading Limited 1 June 2007 RMB20,000,000 products
(“Zhangijiagang Qifu”) FE FAfER HEEMMEE
RRBRVEHEREE S 200766 ANA AR#20,000,0005T
ARAR(RFREHRE]D
* Directly held by the Company. * KAREERSE -
# Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into among shareholders of # REZEEEOREZHILAMEBRRE &

these entities, the Group has power to govern the operating and
financing policies of these entities since their respective date of
establishment/acquisition, and hence these entities are classified as
subsidiaries of the Company.

* Being a cooperative joint venture establishment in the PRC.

REALSERE G5/ WA UREE
EERSEBOSERRARE  HULSE
BEEARAANNBAT -

RPBERINAESERE -

Being a wholly foreign owned enterprise.

Being wholly owned by a PRC subsidiary.

Note: The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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39. Statement of Financial Position of the

39. RRREBMRK

Company

2012
2012%F
HK$ million
BEET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EB AR ZILE =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A BI5RIA 16,605.0
16,605.0

Current assets MENVEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHMI B A RI5RIA 4,147.6
Bank balances IRITHEERR 318.3
4,465.9
Current liabilities nEBE

Accruals FEET 9.6
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITER — —FREH 1,107.0
1,116.6
Net current asset MEVEEFEE 3,349.3
Total assets less current liabilities REERRE ARG 19,954.3

Non-current liabilities JEmEAE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITER — —FREIH 3,426.4
16,527.9

Capital and reserves BERRHE
Share capital &< 10,000.0
Reserves (G 6,527.9
16,527.9




Financial Summary
BHE

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and liabilities NTAREBBANEAMKFEED FIBEEUREER

of the Group for the last four financial years. The financial information for BERE - 2012 R FE VKB Rk a AFRA 15
FY2012 is extracted from the financial statements in this annual report while R - M2009 ~ 2010 & 201 BA B 4E E H) Bl 6 B HE AR
such for FY2009, FY2010 and FY20T1 is extracted from the Prospectus. =R

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A3NHLEE

2012 201 2010 2009

2012 % 2014 2010 F 2009

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

ABET AEETT BEAT BEAT

Revenue < 56,571.1 35,0425 229336 18,410.9
Gross profit E7 16,447.9 9,927.6 6,555.0 5,326.0
Profit for the year FEmH) 6,570.9 36725 2,206.8 1,914.4

As at 31 March

MH3A31H
2012 201 2010 2009
20124 20M4F 2010 & 20094
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT BEET BEET
Total assets BEMBE 47,414.3 29,0487 17,010.3 14,409.5
Total liabilities BEEE 17,841.3 17,375.8 86749 7.967.6
Net assets BETRE 29,573.0 11,672.9 8,335.4 6,441.9
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Corporate Information
NGIE=Ve

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry  (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent  (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

Mr. Chan Sai-Cheong

Mr. Chan Hiu-Sang, Albert

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Non-Executive Directors

Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung (Honorary Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Mr. Koo Tong-Fat

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon  (Committee Chairman,)
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey
Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

Nomination Committee

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor (Committee Chairman)
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond (Committee Chairman)
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Company Secretary
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

China Construction Bank (Asia)

Hang Seng Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Standard Chartered Bank

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Compliance Adviser
Rothschild (Hong Kong) Limited

Legal Adviser

Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
Conyers Dill & Pearman
Commerce & Finance Law Offices

Cayman Islands Principal Share Registrar

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-111

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Registered Office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-111

Cayman Islands

Headquarters and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

38/F, New World Tower
16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Stock Code

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 1929

Investor Information

For more information about the Group,
please contact the Investor Relations Department
at:

38/F, New World Tower

16-18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2524-3166

Fax: (852) 2526-9178

e-mail:  ir@chowtaifook.com

Website

www.chowtaifook.com
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BEB(EE)BRAT

SRR AT
BT R

Conyers Dill & Pearman

BEEMEBA

FAERETERNBFLELR
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands

BERNDBFERL DR
BEERAETARAR

BEET

SRABR 285

SiEEFR L2611

=R

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BEHNBETBRERME

BEAERAEFR16-1858
FEAKEISE

AR 19 55
BB FT1929

HEEER

BRAEERS - FRRE R BRI

BABERKNEF16-18%
FEAKEISE

BT (852) 2524-3166
fEHE : (852) 2526-9178
BHE : ir@chowtaifook.com

HED

www.chowtaifook.com
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Glossary

b

AR =

Articles 488 the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)
A RAEEERMA (T RHEET)

BoardEE € the board of Directors of the Company

China UnionPay [ $R Bt
Company/Chow Tai Fook
RAE/ARE
Concessionaire Counter &g
CTFEEAMRIEE

CTF Capital

CTF HK AXKEEH

CTF Holding

CYT Family Holdings

CYT Family Holdings Il

Directors &%

DTC

Frost & Sullivan Report
Frost & Sullivan &

FY S REE

gemstones A

AAREES

a bankcard organisation based in Mainland China

TR — KIRTT RABAR

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (stock code: 1929)
AXREREEEARAA (RMHMIE - 1929)

Self-operated POS with concessionaire agreement
B EEHENELTER

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of CTF Holding
FARBEEERADF - CTF Holding KM B A 7

Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited » ZNA T E B

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company
BAXREHRERITARAR  ARFIEE2ENB AR

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited * ANAF]EZRZE

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited » 42 7] F 2%

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings I) Limited » &2 &)= ZA% R

Directors of the Company

KRARES

Diamond Trading Company, the rough diamond distribution arm of the De Beers
family of companies
Diamond Trading Company * /& De Beers & N &2 & 5 4 AFELA AT

an independent market research report commissioned by the Company on the
Greater China region (excluding Taiwan) jewellery and watch markets prepared in
June 2012

AARZERAPEME ((TRIESE) REEHRMISN 2012F 6 ARENB L TISHIER
H

=

Fiscal year, 1 April to 31 March of the following year
FREE  4AAHBHE T —HF3A31RH

colour stones, jadeite and pearls
TeEhn  ERRIZI



gem-set jewellery Bk 52k & &
Group &M@, K&E
=

high-end luxury jewellery & &K E

Initial Public Offering BIX AR &

karat gold K&

Lifestyle International Fllf2BK&

Listing Date 7 H &3

Listing Rules 48 &l

mass luxury jewellery TREAE

NWD #tt R RE

NWDSHttERBE

POSTER

Prospectus R EF2

Chow Tai Fook Annual Report 2012 FA#@20124F F 5

jewellery products made with diamonds and gemstones

BEBONEONEHER

the Company and its subsidiaries
AN REM B AT

jewellery products with a retail price of above HK$100,000 per piece
BHZEB0BETA LNKEER

the public offer of shares in the Company’s share capital by subscription for cash at
HK$15.00 on and subject to the terms outlined in the Prospectus
RIERZBRRBRERATIMNER - ANARIAER15.008 TR 2 ER M UE A RRENU
HBEGR S

jewellery products made from gold alloy

VAR SRR B B &

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1212)
FIREREBEER QA (RHARE : 1212)

15 December 2011, being the date on which the Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange
20MF12 A5 H - NARRG B TER L2 B

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited
BRBER AR ATES LA

jewellery products with a retail price ranging from HK$2,000 to HK$100,000 per
piece
FHZEEN T2 TELE 10 BB IINKREEM

New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17)
FERBERAER AR (BRMHRKR 17)

New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825)
FEREEREERAE (RHARE : 825)

points of sale

EmTEZR

the Company’s prospectus dated 5 December 2011 in relation to the Initial Public
Offering, which is available from the Company’s website at www.chowtaifook.com
ARABIBRERAFAEER20NERASHFIEMBRER EEHR ARG B

www.chowtaifook.com
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AR =

Rio Tinto

Same Store Sales [FJE 46

Same Store Sales Growth
R st

SFOEH [ BiE (511

Stock Exchange B3z At

Rio Tinto Diamonds N.V.

for FY2009, FY2010, FY201 and FY2012, the revenue from self-operated POS
(including stand-alone stores, Concessionaire Counters and joint-venture POS)
existing as at the end of the relevant fiscal year and which have been opened for at
least 24 consecutive months immediately prior to the end of that fiscal year.
Revenue from wholesale channel (i.e. franchisee sales) and other direct sales (such
as sales from promotional events) are excluded

2009 + 2010 « 20N R 202 B F M 5 - EEEAARE B I 2 R A1 E & D@8 24 [
RUREBEBEMBEERDAFENEESER (BERMOE L  SELREETER)N
BT REHETEEMEREE (ARMBEENHEE) REME N (HEEEIHHNHEE) W
R

a comparison between Same Store Sales of a particular year and sales from
comparable POS in the previous year, measured at constant exchange rates

VARRDE R LB T FE RS $HE S —F A L R E RN REHE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEBEEPIE SN EFFLEEED

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBERZFER AR
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